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14 0.04
679 1.77
280 0.73
251 0.65
151 0.39
40 0.10
36 0.09
29 0.08
29 0.08
16 0.04
3 0.01
50 0.13
12 0.03
58,554 152.80
20,233 52.80
38,321 100.00

4,256
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30
2018
1 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125| 2021 15 5,388,491 5,374,206 5,305,821 13.85
2 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 2.375| 2025 15 5,366,919 4,766,112 5,299,417| 13.83
3 |U.S. Treasury Notes 2.000| 2025 15 5,056,080 5,190,000 4,948,239 12.91
4 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 1.375| 2044 15 3,559,027 3,276,587 3,639,062 9.50
5 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 1.250| 2020 15 3,040,540 2,952,294 3,013,906 7.86
6 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.500| 2028 15 2,580,375 2,655,739 2,596,957 6.78
7 |Fannie Mae 4.000| 2048 2,244,000 2,200,000 2,246,234 5.86
8 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.250| 2025 15 2,293,445 2,301,106 2,241,338 5.85
9 |U.S. Treasury Notes 2.750| 2024 15 2,233,458 2,200,000 2,204,813 5.75
10 |Fannie Mae 3.500| 2048 2,164,244 2,190,000 2,182,643 5.70
11 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 2.500| 2029 15 2,138,329 1,785,354 2,101,395 5.48
12 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 1.750| 2028 15 1,675,801 1,528,322 1,671,512 4.36
13 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125| 2024 15 1,534,106 1,544,955 1,503,414 3.92
14 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.625| 2026 15 1,387,353 1,365,338 1,359,028 3.55
15 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125| 2022 15 1,206,001 1,195,879 1,179,444 3.08
16 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.625| 2024 15 928,429 920,865 921,646 2.41
17 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125| 2020 15 829,648 831,207 824,724 2.15
18 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.375| 2025 15 820,944 819,765 806,082 2.10
19 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 2.000| 2026 15 792,914 715,426 785,492 2.05
20 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.375| 2023 15 688,813 677,725 673,304 1.76
21 |Japan Treasury Bills 0.156| 2018 30 640,220| 70,000,000 644,457 1.68
22 |U.S. Treasury Notes 2.125| 2024 31 599,966 600,000 579,141 1.51
23 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.875| 2047 15 572,986 578,934 574,626 1.50
24 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 3.625| 2028 15 560,800 432,020 550,091 1.44
25 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.750| 2045 15 506,987 529,880 510,661 1.33
26 |Fannie Mae 3.000]| 2043 487,580 497,746 487,376 1.27
27 |Cairn CLO 111 BV 0.650| 2028 10 20 482,807 390,000 455,534 1.19
28 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 2.125| 2041 15 446,189 353,264 446,369 1.16
29 |United Kingdom Gilt Inflation Linked 0.125] 2026 22 424,446 262,951 407,591 1.06
30 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 1.000| 2046 15 356,802 351,775 360,082 0.94
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2018

66,211,799 7,353,482 12.72 1,413

2009 31
58,461,884 6,492,777 14.10 1,566

2010 31
62,897,944 6,985,446 15.32 1,701

2011 31
71,434,645 7,933,532 17.25 1,916

2012 31
99,037,985 10,999,159 17.06 1,895

2013 31
89,446,622 9,933,942 17.06 1,895

2014 31
80,930,802 8,988,175 16.62 1,846

2015 31
62,793,186 6,973,811 16.62 1,846

2016 31
38,241,199 4,247,068 17.10 1,899

2017 31
38,320,854 4,255,914 17.13 1,902

2018 31
2017 37,836,893 4,202,165 17.10 1,899
10 37,694,802 4,186,385 17.13 1,902
11 37,673,627 4,184,033 17.15 1,905
12 38,253,472 4,248,431 17.29 1,920
2018 37,924,375 4,211,881 17.15 1,905
37,419,859 4,155,850 16.96 1,884
37,814,452 4,199,673 17.13 1,902
38,475,686 4,273,110 17.10 1,899
38,335,611 4,257,553 17.13 1,902
38,462,862 4,271,685 17.19 1,909
38,008,081 4,221,177 17.13 1,902
38,071,084 4,228,175 17.21 1,911
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104,660 1,272,762 5,206,337
(104,660) (1,272,762) (5,206,337)
284,050 1,344,465 4,145,922
(284,050) (1,344,465) (4,145,922)
577,300 616,830 4,106,392
(577,300) (616,830) (4,106,392)
949,910 914,313 4,141,989
(949,910) (914,313) (4,141,989)
2,884,060 1,221,594 5,804,455
(2,884,060) (1,221,594) (5,804,455)
258,740 819,629 5,243,566
(258,740) (819,629) (5,243,566)
590,870 965,008 4,869,428
(590,870) (965,008) (4,869,428)
364,900 1,456,548 3,777,780
(364,900) (1,456,548) (3,777,780)
212,200 1,753,400 2,236,580
(212,200) (1,753,400) (2,236,580)
86,150 85,370 2,237,360
(86,150) (85,370) (2,237,360)
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USA USA PATRIOT ACT The U.S.
Bank Secrecy Act

CSSF 08 387 CSSF 10
476 CSSF CSSF
2018 11 2019 10 31
100 10
10 3.24 3.00
10 50 1.62 1.50
50 100 0.81 0.75

100 0.54 0.50
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BMA
BMA

2001 100

31

5,000 1972 Exchange Control
Act 1972 BMA

75

100
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2016 2017 31
2017 2018 31

131

23 103

2018 31 UFJ
111.06
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2018 31
2018 31
58,516 6,499
0 0
19 2
203 23
0 0
423 47
67 7
215 24
0 0
TBA 6,448 716
0 0
225 25
66,116 7,343
15,630 1,736
986 110
679 75
53 6
61 7
12 1
TBA 10,201 1,133
0 0
0 0
111 12
0 0
0 0
15 2
8 1
1 0
0 0
7 1
31 3
0 0
27,795 3,087
38,321 4,256
59,019 6,555
0 0
69 8

676 75
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(19) @)
0 0
38,321 4,256
2,237

17.13 1,902
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2018 31

1,434 159
3 0
1,437 160

170 19

95 11

87 10

8 1

259 29

0 0

619 69

818 91
(152) @17
0 0

431 48
(62) )

8 1

225 25
(1,077) (120)
0 0
(41) ®)
149 17
) €h)
(976) (108)
(751) (83)
e
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225
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67
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2018 31

67 7
(82,834) (9,200)
78,700 8,740
(10,662) (1,184)
11,358 1,261

705 78
399 44
an @)
223 25
1,198 133
1,050 117
(6,448) (716)
30 3
(19 @)
10,201 1,133
20 2

@ ©

1 0

152 17
(431) (48)
62 7
1,077 120
4 5
(149) @an
(€1)) 4)
(604) (67)
4,082 453
1,472 163
(1,707) (190)
145,612 16,172
(130,382) (14,480)

802,193 89,092
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26 3
41 5
67

239 27
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17.10
(€)) 0.37

(0.34)
0.03
0.00

17.13

©) 0.18

38,321
1.63

0.95
2.16
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2018 31
2001
2006 11 28
2017 29
PIMCO

2006

JITF
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15 2019 12 15

2016 11 FASB

ASC 230 ASU 2016 18
ASU 2018 12 15 2019 12 15
2017 FASB

ASU 2017-08 ASU 2019 12 15

2020 12 15 ASU

ASU
NYSE

NYSE NYSE

NYSE NYSE

ETF
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0.129
2018 31
0 714
0 450
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2018 31
( ) ( )
152.7
4.8
2.8
Deutsche Bank AG
4.250 due 10/14/2021 $ 350 $ 347
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.
3.325 due 09/15/2020 300 305
ING Bank NV
2.625 due 12/05/2022 100 98
Navient Corp.
5.500 due 01/15/2019 100 101
Nordea Kredit Realkreditaktieselskab
2.500 due 10/01/2047 DKK 4 1
Nykredit Realkredit A/S
2.500 due 10/01/2047 19 3
3.000 due 10/01/2047 57 10
Realkredit Danmark A/S
2.500 due 07/01/2047 39 7
Toronto-Dominion Bank
2.250 due 03/15/2021 $ 200 196
1,068
0.5
BAT International Finance PLC
2.750 due 06/15/2020 200 198
1.5
AT&T, Inc.
4.100 due 02/15/2028 214 209
NextEra Energy Capital Holdings, Inc.
2.636 due 09/03/2019 60 60
Petrobras Global Finance BV
5.999 due 01/27/2028 233 216
7.375 due 01/17/2027 100 102
587
1,853

( $1,858)
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2018 31
¢ ) ( )
13.3
Fannie Mae
2.310 due 07/25/2037 10 11
2.340 due 07/25/2037 16 16
2.400 due 05/25/2036 8 8
2.577  due 10/01/2044 5 5
3.000 due 05/01/2043 121 119
3.000 due 08/01/2043 498 487
Fannie Mae, TBA (&)
3.500 due 07/01/2048 2,190 2,183
4.000 due 07/01/2048 2,200 2,246
Freddie Mac
2.519  due 12/15/2037 33 33
5,108
( $5,087)
119.0

Treasury Inflation Protected Securities (b)
0.125 due 04/15/2019 28 28
0.125 due 04/15/2020 831 825
0.125 due 04/15/2021 () 5,374 5,306
0.125 due 04/15/2022 287 282
0.125 due 07/15/2022 1,196 1,179
0.125 due 07/15/2024 1,545 1,503
0.125 due 07/15/2026 281 269
0.250 due 01/15/2025 2,301 2,241
0.375 due 07/15/2023 678 673
0.375 due 07/15/2025 820 806
0.375 due 01/15/2027 155 151
0.500 due 01/15/2028 (f) 2,656 2,597
0.625 due 01/15/2024 $ 921 $ 922
0.625 due 01/15/2026 1,365 1,359
0.625 due 02/15/2043 109 102
0.750 due 02/15/2042 110 107
0.750 due 02/15/2045 530 511
0.875 due 02/15/2047 579 575
1.000 due 02/15/2046 352 360
1.000 due 02/15/2048 106 109
1.250 due 07/15/2020 2,952 3,014
1.375 due 02/15/2044 (f) 3,277 3,639
1.750 due 01/15/2028 1,528 1,672
2.000 due 01/15/2026 715 786
2.125 due 02/15/2040 115 145
2.125 due 02/15/2041 353 446
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2018 31
( ) ( )
2.375 due 01/15/2025 () 4,766 5,299
2.500 due 01/15/2029 1,785 2,101
3.375 due 04/15/2032 166 222
3.625 due 04/15/2028 432 550
3.875 due 04/15/2029 64 84
U.S. Treasury Notes ()
2.000 due 02/15/2025 5,190 4,948
2.125 due 07/31/2024 600 579
2.750 due 02/15/2024 2,200 2,205
45,595
( $46,066)
3.4
Civic Mortgage LLC
3.892 due 06/25/2022 100 100
Countrywide Home Loan Mortgage Pass-Through Trust
2.540 due 04/25/2035 180 172
CS First Boston Mortgage Securities Corp.
2.580 due 01/25/2032 187 184
GSAMP Trust
2.695 due 09/25/2035 (c) 50 49
GSR Mortgage Loan Trust
3.670 due 09/25/2035 40 41
HSI Asset Securitization Corporation Trust
2.120  due 05/25/2037 101 100
IndyMac INDX Mortgage Loan Trust
2.800 due 05/25/2034 269 250
JPMorgan Mortgage Trust
3.805 due 06/25/2035 11 11
Long Beach Mortgage Loan Trust
2.450 due 08/25/2035 86 86
Mellon Residential Funding Corporation Mortgage Pass-
Through Trust
2.779  due 08/15/2032 16 15
New York Mortgage Trust
3.852 due 05/25/2036 (c) 89 87
Option One Mortgage Loan Trust
2.815 due 11/25/2034 109 110
WaMu Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates Trust
3.600 due 03/25/2037 (c) 45 45
Wells Fargo Mortgage-Backed Securities Trust
3.911 due 10/25/2035 57 57
1,307

( $1,178)
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2018 31
( ) ( )
2.3
Cairn CLO 111 BV
0.650 due 10/20/2028 EUR 390 455
Grosvenor Place CLO BV
0.720 due 10/30/2029 100 117
Harvest CLO XIV DAC
0.630 due 11/18/2029 100 117
Navient Student Loan Trust
3.110 due 03/25/2066 $ 82 $ 84
Orwell Park CLO Designated Activity Co.
0.780 due 07/18/2029 EUR 100 117
890
( $932)
5.9
Argentina Government International Bond
6.875 due 01/26/2027 $ 100 95
28.117  due 04/03/2022 ARS 643 25
Argentina POM Politica Monetaria
33.218 due 06/21/2020 2,400 107
Australia Government Bond (b)
1.250 due 02/21/2022 AUD 360 316
3.000 due 09/20/2025 60 64
Autonomous Community of Catalonia
4.950 due 02/11/2020 EUR 100 124
Canada Government Bond
4.250 due 12/01/2026 (b) CAD 151 154
Cyprus Government International Bond
3.750 due 07/26/2023 EUR 10 12
4.250 due 11/04/2025 40 51
Italy Buoni Poliennali del Tesoro (b)
2.350 due 09/15/2024 62 76
2.600 due 09/15/2023 105 132
Mexico Government International Bond
4.500 due 11/22/2035 (b) MXN 252 14
New Zealand Government Bond
2.500 due 09/20/2035 (b) NZD 390 314
Peru Government International Bond
6.150 due 08/12/2032 PEN 300 93
United Kingdom Gilt Inflation-Linked (b)
0.125 due 03/22/2026 GBP 263 408
0.125 due 03/22/2046 8 16
0.125 due 08/10/2048 110 245
0.125 due 11/22/2065 1 3
2,249

( $2,353)
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2018 31
( ) ( )
4.0
0.6
Barclays Bank PLC
1.940 due 09/04/2018 $ 200 200
0.6
ANZ National Bank
0.760 due 06/01/2018 AUD 4 3
1.000 due 06/01/2018 NZD 3 2
1.200 due 06/01/2018 $ 17 17
Bank of Nova Scotia
1.200 due 06/01/2018 29 29
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Ltd.
(0.220 ) due 06/01/2018 ¥ 1,759 16
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
(0.750 ) due 06/01/2018 DKK 16 3
(0.220 ) due 06/01/2018 ¥ 1 0
1.200 due 06/01/2018 $ 17 17
Citibank N.A.
0.230 due 06/01/2018 GBP 2 2
1.200 due 06/01/2018 $ 8 8
DBS Bank Ltd.
1.200 due 06/01/2018 36 36
Deutsche Bank AG
(0.580 ) due 06/01/2018 EUR 7 $ 8
0.230 due 06/01/2018 GBP 2 3
1.200 due 06/01/2018 $ 5 5
DnB NORBank ASA
1.200 due 06/01/2018 29 29
HSBC Bank
0.230 due 06/01/2018 GBP 2 3
JPMorgan Chase & Co.
1.200 due 06/01/2018 $ 21 21
National Australia Bank Ltd.
1.200 due 06/01/2018 18 18
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corp.
(0.220 ) due 06/01/2018 ¥ 94 1
1.200 due 06/01/2018 $ 18 18

239
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2018 31
( ) ( )
0.4
1.572  due 08/10/2018 (d) 100 99
23.631 due 09/14/2018 (e) ARS 40 2
25.500 due 09/14/2018 (e) 1,400 50
0.7
0.789 due 07/13/2018 (d) EUR 30 35
1.067 due 10/05/2018 (e) 30 35
1.194 due 08/31/2018 (e) 180 210
1.7
(0.156 ) due 07/30/2018 (d) ¥ 70,000 644
1,075
1,514
( $1,545)
1527 $ 58,516
( $59,019)
108
(9)() 0.3
( $(19))
(3.0 ) (20,303)
100.0 $ 38,321
( )
2018 31 138.5

14.2
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. ORGANIEZATION

Each fund disqussed In this report feach a “Fund™ and collectively, the =funde™), which atso indudes each dass of units of that fund (each a <Class” and collectively
the “Clasaes™), i & Series st of PRCO Bermada Trust (the *Trust™), 20 apen-ended unil st estabihed under the L of Bermuda a5 3 multi-enes rust pursuant
to & frusk deed exsazted by Winchester Global Tnst Company Limited on Audgust 8, 20017 (a5 amended from time to Sme, the “Trast Deed™) Efectiee 2 of the dose of
Business (Eastern time) on Novermber 28, 2006, Winchester Global Trust Company Lirmited retined andwas dischanged as rustee of the Trust and Brown Brothers
Hariman Tnast Compamy (Caymaan] Limited was appointed as new tustee of the Trust for the owners of units of the Furds (fe “Unitholders ™). Efective a5 of the dose
af buisieess (Eastem me) on Sepdember 29, 2017, Browin Brothers Harriman Trust Company (Capman) Limited retieed and was decharged as 1naiee of the Trist and
Magies Trustes Senvices (Bermuda) Limited was appointed a5 new tneshes of the Trust. As wsed in this report, 3l references, ko the “Trushes® thall mean the person

then serving a5 tnustes to the Trusk, Padfic Investment Management Company LLC {("PIMCO,® the “Manager” of the “investment Adviser™)is the sponucd of and was
responsitie for structuring the Trust

The Trust 15 sufiedt 10 regulaton and superiaon a5 provided forn the Irvesiment Furds Act 2006 and related niles rdating 10 standard fands

The terms of the Trust Deed conder upon the Trustes, with the oonsent of the Manager, the power, in e future, bo establish further funds & addigon to the Funds
dirfendy @ opeta ion 25 of te clate of this fepait

Thie Funk. presen ted in this report e frsted bl ow

PRMCT Beemeda Foragn Low Dumton Fund Ofmad only bo Funds vait @ "Fued of Fussds™ shucha, a5 dabned in B rolis of the
PIMCE) Bermuda LS. Low Duraticn Fund Trveieatreent Trussis Asocsation, Japan, o o fusdswith o smslar s¥uctens in any ofter
PR Emenging Msriats Bond Fusd LITR ot el ea
PENMD]) Ernergmg Mdarksts Bored Fuesd (¥ian Mad ged)
PRC0) Emerging bbark s Bord Fusd 1|
| PR Emenging Martets Bond Fund 11l
PRI Euro Total Hatuin Fund Crifier anf 0o reind imaiziors o J agem by wiy of public offerng hioagh a distbetal o
| PRMCE sl Riotian Fansd Japan, and may beoflerad to ofhar iwastors a1 Ba disoration of the Manager
| PR Sebvont- e Gratanry™ Ofter i 1o rétin] irvisions m.J g by vy of pubhic offeng thicegh & datibetan adion
sz hared e comguny in.Jagen, and may be offerad to otha invastions st the disneton
of tha Msnaga
| PR Emengmg Yartists Bond Fosd (M) Crfhr i oy 1 othn Funds b v as undarhyng nwestmon b wehedes B such Fonds

WP ST i AR Dl 1 PO C ot S o A 1 0 0 T T PO, e B I SR AR S e D AR e (0 AR o el SRR 8 b A S

Units of the P00 Eurp Total Refuim Furid FIMCO Read Retm Fund, and IPY and LSD Classes of the FIMO0 Shoet-Tem Sirateqy have been regestened under the
Anandal nstruments and Exchange Law of Japan Units of each of the remaining Funds and the | (IFY) and I (USD Classes of the FIMCO Short-Tem Strategy have
ot been and e not currertly eapuctedd 10 be regritered under the Rnendlal knsruments and Exchange Liw of Japan  Accordingly, such Units of tese Funds may el
b, chrecty of indirecly, offered i J3pan of 10 ey resadenin Japan, excepl in coenplisnce wath Joplicabie Lapanete Linvs and requlaticnd

2. SIGNFICANT ACCOLINTING POLICIES

Thee follesing |5 & suemmary of 5ionifcant scoousing podcdes corsrtently followed by e Trust in the preparation of its financial stasments in Condomity with
Aooanting princgies generslly soepted im the United States of Armerica (Y5 GAAP) Each Fund B treated &5 20 Frvastment coepany unded the repoing
requirements of S GAAR The preparation of fnand 3l statements in somdance with LS, GAAP requires management (o make esimates and assumptions thag
aftect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and dsdosure of contingent assets and liabilines at the date of the Enandal statements and the reported amoents
of ihcreaded ghd decreates in et aisets from epérafions during the reportng period Actudl résults oold difer from thode estimanes

{n) Undwrdying Fesd The Trugtes and the Manager may apply Jl or 3 portion of the assets of FIMCO Emengng Marbets Bond Fund (IITF), PIMCO Emergng Marden
Bond Fund {1 en-Hedged), PIMCO Emenging Markets Bond Fund 1, and PIMCO Emenging Markets Bond Fund il (sadh referred 1o heren &5 3 “Fund of Funds™ or the
Phoquinrg Fund® swhich st B oofher Funds) 0o e fespective oredin of thie FIMCO Emanging Markets Bord Fand (W) frefernsd 1o heredn 55 30 “._?'ﬂéf‘i,m-.) Rt o
e “Acquered Fund™) Aﬂ:,' atsels 40 applied will be hedd n wich Acqueed Rund ol recened deecly’ Whens isens dé so sppled, the Aogianed Fundwill record De
tiie of unies [0 e refeeant Aiquirng Fund &t ivsue prce per wal of such units and will repirdhise sudh units af the reparchirse proce par usil of such umits Jf the
fime of repurchase. Acmedingly, the abdity of the Acquiring Fund to advieve its ivestment obgective will depend upon the ability of the appicable Acguired Fund to
achieve i1s imvesment objective. There can be no assurance that te invesment obgedive of the Acguined Fund will be achieved

{b) Secwrities Transactions and Investment come Sequrilies vantaons ae reconded 2 of the made dane for Bnancd reporting puepoies, Secunities pordised of
S0l oo wihenasied o delayed-deliveny basis may be Setted beyond a standand sertleenent period for the secuanity afes the rade date. Rediped gans and |okes
o sedafitied doid ane redonded on the ienthed ooit b Dnadens inoome i feoorded on e ex-dvidend dite, sxtepl certin deddend from lods N seuides
where the ex-gividend date may have passed, which are recorded as soon as a Furd is informed of te ecdividend date interest income, adjusted for the acmetion of
dhaoimnts and amortization of premeums, is recorded on the aoorual basis Fom settlement date, with the excepiion of ssqurites with a fonward staring effective date,
whhire intenest income is recoodsd on the acosal bursis, from effeciae date. For comeertiblie secuities, preriunm attibutable to te comersion Reanme are nat
amcrtized Estimated b liabiiBes on certan foreign seawrities are recorded oo an acous bass and ane refiected a5 components of intenest incorne or net dhange in
unrediped appreciaton (depredation) on invesements on the Staements of Operations, & sppropriate. Ta llabiktes realized as & result of such seourity sales ane
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refiacted 35 a compaonent of net realized gain Foss) on investments on the
Sagrernents of Operations. Paydown gains and o on morgage-telated
and cther avsetbacked searities, if any, are recorded 25 components of
interest income on the Statements of Operations

Dot cbligation: may be placed on non-acmual status and related inberest
imcomne may be reduced by ceasing qurrent aconals andweiting off interest
peceable whin the oollection of 2l or 3 poetion of imeres hag Become
doubitful hased on consisten thy applied procedures. A debt obligaton is
ferndvied S0e fon-0Tual Status when the Bsuer retumes iNRenEst panments
of whien collectability of nberest is probutde

{e} Canh and Foreign Currency The financal staternents of each Fund are
prasented using the cumency of the primary economic errvinonment in whidh it
operates (the “functional asrency™). The fundional aurrency for the Fundsis
e LS. dollar, excepl for the FIMCO Euro Total Rensrn Fund whvich (4 the
Eurg

The market values of bafeign seunses. cunency holdngs and other assets
and Babdlities are ramslated inte sach Fund's uncSonal arrendy baed on the
iment echange rates sach business day. Purchases and sales of securites
andd ircoime Aned expense item denorminated in fofn aurendes, il oy, e
franslaned in o each Fund’s ndpedind: Lindbonal currency af the exhange
e in e on the transacion dite The Furd oo ol sepoartely nepodt e
effects of changes in foreign exchange rabes from dramges in market prices on
serurihies held Sisch dhanges are induded in net regized and net drangesin
unredlized gan of borss fnom mveedments on the 5tatements of Operations

The: Fumds. may irvest in Sorelgn qumency denominated sequrides and may
engage in forelgn currency ransactions ether on a spof (cash) basis 4t the
rate prevaling in the cumency emchange macket at the tme o frough a

fonw and foreign currency contract (see Finandal Derivative nsiruments)
Realized Soreign exchange gams. of keises aigng from sales of spot Torsgn
aETendes, Qurrendy gains of bosses redized bebween the rade and sattlement
canes o Seauified rarsactions and the difenende Delwsen foe recorded
amounis of dhidends, inserest, and boneign wighholding Laes and the
functional currency equivalent of the amounts actally received of paed are
included in ret redized gain or koss on Boregn Aumency ransactons on the
Statemenits of Operations. Metunredized forsign exchange gains and losses
anizing froen changes in foreign exchange rates on foreign denaminated st
and liabilities other than nvestments in secmities hedd at e end of the
TeprTng pencd i inclipded in net chandge m unnealized Jppdecasion of
QREMeCition on Toregn Curtency dsets and listilines on the Statements of
Operations

The Mk Assat Value (R and total retumns of certain Funeds {or Classes
thereof, 2 applicable) are presented in the arrency for which te NAY is
reportid (the "NAV curency™) &5 detaled ineadh Fund's Crifering
Memceandui (the "0Mening Mamorandur™). Fof the pimdes of the
pretention of te MAV Jrd the 1054 retam in the NAY curendy, the
beginning and ending NAYS are oomverted using the period beginning and
enfing exchange rates, neipedivily, and datibations e comerted uding fhe
exchange rate at the tme of the dstribution See e following tatde for the
MY curmency and functional currency of exch respective Fund;

P MAY Furesonal
Carreny ey
PIMCD Barmaks Fretmgs Lows Dt ation Fusd Japangsayn | U5 dollar
{_PIMC Bermusds U5 Lows Diration Find Japanesayen | 115 deilar
| FANCO Ermesrgpng Markag: Bond Fund LITTF) L] 5. dotlar
ML Emegyeg Mad i Bond Fund i} L5 daflar 5. otlar
J C
= G0

A Tt ool
FandClms: Carversy Durveny

FRC) Ervrging Wit oo Bare Figes [an Hadged] Japarasayen | WS dols
PR Ermver gang lbark e Bored e ] Jamnasg yan LS. dolw

& JiBAL)

= JO0R

* JONA

w MR

= JiTHY

® JiZAR
TR Erioer gpeegy ok e, Barsd Furd 10 Jamrasoven | US dolw

«  JEAYD

= JIENY

- J NORY

s Jikf

= J KN
P00 Eura Tt Return Fund [i [Euto
FRCD Real Rionatn Frand LS dollm Wh dols

| PRMOD St Term Sramsgy

= JUM Jumrazayen | UG dedw

s Jish S i i Vs dlls

. BT Jamnmayen | U5 dola

L] U3 dollm U5 didie

{d) Melticlsss Operatiens Each cass of a Fund offered by the Trosthas
rights bo the awets of the Fund equal %o that of ofher dasses of the same
Fund, except for pecific et and gaing and krises dessgnated 1o 3 dass
redating to cumency hedging operations. Income, non-dass spedic expenes,
and non-dass spedic realized and unrealized capitadl gains and looses are
Mlcecatid i wdch alass of units based on foe relative nel assets of dach dins
of the respectine: Rind Class spad e expendes cumendy indisde
management, sdvisory, administrative and dsmibution fees, where applicatis

i) Digtribwtion Palicy The fofiowing table thows the satiopated requency
of distribistions for each Fund . Distnbotions fom each Fund may be dedared
and disiribuied to Unitholders only upon the authorization of the Manager,
which authonization may be withheld at the Managers dsoetion

FIMCD Ero Total Batn Fund

Duclared ard Poid Monchly:

FIMCE Emergng Markets Bond Fund LIITR
BT B ot iy Wit B Pl [V o -Hadg ad)
PN Emanging Markets Bond Fand 1|
FINCH) E e ging barkets Bond Fund N1
PG Short-Tarm: 5w gy

s JUrM

= JRED
FIMC B Fosesgn Low Dusabion Fend
FINCH Banmoda U 5 Low Diwatson Fund
FIMCE) Read Aot Fund
PG Sheut-Torm: Stra gy

- SFT

= 180
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Tha Manager desa nol sxpact 1o declers dimribetions with recpect 1o this

Furd (o0 Chumnzn thoveo!, ff wpphosbicl, bl may, m e docretion, dociare wnd
ditrizations o tha Unkholders a2 amy time.
FIMACD) Emanging Mark ots Bond Fend )

Dastritu s, [F sy, will generaly be made from the relevant Fund's (or
Class's, if applicable) net imvesmend income. In addition, the Manager may
authorize the payment of net nealized capital gaing available for distibuson
Addtional distribufices may be dedared a3 the Managér deems appropriale
Dostritu fistrs. sl with respect o any Fund (or Class thereof, If sppdcade)
will e the BAN of such Fumd (or Class thenéod, of applbcatie) AL the
disaetion of the Unitholders, cash distributions om @ Fund for Class thereod,
it applicable) may éisher be rermeitod in addBonal units of 3 Rand (or Class
therieod, i applicable) o paid 1o a Unitholder in cash, Cash purgments wall be
paid in the KAy curency of te Fund Eadh Fund (or Class thereof, it
applicable) may dedare further distribuSons if considered necessary in onder
1o mantan 3 reasonabie bewl of dstributions for a Fund for Class thereof, if
applicabled in the event tat teere is inadecuate nelimoome and net reaized
capital gaens to pay a distribution of a Fund (or Class thereof, if applicatbie)
recuired by the Crffering Memarandum, the Minages may pay 3 daoibution
condsing of & portion of the capital of Sich Rend (or Class theneal, i
applicable) Déstrbu iors not oollecied within st years. from their doe date
wall lapree andwall acoue to the benefit of the relevant Fund for Class thereof,

il applicatde)

il Mew Accownting Prensus s in March 2016, the Foancd
Accounting Standeed Boand (FASE™) isteed an Accounting Sundands
Upcdane: (“ASLFY, ASLL 200605, which prowicks guidince relased o the
impact of desivative contract novations on cerlan relatonsdhips under
Acoounting Standards Codfication Topic ("ASC) 815 The ASU s effenive
for annwal pesiods begnning atter December 15, 2017, and inlenm periock
wathin fiscal years beginning after Decsmber 15, 2008 At this ime,
management s evalisating the implications of these changes on e finandal
shatements

In August 2006, she FASE issusd an ASLL ASL 201615, which amends ASC
230 to dafity gudance on the d sssskcation of certan cash reosipts and cath
paymenis on the Statement of Cash Aows, The ASU 5 effective for annial
pericads beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods Degemng
after Decenber 1%, 2019 Al this time. management is evaluating the
ienglications of these dhanges on e finandal statements

In hgwember 2006, e FASE Bausd an ASL, ASU 2006-18, which amends
ASC T30 fo provdde guidance on the dassification and pressntation of
changes in redtricted cath and restricted cash equivalents on the Statement of
Cash Pows. The a0 s efiecive for annus! periods begnning afier December
15, 2003, amd inferm pefiods beginning after Decermber 15, 2009 A1 ths
time, management is evaluating the impications of these dhanges on the
Tinancial 4 Lvements

In Warch 2007, the FASE ssued an aSLL, A5 200708, wiidh peowides
guidance related to the amorization period for certain purchased callable
el eturives hidd 31 4 premogm The ASLU S eflecie Tof annu sl pediods
bﬁ‘pluuu-j after Dedember 15, 2009, and svbsim pesiock within fical YEHS
beginning after December 15, 2020, This ASU was adopied by the Funds. The
implementation of the ASU dd not have an impact on any Fund®s financal
ALlETEALS

3 INVESTMEMNT VALUATION AMND FAIR WVALUE
MEASUREMENTS

{n) Investment Valuation Policies The price of a Fund's umits is based on
e Funaf's HAW. The KAy of 3 Fund, or aach of i dasses. & spplicable, is

determined by dviding She total value of portiolio imeettments and ather
aasen seitucatie 1o that Fund o class, bess any Nabilides, by che ot
reeniber of UnELs conskanding of miat Fund of Class. On each Fund’s Dedling
Doy (3 debcnibed i the current Oritenng Memdrandum of the

Trust), Fund ueats &¢ ordnaey walued as of the dose of reguisr rading on
The New Yok Stodk Exchandge ("NYSE Code™). Information that becormes
krgwry B0 The Fundk of thess gt Jieer the time 35 of witich WAY had b
caloulated on a partiodlar day will not generally be ysed fo retroactvely adjust
the price of a security of the MAY detemined eafbér that day. Each Fund
resenves the right bo change the time as of which it respective NAY i
cabiulated if #e Furnd doses earker

For purpodet of cladating & NAY, portfolia wscurities and ather Jisee for
which market quotes ane readly avallable are valued at market valoe Marbet
vakie b generdly determined on the basis of ofical dosang prices or the last
risported sales prices, or if no sabes are reported, based on quotes obtained
frcen established market makers or prices dndluding evalpated prices) supplied
bry thie Fuamds’ apgroved pricng sendces, quotation reporing systerns and
it rind-party Sourge (rogether, "Fridng Senvices™) The Funds will
norrally use priong data for domestic equity seourities recehved shorty after
the NY4E Close and do not normally tae into acmuns rading, dearances o
seterments thal take place afer the NYSE Close. 1 market value paang it
wrsed, 3 foreign (non-U. 5 ) equity security raded on a foreign exchangs of on
migre tham one exchange i sypically vaiued using pricing iedommation from the
exchange considered by the Manager to be the prienany exchange A foreign
(non=LLS ) equity securitywill be valued a5 of the dose of trading on the
forelon exchange, of thie NYSE Close, if the NYSE Close ooours before the end
of rading on the foreign exdhange. Domestic and foreign (non-115 ) fxed
irscome secunities, non-exchange iraded derivatives, and equity options are
norenaly wlued on die burdis of quobtes, oblaned fom brokers snd dealers o
Pricireg Semced using data nr‘.‘.-;-;'lllxlﬂl‘.? eaifief [k]ynj(.l the prinapal
markets for tose secuniies. Frices obtained from Priong Sersices may be
Bured on, among other things, information provided by markel mkess of
estimates of markef values cblaned from vield data rdating 1o investments o
seurides with similar characteristcs. Certain fiwed income: sequnites
purchated on 3 delyyed-delivery basis are marked B0 markel daily until
setfement at the fonward sertement date Exchamge-traded optices, eept
equTy options, futures and cptions on fulures fvhich are distussed below),
arewalped at the setHement price determined by the relevant exchange Swap
agriennints ane valued on e basis of bid quones obsaned from brokers and
deders or market-bawed prices supplied by Fridng Sesvices or ofher pridng
sources. A Fund’s investments in open-end management invesiment
companies, other than exchange-traded funds (“ETFs7), are valued at the
AW of wch invesiments. Open-end management invisiment companies
may indude sffiiated hndk

o & fesruin (fehi-L). 5 ) ety ssudity’s valint i fateialy chandged st the
dhime of the Leduity’s primany enchange of prnapsl markel bul before the
NYSE Close, the seurity may be valued 31 f3r value based on procedares
estabdihed and approved by the Manager. Foreign (nor-LU S ) equaty
secities that do not trade when e WYSE is open are $50 valued al far
vakue. With respect to fonsign (non-U.5 ) edquity securities, 3 Fund may
determine the fair value of imvestments based on infrrmation poovided by
Pricing Senvioes and other thind-parey vendors, which may recommend far
vakue of adjusiments with reference 1o other seourities, ndices or #sels In

SO i) it thdd S v aBon 14 fegeted &l B &[Hmmu-_: {imt

vithaes, & Fund may, armong other tingl, combder Significant events (which
oy b conSickenid oo inedadie chonges in the walue of LS. deaunified of
sequifies indices) that ooour after the digse of the relevant market and before
the NYSE Close. & Fund may uslize modsng tools provided by shind-party
winidors Ro determine fair walues of foreign (non-L15 ) seamities. For thess
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purposes, any movementin the sppficable reference index o instrument
("zero miger) between he earlier dose of e applicatle foreign meket s
1 MYSE Cloge may De deemed 1o b2 & Sgnilicant event, peomping the
application of the pridng moded (efectively resulting in daly fai

vapatons). Foreign exch anges may permit trading in Soreign fnon-U 5 ) equity
sacufities on days when the Tnast is not open for business, which may result
in 3 Fund's portfiofio Evestiments being affected when Uinithol ders are unable
b0 by o sl urits

Senior secured fioating rate koans for which an aciee secondary market edsts
1o vl abde: cegriee waill b widoed At the mesn of the Binl dvadable bedfnk
prfices i the markel for Sdh loans, o proviced by a F|:{||'|g SErADE  SENIH
secured floating rate loans for which an active secondary market does not
et 10 & relidble degres will be valued ot {ar value, whidh is misnded 1o
appromimyte marketvaliee In valuing a senior seomed Boating rate loan al
falrvalie, the factors considered may indiade, but are mof limited 1o, the
Tollowing: () the qedtaorthiness of the borrower and any intermediane
participanas, &) e teems of thie laan, () recent prices in e markel o
similar loans, i any, and (d) recent prices in e marked for insruments of
similar quafity, rate, period untl next inferest rate resat and maturity

Imeestmen s valued in cumendies other than the functional oumency

of 3 Fund are converted 50 the functional currency wsing exchange rates
thddned from Fridng Sendces. As a reslt, the value of sudh investments and
in furn, 1he WAY of the Fund's mits may be affected by changes in the valee
of urrendies. in redanion 10 the enciona currency The viiue of inves imenis
rradded in Soreian mndtkers of dersoimmated m oatences ather than

e funchional aa ey My De aflected :J-_rlﬂil’_.n‘l?“,' ot by thad e Trust 55
nod open Sof Dusness AS & reult, 30 the extent that a Fund helk foreign
{non-1 % h investmenss, the walise of those investments may change at times
when you cannat panchase, redeem of exchange uets and thevalue of uch
Irvectmen s will be reflecisd i the Fund's next clodated HAV

Imeestmen ts for which market quotes or market based valuations are not
reddly aeailyble o valued a1 far viloe 38 determined in good Fath by

the Manager of persons acting a1 thedr direction. The Man ager has adopted
mesthods for valuing seqmiies and other assets in deasmstances where
ket quobes ane fot readily avallable, and has delegated to PIMCD the
respantibiiity for appiying the i valuation methods. In the event that market
autes of marked based valuances are ok readly avalable, and the sty
or assecannot be valued pursuant bo a Manager approved valu ation method,
e walue of the seaity of asse?will be determined in good faith by e
Walustion Comen mee. Market quotes e consadered not resddy invailatie n
G Lances wheere (et is 0 Abdence of current of fehalle markel-baded
data g, rade information, bidsk information, indcatve market
aquatations (“Broker Quotes®), Pricing Sendces’ prices), induding whise svenity
oocur atter e dose of the: rebevant matket, but pce so the NSE Close, that
materialy afec the vales of the Fund’s seamitied o atsets. In addsion,
mrarker quotes ane considered not readly available when, due 1o exramdnary
arqumstances, the enchanges of markels on which the sequnses rade & mot
open for trading Sor e enfire day and no other market prices e avalable
The h&ln::_p-r 15 responiible Sor :n'nut-:-unl:;')-.‘plu,'uul events Bhal may
raterially afeq She valss of the Fund's leousties o a5 and b
detenmaning whethés e value of the apElicable Seoui:s o sdens shauld be
resvalieated in Bght of wuch sgnificant events

When 3 Fund uses fn valuason to determine the value of 3 portiolio sequrity
or Dtfver asset for purposes of calasating its MAY, wudhirvesments will not
be priced on the basis of quotes from the primany mardiet inwhich they ane
tradisdd, bl rather mury b priced by another metd that the Managi of
[esticans SCHng a1 thedr dnection befieve mflects Rarvalue. Fair valuasion may
reire subjecthe determina$ions sbout the valus of 3 seourity. while

the Trust™s policy i intended 1o resultin a cabculagion of a Fend's HAY that
Tty reflects security values 2 of the time of pricdng. the Trest cannol ensure
that fair walues determined by the Manager or persons acting at ther
derection would acarately refiect e price that a Fund could obiain for a
‘_.n;(u.'lt:,'i‘.ll wiere T cSpeie of that decurity &5 of the deme of pricing (for
ineslance, if 3 fodced of didtresied Sale) The peices wved by b Fund iy differ
trom the walue that would be realized if the seounites were sold

{b) Fasir Visdwe Hiorarchy U5 GAAF desaibes fav value a5 the price that

a Fund wooahd receive to sell an asset or pay 1o ranster a liability in an ordesty
varnaction between madkel paetcpents at the measgement dane. &
estitlishes & et vaiue hitrarchny that (rOAG2E nguts 1o valuaBon method
avd requares. cisdosure of the far value hierardwy, separabely for each major
category of wuets and Rabilities, that seqregates fair valiee mesunements into
Tl (L 1, 2, o 3 Thee iryputs oo e ooy wsed for valuing searities
ae nok necessanty an indcation of te fks Fsmodatedwith invesing in those
seomites. Levels 1, 2, and 3 of the fair value hierandy are defined as follows:

® Leved 1 =—Coobed prices in adne markets of eodhandges fof entical aisets
anud awitie s

u [ .'-"—'5||,::'||th‘1| arther chervable inputs, which muy ndude, but jee
not limited to, quoted prices for similar assets or Babilites in markets that are
active, guoted prices for identical or simiar assets or Babdities in markets that
e noladive, inpats ather than quotied prioxs that aee obeendable for the
axtels of |labilities sudh & mterest rates, yield aunves, wolatdities, prepayment
speads, loss severities, oedi rides and default rates) or offer market
coroboraned inputs

s [ 3— 'Sl._:lu-'!-"_ﬂl Utyiabssnat il N s basad on e beett indormaton
v ailable in the deasmstances, 0 e exdent obsenvatis ﬂ:.:'.lli. afe el
avallatie, which may indude ssmamptions mads by the Manages of persons
acting 2t theer drection that are used in determaning the fair valipe of
Infeerstmments.

I accdrdande with She requrements of LS GARE, the amounts of translers
betwveen Levels 1 and 2 and trasefers in and cut of Level 2, If matenid, are
desclodied in the: Nates 1o Schedule of Investments for each respective Fund

For fair '-'J’.l,u'.i(-:l';l.'_.'nrj gl;‘:ll'l-_',hl whidbrendabie inputs, LS, GAAP figuires 2
recondliadon of the beginning to ending balances for reponied fair valies that
peresents changes atfributable fo readized gain (oss), unredized appredation
{depredation), punchases and sales, acoued decounts (premiums), and
tramsfers in and cut of the Level 3 canegory during the period The end of
perind value is used o the ransters betasen Levely of the Funds” sssets and
liabilities. Additionally, 15 GAAP requires quantitathe infarmation regarding
the significant uncbeervable inputs wsed in the determination of Lar value of
aasals of liabikties categonzed as Leved 3 in the fair value Herardhy In
sccondance with B requiraments of LIS GAAF, § 1 value hisarchy, andif
roaterid, & Level 3 reconclistion and detsls of sSonifcant unabaerable
inguats, have been indudid in the Motes 1o Schedube of Investmants for sach
respesctane Fund

it} Valuntion Techaiquez and the Fair Walue Hietarchy

Lewel 1 and Level 2 wnding as2etz and tading labilities, st laie value [ho
vk ation reethods for “Technigues™) and significant inputs usad in
detimrinang the fairvaiues of porialio seqarnies of ofher assets and liabdites
categorized 3 Level 1 and Level 2 of the far walue hiersrchy are a3 Tollows

Fimed irxcoime Securites mduding corporale, comeertibe and munidpal bonds
and notes, S gowemiment agendes, LS. meatuny obligations, soversign
fesues, bank loens, comvenible preferned secunities and mon-LLS, bonds are
norrnally walued on the basis of quotes obtained from brokers and dealers o
Pricing Services that use beoker-dealer quolabons, reported wades of
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valuaton extimabes from their mtemal pridng models. The Fridng Services
nbemal maodels e inpu s that ane obeenvable such a5 ssuer dedails, intenest
£t yield autves, prepaymment speeck, ceditrmkaspeesds, defat rates and
quated prices for similar assets. Securifies that use smilar valuation
Rechwniigies drd inguts a5 cescriteed Alcnee ane Canegar 2ed & Livef 2 of the
Lair vl by

Fintsd b oo Securities purchased on & delayed-deliveny basis of 454
repurchase oommitment in 4 sale-buybade ransacon are marked i markeq
clindy until Se rdement 31 the Tonwaed settement dane and are Categomned 3
Lewed 2 of the fair value hierandwy.

Mortgaige-related and asset-badbed secunBes are wsually isawed a5 separate
Iranches, of Jasses, of seountes within cach deal Thete Eounties are Jso
rronenaly v ased by Pridng Senices. et use broker-ckalkr Quolaton,
reported trades or valuaBon eshimates from thalr internal pridng models. The
g models for thede secuities wsually consider tranche-level attibutes,
current market data, esimated cach flosvs and markeq-based vield spreads for
each wanche, and inoporate deal coll ateral performance, as aiailable
Mortgage-related and asset-badbed sequniBes that use similer valuation
techraques and inguirs a5 desoribed above ane canegor zed a5 Level 2 of fhe
fair walue hierarchy

Common shods, ETFs, exchange-traded nates and financial derivatioe
instrurments, such & futwes conracts, right andwarmants, o options an
furres that are traded on 2 national seouriges exchange. are stated &i the
last repaorted sale or settlerent price on the day of valuation. To the extent
thess securives ae ctively maced and valuaton adjusmments are nat applied,
thesy e canegorzed a5 Level |of e 3 value histandy

Ireestmen 5 valoed {denominated) in curences ather than the funcSonal
currency of & Fund are comverted 1o the funcdonal cunrency using exchange
rates (qumendy spot and Sorward rates) obtained from Pridng Services. As a
resalt, the MAY of a Fund's units may be affected by changes in the value of
Qurrendies in felagon 1o the Suncqional Curmendy. The value of sequnities iraded
11 foresgn markets of denornnated in currendies other than the Sncsmal
curfency ey b atfected significanty on & day that the Trust i not dpen for
business. Valuation adustments may be applied o certain sequrites that ae
soledy waded on a foreign exchange to aocount for the marke? movement
betwneen shee close of the Torsgn markes and thee NeSE Close. These seauities
afe valued using Fridng Services that consider the correlation of the trading
pantems of the forelon seouariny 10 the intraday trading in the U5 mareets for
rvestments. Sequnfies using thede valuaton adusiments are categonized as
Level 7 of the Lar value tieranchy. Prefered seqnises aod other equilies
fraded on inacive markets of valwed by reference 1o smilar insruments are
alsy cateqorized as Leved 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Equany-linked seuivies are valued by referending the last reported <3l or
sertlernent price of thee linked referenced eguityon the dayof valuation
Forsign esechange adsiments are applied fo the last reported price to
oonwvert e linked equity™s rading cumency to e coniract's setting aimency
Thesse veStments ane categorized &5 Livel 2 of the Rar valug Rierandy

Irveresammen 5 in Tecps ered open-end imestment comganies (ofher than ETFS)
will b walued based upon the MAYS of sudh imesitments and are categorized
a5 Level 1 of e fair value hierardhy. Investiments in unregistered open-end
Ievvesamen toomganies will be cauiaied baded upon the NaVs of such
ireestments and are coneidered Level | provided that she NANS ane
obdervable, cabtulated daty and are thé walue af witnch both purchaies and
st will b conducied

Eruity exchange-raded options and over the counter nandal derivaive
instruments, such as formard foreign cumency contracts, options contracts, o
e dgreements, denive thei value from undestying siset prices, indoss,

reference rates, and other inputs o a combination of these factors. Cither
Than swap agréements, which are vaksed using 2 Droker-dealer bid quotation
o o marked-based prices provided by Frideg Sendces or other pridng
sources, Shese contracts are nosmally vahsed on the basis of quotes cbitained
o & qustadon PEEOFTNG Syiem, kR e mackel mder of PIII‘_'II'r:j
Senices (nomally determined as of the NYSE Close). Depending on the
percechect and dhe permrrs of the trardaction, Snandial desfvative instaméents can
b wedlued by Fricing Senices using a seried of tedwmigques, indudng
simigdation pricng modes. The pridng modeds yse inputs that are obsened
troem actively quoted markets such a4 quoted prices, ssuer details, indites,
beckrask speeads, imerest rates, impled volatlites, yield qunves, diidends and
enchange fated Angndal demalme insruments et pe drmls vauabon
technigues and inputs as desaibed above are categorized as Level 2 of the
1 vilfe hierar Llr:.'

Centrally deased swaps lied or raded on 2 mulstaeral or trade fadling
platform,_ asch 2 & registered axchange, are valued at the daily setlement
prrice determined by the respective exchange (if avalable). For centrally
desred credi detaull avapd, the deanng taality fequaris it memben 10
percvidie actionable price levels ammoss complete bemn snachunes. These levels
dongwath external thind-party prices ae used to prodince daly Sefement
poriced Thete secmities are categonized as Level 2 of the Lair value heranchy
Centrally deared interest rate swaps ane valued weing a piging maoded that
references the undefying rates mdudng the cwsmight indes sweap rane and
London interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOE®) foreard rate to produce the daly
serement pice. These Securities s categonded o Lavel 7 of the far valise
Pberarchry

Lewel 3 trading nzaets and trading Habilities, ol faie value Whon o far

vk ation method is sppiied by the Manager that uses significant
uncbsenvable inputs, investmenis will be priced by 3 method hat

the Manager or persons aciing al fer drecton beleve refecs fair valee and
dre categnized o5 Lev 3 of the faF valae hierardry. The valuabion
technigues and significant inputs used in determining the fair vabues of
portiolio dasets and Bubaitees canegorized a4 Level 3 of the lir vahes itrandny
o i Tolows

Prcory pricing procedures jet the base price of & foed inoome seosing and
subsequently adjust the price proportionally bo market value changes of 3 pre-
detefraned ety deemed 10 be oomparable in doraton, generdlly 4 U5
Treasing or soversign note based on country of issuance. The base price may
be & broker-dedler quode, ransation price, of an intemal value as derfved by
anahysis of market data The base price of the seaxity may be retelon
perindic backs based on the aailabling of market daa and procedres
approreed by the Vaki ation Oommithes Significant changes in the
unabéansable-inputs of the proey pridng process. (the base price) would rewl
1 et anad peopoitonal chamded i the fairvalie of the sedunty Thess
sequities are categorized as Level 3 of the fair walue hierardyy.

Short-Lem debt instnomenits (sudh a5 commendal paper) having a remaining
maturity of B0 days of leis may be wakied 31 amortized gost, so long as the
arnoanzed cot value of suich shon-tenm debl e mumsnis is appraamately e
same a5 the fair value of the instrument as determined without the we of
amoitied oof valuaton. These secunilies de Calegodized & Level 7 or Lewd
3 of the far valise hierandvy dependng on the source of fhe base poice

4, SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

in} Delayed-Delivery TransacBons Certa n Funds may purchase or sell
senmities on 3 debinyed-delivery basis. These Iransaaions imahe &
comrnirnenit by 3 Fund 16 pordhade of Sl Seountes for a predeemunsd price
or yield, with payment and defivery taking place beyond the astomany
setiement pericd When delayed-delivery ransactions are culstanding,
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a Fundwill designate or receive 35 collaterd liquid assets in an amamnt
sufficient bo meet the purchise price o respedive cbligations. When
purchasng & seamty on 3 celaved-celivery Dasx, 2 Fand sames the rights
and mcs of ownenhip of the wdunty, snduding the rik of piice and Weld
fluctuatdions, and takes such fluctuations into aaount when determining it
WA A Fund may dispose of of renegofiate adelayed-delivery ransaction
alter it i entened into, which may fesult in 3 realied gain of loss. Whin

a Furd had s0ld & security on a delaped-defeny bunsis, the Fund does not
particpate im future gains and losses with respect to the seauity

b} Indlatisn-Indexed Bands Cerfain Fund may investin inflafion-indesed
bonds. Inflation-indeced bonds. are fived income secarifies whose prindpal
vaue s pericdcally adusted by the rate of inflation. The interect rate on
thore ok i4 generally fosd an issisance Al a rane kvt than typocal bonds
Crir the life of an infladon-indexed bord, howaever, interest will be pad
based on a pncipal vaise, wiich s adusted for inflation. Amy increase o
decregte in the peindpal amount of an indation-indeced bond will be induded
75 Incerest ingome on e Statenmenis of Operations, even though imvesions do
nod necenve their pricdpal ungl matunty. Repaymment of fae onginal bond
principal upon matwity (a5 adusted for inlation) is quarantesd in the case of
WS TS For bonds that do not provide & armlar quarnies, Be sduited
principal value of the bond repaid 21 manrity may be bess than the oniginal
principal

fc) Lean Participatiens, Assignments and Oviginations Corfan Runds may
Frees] B it el inttnuments whedh 308 pTERets in EM0un i oaed [o
lersdiers, of leniding Synalicates by comporate, gowernimental, of other bomowers
A Fund's investments in Boans may be in the form of partdpathons in loans or
assignments of 3 or 8 portion of loans from thind parties oo investments in o
arigrations of loans by the Fund A baan is often ademsid tered by 3 Bank or
oifter Snanddl insitution (the Tender™) that acts a5 agent for 3l holders. The
agent admingshers the rerms of the boan, &5 specfied in te loan agreement

A Furd iy imeesd in reodtiple series o Branches of & loan, shich may have
waring teres and camy different assodated fiks. When & Fund purchases
assigrments from lenders it aoguires dired rights against the boamowers. of the
loans. These loans may indude partidpations in bridge logrs, which are loans
Rakcen cut by bomawers hof & thof penod (fypcally Bess than one year)
pending amangement of mode permanent fnandng through, for ecampls, the
wsuance of bonds, frequenty high yield bonds issued Sor e purpose of
aoouistions

Thee tyges of oans and relaned insiments mowihich e Fumds IPuly ifroesn
ifclude, aiang cahers, Senior lodnd, Sebordaated ke (ndidng weoond
fen loans, E-Motes andmezzanine loans), whole Joans, commerdal real
estate and other commendal loans and soructured dpans. A Fund may
oflgimate boans or aoquine direct intenesks in boans throwgh primany loan
distributions andfor in private ransactions, in the cate of swhondnated loans,
there may be ggnificant indebiedness ranking shead of the borrower's
obligaton to e holder of such alean, Induding in te event of the
bromoweer's inscheengy. heezzanine loans are typically seasred by a pledge of
AN ey inteist in n:-:m;.c:ga-y: Ecercwer Bt oS e real einue rathes
1 ) in et i B edie! :-.}-

Imvesstmaen s in Toans may indiode unfunded loan commitments, which ane
ontrachaal obligations for funding Ununded |oan commitments may incuds
et credin faclives, whech may obligane & Fund o upply sddtons cath
o the bemowver on Gemand | Unfyrded Boan cosmimitments. eepreent & Liture
cbligation in full, even though a percentage of the wmmitted amount may
R be utdlized by the borfower. When investing in a lean partdpation

A Furd haes thee right 10 recene puments of prindpal, snberest and amy fees to
witich itis entitled ony from the bender welling the loan agresment and mly
upon receipt of payments by the lender from the bomower, A Fund may

recehve 3 commitment fee based on the undrawn porfon of the underbying
liree of credit porsoen of 3 baan. In cestan droumntances, a Fund may receive
prerudty fese upon the preparyreent of & boan by 3 borrower, Feel eamed o
paid are recorded a3 @ component of interest income o inberest expense,
fespectively, on the Stanements of Cperanicns

g of My 31, 2ME, the Fonds had no unfusded loan oommimments
ditanding

i Marigage-Belated and Other Azzet-Backed Secwrties Certan Funds
may Irvest in morigage-related and other asset-bached sequnities that diregly
of indieecly fepretent 3 patiapation in, of ane seduned by and payable from,
loams on real property. Morigagefelated seouities are areged from pook of
resicential or oommendial mongage lnans, Bduding morgage loarm made by
savings and loan irstingtions, morbgage bankers, comimencal banks and
others, Thise geaurinies provide b monthly pagment wiidh consises of both
inderest and prinopal . Interest may be determined by fined or adiustatde rates
Thee rate of prepayments on underying mortgages will affect the price and
volatility ol @ morigage-tel aved security, and may have thi effect of
shonening or extending the effective duration of the sexunity relative towhat
was aniiopated at the Gme of purchase. The Bmedy payment of prindpal and
insterestof certan mortgage el ated securities is guaranieed by she &l tanh
and crediit of the U5, Gowerrment. Pools greated and guasanteed by non:
gowerrenentsl s, nduding govennmen Spaftonsd (OFpORaHoNS, My be
supported by wanious forms of imsurance or guarantess, but there can be no
aumance that private imsurers or guaranbors can meet heir obfigations under
this insurance polcies of GUatanles srangements. Mamy of e ks of
Inwersting in muortgage-refated seourites seoaned by commendal mortgage
Ious. refiect dhee effects of local and ofher economic conditions on real estate
markets, the abdlity of tenants tomake lease payments, and he abdlity of a
property to atTact and reran tenanss These seouites may be less ligad and
may exbibat greater price wolatility than obher fypes of mortgage -related or
ather asset-backed seunties. Other gisel-badeed Secunbes are reaned from
ey Bypes of Assets, ndudng suta lissns, aed cand recenalies, home
equity loars, and shadent koars

{n} Collaternkzed Morgage ObHgatiens (“CN02") e debt oblicaton of a
leigad entity that are oollatér dfized by whole mortgage loans o private
mongage bonds and divided into dasses. CMOS are struchured into migtiple
ciasses, often refered bo as "randves®, with each dass bearing a different
stated matunty and entiled to a dfferent schedule for payments of pincpal
and interest, induding prapyments. CMI0Y may be less Bguid and may exhibin
greater price wolatlity than other types of mongage-relabed of el Dadked
senmities

{0 Swipped Mortgage-Backed Securities (™05 are derivative muls
dass mortgage saourities. SMES are wsually studured with wo dlasses that
Pl citterent proportions of the interest and pindpal davibusions on 4
pood of mortgage assets. An SMES will have one diss that wall receive Jl of
the interest {the interest-onby or "I dass), while the ather dass will reene
the entire prncpal (fe pincipal-only of "PO dass). Payments received for
K5 are mduded in inberest ncome on e Statements of Operations. Becayse
oy principal will B recerved a1 the manurity of an 10, adusments s made
iy he cost of e Seouity on g monthly busis unid mansing. These
adustments are induded inintersst income on the Statements of Operations
Paryrrents receivid for PO ne tredted 45 réductions 1 e G051 and par vilue
of the Seturilies.

{g) Clll Ered Debt Dbligat (*CDOE™) i Collaterali 2 Bond
Cibdigations (*CECs"), Collaberafized Loan Obligaons (“CL0s") and other
samilaty stnachured seamities CBOs and CLOs are types of sssebbacked
seamites, & CBO is & trust which i Badeed by o diversified pood of high nak,
Eicnw irvesiment grac fixed income seurities. A CLO- 5 4 tnast iypecaly
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collaterdlized by a pocd of loans, which may induds, among ofhers, domestic
and foreign serior seoured loans, senior unseured ans, and subordnate
corporate loans, induding loans that may be rated below investiment grade o
equivalentunrated loare. The rizks of an investment in a CDO depend fargety
n the by of the collaterd secunities and e dass of the COO N which

& Fund invests. T addifon o e pommal risks associated with fived income:
securities disoussed elsswhens i this repon and the: Funds’ Offering
Nemarandum (2 g, prepayment risk, aeditrisk, Hquidity sk, market sk,
siructural sisk, kegal e and intenest rane sk fwhich may be exacerbated if
thee fmtienesh rate payabie on a singctured finandng dhanges based on

el dipies of chanmges In intefest fates of imversely 1o chamges in intenest
rates)), CBOs, CLOs, and other €000 camy additional risks induding, but not
Ermiteed Eo, () the possibility that dstibutions from collateral securiies wil not
b aderuane o ke interest of ther pments, 1) the quality of the

ol aner sl wnary declice im vl of delaat, (5) & Fund iy Bvedt in CBOS
CLCH, of oihr C0O0% thag ae bondrat 1o 0% dasses, and fi) the
compsex stnncture of the seurity may not be fly wndersiood at Se tme of
irrvesitment ind mudy produce diputes with e iSsuer of phepedied
rvestmeent resulis

b} Parymunt In-Kind Securitiea Certain Funds iy imvedd in payiment inkind
sscuritiies CUFIKE"). PGS mary givee T idtue i opSon 48 eadh interest
payment date of making intenest payments in esther cash andvor additional
debit sequrities. Those addtonal debt seouides usally hawve the same tms,
duding maturity dates and interest rates, and avsodated rdks as the
origimal bonds The daly marker quotations of the celginal bonds may indud
e sarued inberest (refemed 10 a5 8 "dity price™) and requEne & pra fata
adustment from the unrealized appredafion o deprediation on imestments
B interest receivable on the Statements of Assets and Uabilites

1 Reatricbed Swcuritien Certain Funds may hobd mvestrments that are
subjec? fo begal of conmraciua restrictions on reiale. Thee secumtes may be
sold pervasely, but are required oo be regeiered o exempied from soch
registration befione being sofd to the public Frivate placement sequrities are
generally consdered 1o be resmcied Dispodal of resmicmed securitles may
imwolve Bme-corsuming negotiafions and expences, and prompt sale at an
acoephable price may e difficult b achieve Restricted seqwitses outstanding
Aty 31, 2008 ane dackesed in the Notes to Sdwedule of e iments

i U, Gavernment Agencies ar Gow - Sp d Enterpori

Coeatain Funds may ivwest in seamities of 145 Govemment agencies o
govermment-spon sored entesprises. U5 Govemment seaxities ane
obligasons of snd, in cerlain cates, quarinteed by, the U5 Gowsrment, it
agendes of minamentalites. Sofme U5 Goverfment secunbies, sudh a5
Treasury bllls, potes and bonds, and sequrites guaranteed by the Government
Hasonal Morigage Asodation (SGNMA® or “Grnie Mae™), & wpponed by
thex full faith and aredit of the L 5. Government; oshers, such & thase of the
Federal Home Loan Banks, ane supported by the right of the issuer 1o bomow
from the LS. Department ol the: Treasry (e *U 5 Tresduery™; and others,
ek &% tvpse of the Federd Manongl h"-'f[-}n- Ao aDon [F NN of
“Fannie Mae™), e apported by the desaetionary authonty of the LLS
Gowenmen 0 purchide the ey us!:;".i[n id, U5 Givermiment seames
may inchade 2ero cospon secunities. Zem coupon sequrifies do nod distritute
inbenest om & curmend bads snd tend b be sulject w4 greale fisk than
inlenes | =paying securities

Govemment-related guarantors (&, not backed by the full faith and aedit of
the W% Govemnment) indude FNMA and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporaton ("FHLMCT of “Fredcie Mac™). FRMA 15 2 govemmen -4pon sored
corporation, FMA purdhases cofvenbional (e, not irdined of guaranteed by
Ay gowernment agency) residenitial mortgages from a list of approved
sellerienicers which indude state and federally chartered tinings 2nd boan

assodations, mutal savings banks, commenda banks and aredit unions and
monmpage benkers, Fass-thiough secunies Haued by FHMA @ quarantesd &5
o timety payment of prndpal and interest by FIMA, but are not badesd by
the ful faith and medit of the U4 Govemnment FHLMC isuses Particpaton
Cenificates (FC87), which ane pass-thicugh teauites, eh rpreuning &
landrvided intenestin 3 podl of resdential momgages. FHLMC guaranness the
timedy payment of interest and Wtimate cofection of princpa, but PCs are not
bk by the hull aith and credit of the U5, Gonermmment

Rl -8 TN SArSMEGRES G b s vahene 8 Fand ek oo etend the
EXEATMCN OF Frosfunity of o poditon, wsch ¥ 0 TBA security on a0 underbing
assed, by dising out the position before expiration and opening a new
posiion with respect 1o substantialy the same ynderying asset with a late
expiration date. TEA secunites purdhased or sold &e reflocted o the
Statements of Assats and LiakaSties a5 an awel o Habilty, respectively

i When-lasued Tremactions Certan Funch miy punchase of Sell seomiie
on awhin-istued Bags. Thess Banisctiond sre mbde condiionaly becisse 4
sequiny, although authorized, has not yet been issoed in the market, A
comemiment is made by a Fund bo purchase of sell these senmities for 3
priadetermined prce of yisld with payment and delivery taking place beyand
thee pstomary setement penod A Fund may sell when-issued seasifies
before thiy are detivened, which may result in a realized gain or loss

5. BORROWIMNGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

The folkowing disdasurnes contan information on e Funds” abdity solend or
borrow Cah OF SeCurities 1o fhe extent penmitted under te Offering
Miermorandum, whidh may be viewed 35 borrowing o finandng wansacions
brg thee Fumds. The location of these instruments is desaibed below . For a
detsled desaiption of aedit and coanterparty rigks that can be assodated
with hl.t:-_mﬂ:-‘_‘rj. A oheer Iinamr.] Iranahctions, plédie See Note 7,
Principal Risks

in} Repurchaze Agresmmats Certain Funch may engage in repurchase
agreements. Under She terms of a typical repurchase agreement, a Fund takes
possession of an underhing debt obligation (col steral) subjedt to an
clfication of the seler 1o repurchase, ad & Fund Do reell, the obligation a1
0 agresd-upon price snd Bme 0 a0 open Mty repuichiate grement,
thene i no pre-determrined repurchase date and the agreemeant can be
tesmrinated by the Fund o counterparty at any time. The market vaue of the
collateral must be equal to of exceed the totad amount of the repurchase
ctiigations, induding interest Repurchase agresments, induding acomaed
invtrest, ane indhuded on the Statements of Assars and Lisblites. interest
earned 15 recorded a5 & companent of intzrest ingome on the S1atements. of
Operations. in periods of indeased demand for collaterdl, a Fund may pay a
fee for receipt of collaterd, which may reult in interest expense to the Fund

(b} Reverzs Repurchase Agresments Cerlan Fund may enfief inlo nevers
repurchase agreements In & reverte repunchase sgreement, a Fund defvers a
seqmityin sxchange for cash 10 3 fnandal institugion, the countematy, with
& gl tameonrs agreement W reparchate tee same o wbstantally the sams
sednity atan agreed upon price and date. In an open matuwity reverse
repurchase sreenent, there is no pre-getermined repurchase date and the
BFEEET Can b et ey the Fund or COURTEEArTy AL &y ime. A Fend
i entisd 1o regeive prncipa and Bises payments, i iy, Fdde 00 L
seity delivered b0 the counterparty during the term of the agreement Cash
ricihied in exchange for dedirities deiveted plus soiusd inbenest pagrents i
bee riade by & Fusnd bo counberparties ame reflecied & a liakilty on the
statements of Assets and Liabeties interest payments made by 3 Fund to
Counterparties ane recorded & a component of inferest expense on the
Statements of Operations. In penods of indreased demand for the security,
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& Furvd mupy receive a fee fior wse of the security by the counterpary, whidh
may result in nterest income ko a Fund. A Fund will segregate asels
determined ko be liquid by FIMC O or wall athensise cover its obligations
URCKT fevErie repunchass Mreemenis

{c] Sale-Baybacks Certan Funds may enter into finandng ransactions
referred to & “sake-buybadks’. A saletuvbade ramaction comsists of 3 sale of
asearityby a Fund to a finandial institution, the counterparty, with a
smultaneous agresment to repurchase the same of substantially the same
SECUriny At An sgreedhupon peice and date A Fund 4 mol entitled o redeive
frindapal .r’:dlrl:n-:-_-:.‘.;la',fﬁ-:nll._ i Ty, M on thie te0aniey sold to the
counterpanty during e term of the agreement. The agreed-upon proceeds for
securities B0 be repurchased by 3 Fund ane reflected a5 a liability on the
Sraternenits of Assets and Liabifites. A Fund will recogniae net income
represented by the proce differenitial bebweten the price receved for the
francierred sequnty and the aoreed-upon repurchase price, This is commonly
rederred 1 &5 the “price deog® A price drop consisis of ) the foregone interest
and infabonary inoome adjusiments, if amy, a Fund would hawe athenaise
received had the security nod been sold and (i) the negotiated finandng temns
bttt @ Funad §nd ousn ierpamy Fl:t-_-gt,nv ntenest and inflationany Income
addustrments, il amy, are reaonded 35 mponen s of indereit income on the
Statemnents of Operations. Infersst payments based upon negotated finandng
fenms made by a Fund 1o counberparties are reconded as a component of
befedl et On The Sextements of Operations. in peods of indeated
dernand for the sedunity, § Fund may receh a fee for use of the seasity by
e countedparty, which may resalt in interest income to a Fund. A Fund will
segregate assers determned to be Buid Dy FINKO or wal offenstie cover i
obliGaSons under sale-buvbade ramaceons

[d) Short Sales Certain Funds may enter into short safes ransactions. Short
sakes ane tramsactons in whidh the Fund selis a sequrity that it may not qwm

A Furidl may make ghoet sales of ssountes o () offset podential dedines in
long positions in simdar searities, (i) o ingease the fedbility of the fand,
(i foar imees e £ requm, (v &5 pan of a dsk abmage strategy, and () a5
part o its oversll podtiolo mansgEment Sategies imohang the use of
derivative indtnaments. When a Fund engages in a short sake, it may bomow
e serity sobd short and deliver it to the counterparty. The Fund wil
ordnaily have to pay a fee or premium o bomow 2 saurity and be obligated
R fepy the lender of the sedurity amy deddend o interest that aomees on the
security during the period of fe loan. Securities soid in short sale Tansaciom
and the dividend or interest payable on sudh seaurities, if amy, are refected as
payable for shor sales on the Statements of Assers and Lisbities. Short saled
expose e Fund oo the ik that iTwill be requined to cover its short positon
at-.a e wihen the secarity oF other asset has appredated in walie, this
resulting in [gsses o the Fund . A shoet sale 5 "aganst the b if

thex Fund holds in its portiodio o has the right fo aoguire the seaurnity sold
short at no additional cost A Fundwill be subfect to addSonal risks o the
extenit that it engages in shork sales that are not “against the box * A Fund's
krss on 3 short sale ould theoretically be wnlimited in cases where the Fund is
unable_ for whateser reason, o dose out its shaoet paosidon

& FINAMCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The fidllowing disdrsures contsin information on how and why the Funds use
Tinanca derivative insnaments aod how fnancal dervative ndruments
aftea ®ie Funds’ famndal podition, st of aperadand and cash floss. The
lacation and fair vakee amounits of these instruments on the Statements of
Assers and Ligbilities and the netrealized gain doss) and net change in
unrealized apprediation (depredation) on the S1atements of Operabiond, each
canegorized by type of finamoal dertvative coniract and related fisk exposure,
are induded in a tabie o te Nodes 10 Schedule of Fvestments The finanaal

derivative instnoments outstanding a5 of period end and she amounts of net
reabzed gain (oss) and net changs in unnelized appredaton (degredaton)
o finanad derivative instnaments duwing the period as dedosed in the
hates 1o Schedule of vestments, sene as indicatons of the volume of
financial dededtive 3ty Tor e Furds

in) Ferward Foreign Cumency Contracks Coiman Funds may enle o
fomward Soreign qumency contracts in connechion with satfing planmed
purcharses of sabes.of securities, to hedge the arrency sxpodure assodated
wilh Some of Al of 3 Fand 5 Se0unites of &5 4 part of an Ereiiment Srategy
A forwied hateign Qutendy CORIRBCL i e Agreement Bebaden tad partics 1o
bary and sell 8 qumency at a set price on 3 fiture date The markef value of 2
Torward Soresgn cumency contract Bucheates with chandges in foreign asrency
exchange rates. Fonwand fofeign qufnendy dontracts ane marked to market
daby, and the change in value is recorded by a Fund a5 an unredized gain o
lorss. Readiped gaing of bosses are equal to the difference between the value of
the contract at the Sme ilwas opened and the value at the Hime it was dosed
) e reconded upon deliny of receipt of the QErency. Thete Conracs
ey irvolve e Ask in exead of the unmeaimed gain of loss mefeded on
fhe Statements of Assets and Liabilifies In addiion, a Fund could be exposed
o risk: if she countenpardes are umalble b meed the terme of the contrads or
thie waluie af the aumency changes. undavorably 10 the fecional arnengy. To
matigate suchi risk, cash or seomities may be exhanged 2 collateral pursaant
i the terms of the underhying conracts

Certain hunds having a hedged dass may also enter into formard forsign
ouimendy condracts designid to offset the effect of hedging at the Fund level in
oeder to Beave the hedged dass with an exposure bo cunrendes other than the
tuncBional asmendy Thire can be 1o Quarantee that these dins spedfic
fomward foreign cumency contracts will be successhdl

{h) Felures Comtsmcts Certain Funds may enter into fubores confracts. A
futres confract is an agreement 1o buy or sel 3 seqanty of ofher assetfor a
setprice on & fulure date. A Fund may yse fubwres aoniracts ko manage its
exposute B the Securities markens of 0o mMovements in intenest rates and
curendy walues. The primany riges assodated with the wie of fuhees confrads
are the imperfect ooerelation beswesn the dhange in market vabee of the
seciarites hedd by & Fund and the prices of futures contracts and the possibility
of an iliquid market. Fusures contracts ace valued based upon heir quated
daly setfernent prices. Upon entening into 3 fubures confract, a fund is
rescuingsd 1 chepatit with 105 Tutured Decker a0 amdount ol cath, U5
Governiment and Agency Obligations, or sefect soversign delt, in accordance
with the initial mangin requirements of the broker or exchange. Futures
ConEracts are mankoed 1o madkel daly and based on such movements in e
price of the contracts, 3n appropriate payable o recetvable for the change i
vakse may be posted of colledied by the Fund (“Futanes Variaton Mangin™)
Gaims or lesses are remgne ped bat naot ansidersd realized unitil the confracts
eapine or dode. Futures confrads indobve, bo varying degrees, risk of lossin
excess of tie Fuliees Vanatoa Magn indinded within exchange aded of
ceniraly dianed finandal derbeative instruments on the Stanements of Asses
and Liakilifies

{e) Opthens Contrmets Certain Funch maywiite o purchase cptions 1o
enhance retums or b hedge an existing positon or futare investment. Centain
Funds maywrite call and put options on secunities and finandal dervative
instruments ey own or inwhidh ey may imest. Weiting put aplions tend
Iy inorease & Fund®s enpdane 5o the underdying instrament. Writing call
pions tends 1o dedeise & Fund's expasune 10 the undehng intlrument
When  Fusdwiines & call of pul, an Smaunt equal to i premium feceved is
ristonded a5 3 ligbility and sulbiequently marked b makodt 10 refled the
cument vaue of the option writien: These lighifities are induded on the
Stanerrents of Assrtd and Liabiitied. Premmiurms neceived Snom wriling aphiond
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wihich eapire are treated as realizd gains. Premiumes recefved from wiiting
opios which are exercised or dosed are added oo the procesds of offset
apaimst amounts paid an e undething batures, swap, seamity of qamency
tranzaction o determine the realized gain o loss. Certain opSons may be
il wa I rerriuns 00 B determinied on J Tulune date. The presvaums.
these optioes are based upon implied vola®ity parameters at spedfied lems
A Fursd as 3 sweriter of 2n option has no contnod overwhether the underlying
irvsarumnend miay be sold ("cal®) of purchasad ("put™) and &5 a result bears the
ket ride of an undavorable change in the peice of te insrumentunderking
1o wmilten opfion There i the risk 8 Fund may not be able to enter b a
dosing ransaction becarse of a0 iligad markes

Ceatain Funds may atso purchase put and Call options. Purchasing Call oplions
e b ivrease a Fund's exposure to the underhing msument. Purchasing
put opdions ends to decrease a Fund's exposure o the underying insrument
A Furdl pays & presmium which i inducded 45 an asset on the Statements of
assers and Liabdides and subsequenty marked 1o market to reflec the
current value of the option. Fremiams paid for purchasing options whidh
eapire ae eated B4 redlized losses. Certan options may be purchaied with
premiums to be datermined on a future date: The premiume for these options
are barsed upon implied woladlity parameters at spedfied terms. The risk
asgoayted wath punchising put and all opsons i mited bo the premium
paid Fremiums paid for purchasing options which are enendsed or dosed are
added to she amoynts paid or offse! againgt the proceeds on the underying
iFvestment iransaction to determine the realized gain or loes whien the
underhing ransaion & eeoied

Interest Rate Swaptisns Certain Funds maywiite of purchase inferest rate
swaptions which are opBons fo enterino a pre-defined swap agresment or
B shorten, extend, cancel of athenwise modily o dsting svap sgeement,
by some specified date in the futyee. Theweiter of the swaption begomes the
COUnTEPaTy b e s If the Dier exerdses The interestrate svaption
agreement wil specify whether e buyer of the swapbon will be a fized-rale
TeQEver oF & Scedhrale puyed UDON Exsrdise

Credit Deloul Swaplions Cenan Funds maywilie of purchase oedi defau
S apdons fo hedge exposure 10 e gedt o of an investment withoo
making a commitment 1o the underying instnament. A aedit default svapition
i an egation 1o sl of by credit protedion 10 & ipecibc referene by entiring
nito & pre-defined dwip agreement Dy Some specbed dan in the funse

Fereign Camency Dplions Certan funds may write of puschase foregn
airency options 10 be used a5 a thort of fong hedge against possible
variations in fopsgn eachange rates or 50 Qain eposure Lo foreign cumendes

Optioss sn Securiien Cortain Funds may wiite o puithoie options on
securilies i enhance reums of G hedge an wdsting position of fulure
irvestment. An option on 3 seoenity uses 3 pedied seourty as the underiying
instrument for the opdaon contract

Inilatien-Capped Optiens Cortain Funch muywrite of purchase inflaticn
cappéed apions to enhance refrns of for hedgeng opportunibes. The purmose
of puenchinsing inflation-capged cption §5 0o probect a Fund trom mmBation
erction ahove @ certaln rate on @ given notonal exposre. & Soor can be
used 10 give downside protection 1 invesmenis in inflaton-dinked products

Interest Rate-Capped Options {ertain Funds may wiite or puschase interest
rae-cappid oplions 10 enhande returms of Tor hedging opportunities. When
& Furndwiites an intinisd fate-capped option, 30 amnomt equal 1o e
premiism recefved i regoeded a5 3 Balility and subsequently marked i
mnarket to refleoy e ourentvalue of e apthon wiitten, Wien 3 Fund
punchases an interest rate-capped option, the Fund pays a premium which i
recorded a5 an 236t and sabsequently marked to market to reflect the
aurrent value of the option. The parpose of pardhardng interest rate-capped

option: is bo probect a Fund from Soating rate risk abowe a certain rate on a
giwen notional expaosure. A foor can be used to give downside protection to
inteS LTS, i Ierest rate linked products

Dptiens on Exchange-Tinded Futares Coatracts Cortan Funds rmaywiite o
purchase oplons on exchange-traded futwes contracts (“Futures Option™) 1o
hedge &n exdsting positon of fulore imessarent, for speoulative pumposes of b
manage exposune B0 market mowements. A Fufures Cplion is an oplion
contract inwhich the underying insrument s a single fubores contract

{d} Swap Agreemants Certain Funch may invesl in wwap sgresments Swap
yeements are bilaterally negatiated sgreerments betwesn 4 Fund and a
counierparty 1o enchange o ywigp investment cash Bows, aviels, foreign
cumences of market-linked renems a1 spedfied, future intenals, Svap
Beaients may be privately negotiated in e over She counier markel (0TC
waps™) or may be deared through a shird party, known as 3 central
counierparty of derivatives dearing onganization (“cenirally deared swaps™)
A Fund may enler into asset, aedit default, ooss-cumrency, inferest rate, total
retum, vanance and other fomms of swap agresments to manage IS exposiee
W L, Cummency, inkisesT fate, oofmmodity, equity and nflation risk_ in
connection with these agresments, securities or cash may be identfied o
collateral or margin in @gordance with e tenms of te respective swap
Feements o provide aseets of value and recourie in the event of difault or
bakruptoyEnsohenty

Centrally deared swaps ae marked to market dady based upon vakeations as
detemined fom hhe underhing contract of in aotoedance with the
requirements of the central countempany of demedtves deating ofganizaion
Changes in market valuee, if any, are refleced & a component of net duange
in urealized apgredation (depeeciation) on the Siatements of Operations
Daily chanages in valuwation of entrally deaned swaps (“Swap Varaton
Wangin®y, if any, are disdosed within centrally deared financal dervative
IsIruments on Se Stiterments of Assets and Lisbilides. OTC Wi pivmnents
recedved of paid at the beginning of the measurement pariod are induded on
the Statements of Assets and Liabilities and represent premiumes paid or
redenved upon entening into the Ssap sgesment 1o compeniate for
diflerences between the stated temes of the swap agresment and prevaling
market condidons [oedi spreads, cumendy exchange raes, enbenest rates, and
other relevant fadors). Updont premivms recened (pand) ane initially reccnded
5 Tiabilites. {assans) and subsecuently mared ro marker oreflect the Quent
vakoe of the swap. These upfront premiums are reconded 35 realized gains or
lossies, on the Statements of Operations upon termination o maturity of the
e, A luidison piynenl redened of mdde &1 B leiriation of the Svap
Is recorded 2s realzed gain or loss on the Statements of Operations. Met
periodic paymen s received of paid by 2 Fund are induded & part of reakized
gairs of bosses on the Statements of Operations

For purposes of applying o Fund's investrnent polides, and restniaion, svap
Eyeenents ofe generally vilued By the Fund a market vilue In the cise of 2
aredit delault vap, in spphdng certain of $he Fund's mvetiment polsdies and
restrictons, S Furd wall value the cradil defadd swap it noBonal value o
5 bl eopodune value (e, the sum of the noSonal amaunt Bor She conrad

il tree ket value), but may value e medt defalt svap atmaret value
for purposes of apphing cermain of the Fund's other mvestment polices and
resirichions. For example, the Fund may walos gedit default swaps at hul
eposnre value Sor purposes of the Fund's aredit quality guideines (if any)
bescause anch value in general better reflects the Fund's actual eoonomic
exposure during e termood the aredit defauit swap ageement. As arewlt, a
Fund iy, BT B, R Aolond] Sodune 0o a0 Sieel dads hebone |'|-'.I||'||=fl
thak 5 (Fele of Isaer han thes Sratea Dt of resmeton rabed in the

Fund's Céfering Memorandimn. In $his combesdt, both the notional amoant and
the markel value may be positive or negative dependng on whether the Fund
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it selling or buying prodecion through the oedit defiadt swap. The manner in
wihich certain seomities of other instuments are valued by the Fund Sor
purpasies of applying investment poaides and restricions may differ from the
franner in which those invesiments e valed By other Types of investan
Entering inta these agreements involves, tovaning degrees, elements of
nleredl, onedL market and doasmentiBon rik in edoeds of the amounts.
reogpibed on the Manements of Assets and Liabiites. Such ndks imeohse the
posdbdity that there will be no liged market fr these agreements, that he
oounberparty 1 the agreements may default an its obligation to peform o
drsagres &5 0o the meaning of contractual teems in the agreements and that
thoere amay be unfavorabie changes in interest rates

A Funids masdmum nisk of loss from countenpary et fg s e disooun ted
ik walue of th cash fowd 10 be received Fom Hie countenpadty over e
contracrs remaining R, ta the extent that amount i posite. The ek may
b rrEtigated by haning a masker netting arangerment betwesn 3 Fand and
the coumierparty and by the pasting of collaneral to 3 Fund 1o over  Fund's
x50 the Counlerpey

Credit Default Swap Agreements Cortan Funch may use aed default
andps of Corporate, |oan, sovereign, LS. munidpal o LS. Tredsury istuees o
prosdde @ measure of proteciion againa defauhs of the fsuers e, wredace
fisk wathere & Fund owns o his e 1o the referenced obifgation) of (o
Lake 3y acirve Rong o shart paosi on walh resped b0 de likelibood of 2
partiodar issuer's default Credi defaull swap agreemen s involve ane party
mraking 4 streaen of panmnents (refemed to i e buyer of prosecton) &0
anciter padty (the seber of prodecton) in -:'.(I_ngl,' for thee right 1o recetve &
spenfed et in the evern Siat the referenced entity, ot:if_u'.r_q'l of B, i
speded in the avap sgreement, undengoes & erlan dedil evenl A b seller
of prosection on dredit default aavap agreements, 3 Fund will generally recie
from fhe buyer of protecsion a fixed rate of income throughout the tem of the
swap provided that tere is no cedt event As the seller, 4 Fund would
effectively add leverage toits podtfolo because, in addiion b its total net
assety, the Fund would be subject 1o investiment exposure gn te nobional
amoint of the tgh

If & Fund &5 a seller of protection and a credit event coours, as defined under
the temes of that partiodar swiap agresment, & Fund will elther () pay 1o e
benver of profection an smount equal 1o the notonal smount of the avap and
take defivery of the referenced obligation, other deliverable obligatons: or
undertying seaurithes comprising the referenced indexor i) pay anet
semlement smount 0 the form of Cish of Sequnties equal 10 the nabonal
amaunt of the swap bess e recovery value of the referenced obligation or
unickertying seorifes comprising te referenced index i a Fund is 3 buyer of
protction And 3 cedil event ooours, 3% delned under S berms of that
parnadar s AFeemenl. 2 Fund will aithés (i ricenss Inom the Sellér of
protection an amount equal to the notonal zmemt of the swap and deliver
thea refierenced obligathon, other deliverable obligasons of underlying
securities compising the reterenced indiex or (i} recen a net setSement
amcuntin the form of cash or sequrities equal 50 the notonsl amount of the
swap less the recovery value of the referenced obfigation of undeshying
securities comgiising the referenced index. Recoveryvalises are esimated by
et miakes congidenng eher indusany suandand recovery riales of sty
spedidic factors and considerations until 3 gredit event ooowrs. if a aedt event
has ooourmed, the reasery vakoe is determined by a fadfitated ascion
wihireby a menimum mambé of alowable brober bids, tagether with &
spedifed valuation method, are used o caloulate the settement valee, The
abllity v deliver otver obfigations may result in a chea pest-to-deliver cption
{the buyer of protection's right bo choose the defiversbie dbligation with the
bowweest ey followang & credi event)

Credit default swap agreements on aredit indices imvoho: one party making a
meam of payTments b0 another party in exchange for the mght 10 receive a
specified retum i the event of 3 write-down, prindpal shortfall, interest
shortfall or default of a8 or part of the referen ced entities comprising the
aeditindec A credtindes is o basker of oreditinsiruments of expdiunes
designed 1o be representative of some pa of the oedit market 33 awhole
Theue inchices. ane made up of reference aeding that are judgid by a poll of
dealers to be he mosk Bauid sntbesin te aedl default seap markel baed
o the seschor of the indee Components of the indices may indude, but are
it limited o, imeesiment grade securities, high yield seauifies, ssiet-backed
Seuities, emeigng markess, and’ o various aedt radngs within each seqor
Creschl inchoes ane whded usng credin delauln wvaps valh Standsndzed terms
indiading a ficed spread and standard maturity dates. An inde cedit default
Sedp relerences o Bhe names in the index, and if there i5 3 default, tie oredl
el i Seithed hased on that name's weight in the index. The cormpiosition of
the inchces changes pericdicalty, uswally every six monthes, and for most
idlces, each name has an equal wehght in the Index A Fund may use oedt
default weaps on aedt indces to hedge 3 portfolio of credit default swags o
borus, wehich i less expensive than itwould be S0 buy many edit default
Swaps o achieve & Sl eflet. Credit default swiaps on indioes ane
instrurments for protecting investors awning bonds agains default, and
traders e Heem 1o speadabe on changes in cedit quaity

implied et spreads, represented in absofute terme, whilized in determining
the markel value of et defaull swap agresments on Corporate, koan,
sowereign, U5 municipal or U5 Treasury issues a5 of period end, if any, ane
eschosid in the Bates 1o Schedule of Ivestrments. They sene a5 an indicator
of thie durent Satus of papmenibertonmunde i sd mepretent the likehood
o risk of dedaulr dor the referenced entiny. The implied aredit spréad of
partioular referenoed entity reflects the aost of buyingtselling proteciion and
iy inchede uplront puryTrents recuined o be made 10 enbe @lo the
ayeement Wider gredit spreads represent a detenioration of the rederenced
enfity's aedt soundness and a greater likelihood o risk of default or ofher
aredit event ooowring & defred under thie terms of the sgresment. For aedit
defaull ywap agreements on assetbacked tecuniBes and cedit indices, the
quated markes prices snd resalting walues seree 35 the indicator of the ourment
stafss of the paymentperformance risk. InTeasing market values, in absobate
termes when compared to the notional amount of the wwap, represent a
delenoration of te refesenced enitys credit Soundniss and 4 greate
likelitvood o sk of defau o cither aredit ent oo0umng 5 defined under
the terme of the agreement

Thee madimum potential amount of future paments (undisoourted that

& Fund a5 0 seller of peodection could be requined o make under & Tedt
dtiault dwip areement equalks the ibSional wount of the sgrecment
Hational amounts of exch indhvadual medit default wap agreement
cutstanding &s of period end for which a fund is the seller of profection e
desdlosid in tht Mates 1o Schedule of Inisiments. Thide potential amounts
wowikd be partiafty offset by any recovery valoes of the respeciiee referenced
olfigations, upfront payments recesoed upon entesing intg the agresment, of
net amsumnts received from the setflement of buy profection dedit defaull
Swap agesments enfered info by 3 Fund for the same referenced entity o
entifies

Cress-Currency Swap Agresmsents Cartin Funds may enter mio ooss-
CUIMEI Oy Sy AT Enmevis 10 Qaim of mitigane exposure b aumendy rik
Cross-Oamency Svap agreements imvoke bwo parbes eschangnig two different
cumendes with an agreement fo reverse the exchange at alater date at
spealied exnchangé ranes The exchange of curmendes a1 the Endeption date ol
the confradt takes place at Se curment spot rate. The re-sochange at matwity
iy ke pl 0% 31 thie Samee exchange rabe, 4 spedfied rate, o the then
QuUITEnE sl fate. Intereit parments, i appiicabde, ane made bebaesn the
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parties based on interest ratis avallable in the two qumendies at the incegtion
af the oontracy The beems of Cross-Cuimency Swag Conbracts may extend dor
many years. Crossusmendy vaps ane wsually negotiabed with commendal
and imvestment barks Some coss-qumency swaps may not povide for
exchanging priod pal cand flows, Butanly for exdungeng interest Cash Tiows

Interest Bnte Swap Agreements Cerman Funcs aie slyscn 0intees iae
rizk eposyre in the nomal course of purseng ther imvesiment objactives
Thie value of the fooed rate bonds that a Randholids may deaease if inferest
rates rise. Tohelp hedge against this risk and so maintain its ability to
gehErane oo b previling ket ralid, & Fusd My ente oo inseedt
FaME Sap greeminilh INDENCSL FabE iwap agredmaents ifvobee e exchangs
Ery & Fund with another panty for their respective commitment to payor
receive interest on the potiona amount of peindpal. Certan forms of inferest
F#e Svap agreements may indisde: (i) intenest rate caps, under whidh, in
refum for a premmium, ofe party agress to malbe payments to Se ofher o he
extent thatinterest rates exceed 3 speaded rate, of "cap®, (i) interesirame
Boces, under which, i returm for @ premium, cne party sgrees 1o make
payments fo Se ofer to e edent that intenest rates fall below a spedfied
rae, or *foor”, (W) intenest rate mdlars, under whidh a party sefk a cap and
purchdies & Moo of WOk vl it &N anempd D protea |I‘,-_-Ir.j§¢ e[ vlened]
Tate mipements exoeeding givien minimum of mazimom ke, §v) calfable
Intenest rate swaps, under which the buyer pays an upfront fee in
condderation for e right to early termmate the svap Fansacion in whide,
at zero cost and 37 3 peedetemmined date and time prior 00 the maturity date,
() spreadlocks, which allow e interest rate swap users 1o lod n te
forwand differential {or spread) beteeen the interest rate wvap rate and a
spefed Derchmark, of §W) b s Swads, under which o padtes Can
exchange variable interest rates based on different sagments of money
markeis

Tolal Return Swap Agreements Cerlan Funds may enfer into total retum
S BPEEREnTS 10 QM of aeligane expodure 1o the undeying feferénie
Totil returm Swap Sgiements imaghee Cormmitmen i where dnge o rgltiple
cash fows are exchanged based on the price of an undetlying reference assst
and an o fimed or varabde inleed file. Toldl retum S gretrments mily
Irvobve commitments b pay interest in exchange for 2 marketdinked retum
Ore counierparty pays cut the wotal return of 8 spedfic underdying reference
asset, which may indude a single secunity. a bagket of sequrities, or an index,
and in return recerees a fooed o vaniable rate. A% the maturity date, a net cash
fows s exchanged whers Fre total tefum is equivalent to the return of the
undertyng rederence assel less & finandng rate, if any. As & receiver, 3

Fuand would recene payments based on gy poritive 10641 retem Jod wiuld
v payments in e event of anegathee total retum. A5 e payer, a

Fund would owe payments on any posithe botal retum, and would receie
payments in the event of 2 negafive total rehan

Velatility Swap Agreements Cérfan Fun may enier inho wlathy ovap
agreements, alwo krvown 25 Soweand vol atifity agresrments and volatilily seaps,
which are aopesments in which the counterparties agree 1o make payments in
connection with chinges in S volatibty (e, e magnitude of Gange over 3
spedified period of time) of an underlying reference irstnament, such 25 a
QurERdy, rabe, index, seounity of cther Snandal mstrument, Violatlin sigs
et thar parties o atnempt o hedge woladlity rak sndfor take positions. o
the progected future volaglitg of an undérying reference imsrument For
example, 3 Fund may enter into 4 volatility svap in ander bo take the podition
thal the reference insmament’s woladlity will inmease over a panticular period
of timee ff the refierence nitrument's vl atifty does increase gever the ipedied
fime, the Fund will recen payment from its coun terparty barsed upon the
amount by which the rederence instrument™s realized volatlity level emeads 3
wida ity level agreed upon by the parties If e reference nstrument's
ity does notingease over the specified fme, the Fundwill make a

payment o the countenparty based upon te amount by whidh the reference
invstruments realized volatlity kel falls below the volatility level agreed upon
by e parties, AR the matunty date, 3 081 ciih Mo |5 exchanged, where the
payodf amount is equivabent 1o the difference beteeen the redlized price
wartange of the |.:|-:!¢rl:,1m; st g e Atrike price multpled by the notdnal
MTGUNE. AL 3 recenver of the redized peice virarce, the Fund veould neceive
thee pryol? amaunt whien the neali ped poe vananoe of he undafying assets
geeater than the smibe peice and would owe e payoff amount when the
vanance il than the shilbe. As 3 payer of the realined price variance,

thie Fund wiould owe thee payol! amcuntwhen the realized price varanace of
the underheng Fiset 5 greater han the siike grice and would recene the
pargol amnoisnt when the vafiance i5 less then te sinke Pagments on 3
volatility swap vaill ba greater if they are based upon the mathematical square
of W_\-"ﬂllf:r:.' e, e medwned wolytiny multipdied [.l,':l'_.l?l‘l_ wihich 15 redired
W drb Sviiance™). This type of voldshiny swap 14 thequently eetered 1o a5 4
VRN S

7. PRINCIPAL RISKS

i 1k pdarrud courke of buiiness, the Funds (or Acquined Funds) rade
fnanaa insTurmenns avd enier nm Tmanos irEamons whers i of
potential boss exdsts due to such things 2 changes in the market {market risk)
of taduee or abdity of She other party 1.3 trnsaction B0 perlorm (dedit and
counterpanty risk), Sese behow for a detalled desaription of select prindpal
fisks

Fund of Fands To the extent that certain Funds invest substantialy all of their
Pepctive a4sets in Acgquired Funds, the righs ssodited with invisting in
thirde Fuanc will be chovely related to S gk dssodatedwath the seosites
arvd ottt et tmens el by She Acguired Funds The ability of the Funds s
achiewe Sheir respective investment olbgectives may depend upon the bty of
fhe Acquited Funds to achieve el regpecive Imvesment dbjecives Thera
an be no assurance that the nvestment objective of amy Aoquired Furd wi

e adhiewed The NAY of an Aaining Fund will fluctuate in response bo
changes in the respecie NAY of the Aoquinéd Fund e which st

I i pecemmadd courte of business, Aoquired Funds rade fnandal nssuments
and enter into financal transactons where rid of polential boss exdsts dus o
changes in the market (market risk), or faliure or inability of e other pasty to
3 MaNSAGN 0 pertom (edit and countamaty fak)

Markai Risks A Fund’s investments in finandd derieative instnements and
other financial insnpments expose the Fund 1o vanows dsks wch &, bt not
lireuted 1o, inberest rate, frefon (non-U S ) aimendy, equity and commodi ty
risks

It rate fiek i thee msk ihat fooed ncome Secuibes and ather indTuments
Pk by 4 Fund may decline in valoe becaire of an indredse in intenst ratel
As nomrinal interest rates nise, the vabse of cenan fived income seqmides held
bry 3 Fund is ety 10 dedrease & nomenal inferest rate can be desribed as
thie s of 2 real interest rate and an expected inflation rate. Inberest rate
dhanges can be sudden and unpredictable, and a Fund may bose money i
these changes are not antidpated by Furd management A Fund may not be
abe 10 hedige BganSE dhanges M nlenedd Fales of sy chodse nof 1030 30 for
oost of other regons. in sddifon, sy hedges PRy Frol ok a5 it ded

Durawon &3 medire used o detaming the senstary of 3 ssmunty™s phice o
changes in interest rates that inoonporates 3 seaunily’s yield, coupon, fing
mataity and call features, among other characlenstc. Convedly is an
sddanongl merue ued 1o wderiand & :)-‘umr},-'\ of Fumd's intefedt rane
SErd ity that medtures the rate of lj‘-J.-c_}t of araton ah Tefponse 10
changes in interset rates. Fioed inoome seauriBes with longer duratiors tend
I bee vt densgitee B0 changes In inderest fates, usually malong Mhem mone

Ervenil Bagard | May 59, 207
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wolatile than sequrities with shorter doradions. A wide variety of Tactors can
CAUSE Vet ra1es 10 156 (e g, centval bank monetary polides, nfiation
rates, general economic condiions, eic ). Under aament economic condiSons,
interest rates are near historcally low levels The Funds oamenty face a
Fesghtened bevel of infenest rate fisk, espidally Since the Federal Reserve
Eoard has emded its quantitadve easing program and has begua, and may
continus:, 1o raise interest rates. To the extent that the Federal Resero
continues i raise inlereslrates, thene is a rsk shat rates acnoss the finandal
aysbem may fise. Further, while bond markers have steadly grown over e
st thees decades, dealer “market making™ abilty has not bepr pace and in
some cases has dereased. Given the impormande of intemediany “market
rraking™ in creating a robust snd adive rarkel, fioed income sequsiies ae
curmendy Lacing increased volatik Ty o] Ity risks Al Of these Ractors,
oollectaety Anddion indhadually. could cause & Rund 1o lode walue. B the Fund
kst evugh wiue, the: Fund could Tace ncreased Unithelder redemptions,
wehich could force the Fund fo Bguidate imvestments at dsadvaniageous times
of jprices, therely adversaly affecting the Fund Also, the Fund may be
adversely affected when a lange Unithol der punchases or redeems large
amounis of unkts, which can cotur at any time and may impact the Fund in
fhe same manner 35 3 Fgh wolume of redempdon requests Lange Unitholder
ransactions may Impact the Fund's Bguidry aed net asset value. Such
ransactions may As0 ingexe he Fund's a8 QoS of othenaie
caiste the Fund io perfonm differensy than mended. Mofecrer, the Fund is
subgey b the risk thal other Linitholder s may make imesiment dedsicns
based on the choices of a large Uinitholder

Tio the extern fhat certain Funds may imeest in sedurities and instruments that
ane economically Hed to Ruvea, the Funds are subject b vanous rdes such as,
but not imited to politcal, econommec. legal, market and currendyrisks. The
ks include unceman political and sconemos polides, thor-tem rmarkel
volaility, poor acoounting standands, cornuption and ime, an inadequate
requltony system, and unpredictabde taxation. Investments in Russia ane
particul arky subyect bo the frik Ehat further soon onme? dancbond fuy be
imposed by the United $abes andior other coundries. Sudh sanctions, which
Ty imgact companies 1 many sechors, indoding enengy, finandal servces
and diferrie, among offvers, may negatiesly impact 4 Furd's pedormande
andior ability v achisve its Fnvestment objedive. The Rusdan sequnities
markey, as compared 10 L5, markets, hes significant price vilatling less
bquichty, a smaller mareet capitsization and a smaller namber of raded
securities. Adverse qurency eechange rates are a risk and there may be 3 lack
of availatle wmenoy hedging instruments. nvesiments in Russia may be
subgicn b the rigk of nat crplizaton of expeopriaton of sasets O, nanaral
s, melaks, nd tmber aocount for o 5 griscant porbon of RsEa's exponts,
leaving the couniry vulnerable io swings in world pricas

Forsign {non-U 5. ) seamities in this report ane dassified by the oouniry of
noorporation of a holdng. In certain instances, a sequnity’s country of
mcorporation may te diffenent from it country of eConomic expasune

It & Fumd awess cinectly in foreign (mon-11 5 ) cuemendcies of in secueites that
wade in, and recetve revenizes in, foreign dnon-U S ) currendes, of i fnandal
derivative imstnuments that provide exposze to foreign (non-UL% ) qemendes,
itwiill be subject to the ridk Sat tode curendaes will dedine in value relative
to the b qurrency of the Fund, o, i the Crve of hedging poti ioes, that

e Fund's base currincy will dedine in valug reld B 50 the cumency beng
hedged. Curmency rates in forsign countries may fuchuate sionifcanty over
short perinds of Bime for 2 number of regsons, indudng dhanges in interest
ratees, intervention (o the fadure to intensene) by U5 o foreign governments,
ceniral banks o supranational entities such as the nlemafona Monetany
Fund, oo by the imposition of cumency oontrols of other polidcal developments

i the Undled States or abroad. As a result, a Fund's nvestmeents in foreign
umendy-denominated seamities may reduce e Fund's retums

The market vialues of edquities, such & comman acs and prefimed securities
of eduity related imvestments sich as fubares and opfions, have historically
risen and fallen in periodic oydes and may dedine due 10 general markeq
condithons which are not spedficaily related to a pasticular cormpany, sudh a5
rieal or perceived adverse economic conditions, changes in the general
cauthook $0r COMPORATE Banings, changes in iNRErest of CUMency 131es of
atverse imvesion sentiment generally They may ako dedine due to factors
which affect & partinular industry or indusiries, sudh as labor shortages or
incredded prodecion oosls and competitve dondifions within an indusny
Citferent fypes of equity securites mayreact differeny to these
devsloprments. Equity sedurities and equity related imeettments generaly hine
greater markel price wolatiity than feed income seurities

Credit nad Counterparty Risks & Fund vl be exporied 10 ool nik 1
pariied, with wihiorm it rackes svd el 850 beat the sk of setement defauly
A Funed mirimizes concentrations of cedt sk by undertaking ransactions
with a large mumber of qussomers and oounterparies on recogrized and
reputale exchanges, where spglicable OTC dervative Iransactions are
subject 10 the rik that.a counterparty to the ransaction will not fulsil its
contractual obligations ko the ofwr party, a5 many of the protections affarded
v ceninally deared derheative Dransact oee right not be pealable for OTC
dermvatig randptions. Rl derneatves rpded on an exchange of through §
centra couriberparty, edit sk resides with the oeditworthiness of

the Fund's dearing beoker, or the deannghouse itelf, rather than 1o.a
CounBErparty in an OTC dervafoe franisction. Changes in requlaton nelating
W & Fund's use of defivatis ad rebyted instruments could pabentily Fmea
of impact the Fund's abslity to imvest in derivaoes, limit the Fund's abdity bo
ermploy Cerain srategpes that uhe denivatives andior adversely affect the value
o performance of dervarves and the Fund. A Fund could fose money if the
ioner or guasantor of 3 fieed income seaurity, or the counterparty 10 a
finandal derivative imsiruments contract, repundhase agreement of 2 loan of
partfolio seaurifies, is unable orunwiling to make mely prindpat andfor
InlEfES] Paymens, of T GIhenLe honof Il',l:'ﬂlljﬂllﬁﬂﬂ LEturi el and
finandal derfvative imsirements are subjedt to vanging degrees of aeditrisk,
which may be reflacted in oedit ratings

Similar 1o creditrick, a Fund may be exposed o counterpartyrisk, of the risk
that an insilution of other enfitywith which a Fund has unsetfed or apen
ransactions will default. PIMCO, as the Manager, minimizes countemparty
risks 60 the Funds trowgh 3 numiber of ways. Frior to entering into
TarsaTcn S with & e coumepamy, St PIMCO Counteparty Rk
Cornimiilee conducts an exteriihe aredit bniew of such counlerparty and must
appeove the use of such counterpaty. Furthemore, puraeant 10 the tems of
thie underkying contrac, to the extent Shat unpaid amounts owed 1o a lund
eaceed 3 predetemmned hreshold, sudh counterparty shall sdvance adiateral
tx a Fund iny the form of cash or seurities eqeal in value to the unpaid
amount owed to & Fund A Fund may invest such collateral in sequrities or
ather inssments and will jrecally pay interest 1o the counteErpaty o he
collaterd regened If the unpaid amount owed 198 Fund submequently
deeases, 3 Funsdwould be reguired (o retum o B counterparty all o a
portion of the collateral previcusly advanced FIMCO's attempls o minimize
COUNBERpar By Fitk My, hownver, be urrucoesthul

Ml transactioed o lited secuited arg setthedipaid for ypon delheny ising
appioved counteparties. The ride of defadt is considersd minimal, as delivery
of securites sold s only made once a Fund has received payment. Fayment is
made on a puedhase once the seamities have been defivered by the
aounieErnarty. Thee track wall Tl of sither party Tadls i mest it u‘jll;.j'lclﬂ

Brveail Baperd | Mug B2, 2008 &
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2 MASTER NETTING ARRAMNGEMENTS funres oormemission mendant (“FOM®) regetered with the Comm -'.'_F*r Fubares
Trading Comemissx d Slates, counleparty i
significandy reduced a3 areditors of an FC
-:;.a"--_l Hooun Addng
evenl of an FCM delauln soenamd Turther pesh |-1 Voo
margin, or changes in market value, ane eacthanged daily, but may nol be
mEthed B taiens Rtunes and dearsd OTC dermatiest. The muadost valus o
accunrdated urrealized apprediation (de filial mung
v unselded vanabon mangin as of pe
Schedule of knvestments

The Funds may be subject bo various nedting amangements (“Master
emiends) with sebect cound IS8T ALBEmS
rermns of certa sactions, and ane intendsd to redisoe th
associabed with relevant ransactions by spedfying credit prabection
meschanisms and providing stanclardzation that is intended o improwe fegal
certanty. Each type of Master Agresrnen QUveims Cerran types of
fransactions L1‘1E|-:rl typees of transactions may be traded out of different
legdl enlities or affiliates of 4 partiodar onganization, resting in the need for
mulipde agreaments with a single counterparty. As the Masfer Agreements

e 1o uni gat Gperatons of difd EREE Dyps, they dlow & Fuand 5o ntemationd Seap & 4 e, e
diode ol 3nd net its Kt Egosune 10 2 cuntepaty in the event ol a defadt Credhit Support Annexes ("IS0A Master n::r-_n-.-"rw ) u.}:m; m bl
walh respedt to 8 the transactces govemed under 2 snige Master derivative ransactions entered into by the Fonds with select counterparties

Agreement vwath a cour

s maniam

arty. For finandal reparting purpases the 00 Master Agresme prosisions for general obligatons,

'_‘-*J ements of Assets and Liablities generaly preten valive assets and reprasentations, agreements, oollal
bz &5 0N 3 gross bass, whidy refects the fll rigkes and exposiees, prior 1 Events of temrin
neiting elen | 2 [EITTEn oupistandng Fransactions

lection to berminate earfy
ETLATH a8, B
u;rf-"'.'hﬂl may contan eﬁ:.hme! prowisonms that add

n |:= yonid o of exds ing dally exposaee if the

ity beebinw @ prischictins These

h 2 thind-party qustodian. The market
stnaments, collaterdl recehisd or pledged,
Ty a5 of period end are diecdosed in the Nobes

Master Agresments can A4 help imit counterparty ns
ANORTENTE 3T pre-amandgs d“iL::'s-..-l. I-"\'c 5 l'-:ﬁl mast

a4, collateral bs routinety ransfemed

10 AR Fansa
under the ralev,

2500000
i Lindperd
dar cadh are genera red forms of
:;II ather forms of ASA Fale 1 SRS
m ;yb-ru:-.u-i.-:-.ﬂ-i ) ot Thae B cutBned in thi appdicatee hasier
gresment Securities and cash pledged a5 collateral are reflected a
assets on Ghe Staternents of Assets and Ligbilities a5 either .h:m'p rrﬁlci
wimen B At value (securit ﬂ:'l'.f[tl.'tﬁ
erl Teceved B not By heldin
refecied &5 & Rabality on the U wnls af A
Ty The marke i ar
5 & companent of MaVY. Th 0
sk ¢an change substantialy within a short period, a5 it
ach transacion ks e sedivan? Marster Agresimind

1 Sctvecdule Of IntveSaments

3

-A;_:wfﬂi—f’-l".'
& ¥ ARSI S B Dwetn the

sedect counterpartes M i AQresrnents mantan peovisions bor,
among other Fings, initlation, income payments, eents of default, and
e of mansactions under the Matter
o Adreernent, collateral recesved, and the net exposune by
ounherpanty a5 of perod end ane dcoged in te Notes to Schedule of
Imvestmen &

Mevirse Tepurchase,

e

Mtter 5 Farwand Trandadion Agres
AQreemends™) govem ¢ forward seting transa 5, such A TEA
secunities, delayed-gelivery or sale-tuiybadk ramacions by and
Behiean the Funds and select berparties. The Master Fonvang
Afresments maintam provisions for, g-ofher Shings, initiation and
confrmation, payment and transfer ts af default, tarmination, and
e of ondlal The Leding Ira
eidiged of recerved, amd emprsiine bry ootinberpart
pegicad end a0t dedosed in M Motes i Sdvedule of Inves

Custamer Aocount Agresments and related addenda govemn deaned
derivatives transactions sudh as fubwes, ops
derivatives. Such ransaciions requi 'ﬁ;-:r.hru:l.:d-n-
try it relivanl dearing o 'l--..l | & jn I’-:,‘ll M
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4. FEES AND EXPEMNSES

Each Fumd is subject 1o the follosing fees payable at the following annual rates (stated a5 a percentage of the average dally net assets of each Fund, or Class, if
applicable, Taken Separatehd

Pasy

Fusd W am et Ltvhy [ Agrmy Dhbimie
PRACT) Bermada Foresgn Liow Duragion Fesd 0% = = = =
RGO Barmuda U5 Lew Duiatos Fund 7% - - - e
MMCD Ewro Toanl Retwn Fand - D45 %" 0% %" % Rk
P Ricald atunn Fusd = [T s %" 0 % o
MG Shot: Tarm Sirategy

. J LYy = - -~ -~ —

- J D - - = = —

. JPY s %" - - ne %" aR%®

. usn (k3 S - - 0 %™ are”

P PR ey Fogwd fiptiors et i iy B ooy ot S vty s Oy e’ vt o S Fonar Shlfomr (8 pavr awores iy i i i (U 80 rmalieoes o B P vt wa s, &6 par e
e 0 P et A T vm o o e e el ety w0 PR et o 0 o i T o ity st of FUN T licen

T PG (s P Pt o o wikost a0 st e S vy (ot o % st o Ot el e Soines 059 e werswrs aplary o O ined L S5 ol o o Pl s ! Beaeis 550 o pvnerm
dggier ot B ool U 50 celins oF B Fuad it st dead & T8 v sivaare aigini ot ol o Shi Ford dand ikt o sl o LR B0 meifee

Tt PR it Tt Rt Fork! i e B o et ik M3 1 S oo O st b o Dl P 57 B nes 0T ' s agiplard (o P i SO ST sl i et ks S ity 055 o deviarse
T o P s (LR S0 paiicn of M sy st sty k) IS i e gty o 00 F e Kari s et BT o g of SLR 1 pl

Tt PN R Rt P oo syt 15 e Sy o Bl vt i o P it e o it el i Wliowect: 2 45°8 ot aties gl cxt e it S50 smilicnr o the Pt it ks, (1 puae s il vt
Bt o B st o P P el wddrtt, g B s oot ol of e P i e et 10 it o 5T it

et PP R R Ao o3 At B0 B0 S Traine Mot P ot 1 i e i) o e Yo i 17 N Dol s e o g (R BT el o e o e Bt £ AW e sy s
30 2 stk S50 malion o D el AerRsaaty 300 TSN pir e gt o0 BT o S Il et ST 30 s o 100 pallicnt

Tl P Rpe! Rl ool ot gualionT 00 8 st o it vienapy s 51 B s S o o Fianaf i follomes 196 e aeorsm iyl ot e ot D000 B of S Fowmers o oot 1 S5 e pvn pplid o
B soctivtnd! PN il oo P P o ded il el T it e gt o el OF et el ST ks ok ottty oF I Bl

Fitar {Tvir ix odyect 80 3 Sxiesagmesars! Mg et warunt Savgcl 2t B Sivsd of Jdagnies Vtwicurasd (upiogt o Bate Sxpecied e Jolicy rule T o of e Pl do Bad Serariaay e off Be gt mostsh OF B st o ol e
o o G, Bn P e w5 0 0 o (pain et ety o S Sl posiy rady i Bt 00900 1. e St Sowr wel B 1 17K o vnr et p it o S sl puslicy vt i St 51 0%, oo S Sap el
i G f Chonr oY A oF O rpeil by TR 8 i 1 R o O e i g EES o i T O D i ey TR 0 T graies, 00 1 e Wl B S oF Ul it Braaty. B
pedy st o B Cies o ot pmalally, Shee Aot wall Sinlic? 20 cmanvaiinds? ol Skat o i ppropee

Tt (Bt i sdyiec 0 9% eyl St worsnd P 0o S Sl of et Lisbacun’ (gt (ol Rt Sgainttied! i iy i3 Y it ' Sl Bl it ey o B it it 0 i iy e 11
ot T, Pt ot Vot bl 7 0 0t L o e el ey o D 1T 7 L Dt el bl 2 T o i S ekt o DO il ey B ) et 1 596 P 3 et Dt ot il
P o i i sk e o Pl o ey Pl o i 1S T, Dt Pl it il o o P o il it i o I o ey S o OO o i, e B S il S ) T o i it el
ey e Eor e D o 0t il [ iy il T B0 AT I CBAT o sl MO

o (Tt o7 e i 1 il oy Pt st DT P et o e (e (st Cull Bty CpancPond 0 Dol e T o PR i o ety g o' o oo om0 ot e oy it ok
et 1 (TR, et Ot et il o o T e v L Dt ot POy 8 bt R L 0 D i el i 1 0 et AR o P e ey e 0 it 1 S P i O S e
R of Clnmy syt prmets # Bl s polky ralr v Betamen {00 0 P Pl o ol o 5 o e sl a ety e il oy syt e 0 o grele, e e o e B 1 5T of oy o Pprands e
ey ratit for Pt Clas o Aol svaeladls, D it mall olcT i iaaivasien At BT o dlheenl i3 it

The (Tt o5 Sy b 3 oo e St wi'nr ket g Fpclioeed Py gt e (et ity #9081 38 F W e 8 o Bntrtet . iy o e oot . O g e e iy oui o Boww 1 O, bt B e
el o 96 o Clinga et it o ot oliey vl i bnbastesi 0047 5, Ot e i el v 8 L7596 o it it it o Ol donned ol 19 0 o Brbaspuit ) 57961 8, Woier it fi mell g 1 080 o (i st
B, P i Jehey re 3 DSttt T (- TR, Dl e it il O TS o 0 P RS, o P b ey i o T o greaie, a2 0 e el Bt 0 958 o (s e it F Pt oy v o e et
i vt ety S Al prdact 50 et R BRw o dhnont B ORI

Fir (g o wasbymect' o 20 sy Jipw St wans Suvnaed 00 S Fonchornd Byncly Woume Bt (i hodicy rate Y wa of thir s 50 e by ey o S s s I By smiomnd podicy vty sp Suplowe (PR, ot S5 i will g
(R o Uiy ot - # (e oo odecy vl 0 Do 570 ) L. B Bl e w1 o e el i o oo ol ot i s 0 - L O Pl o o i 10098 o (m el il &
b oy i o bt 1 -0, i bk il g O o Uit et et OF o e iy vt oo O o i, Pt S o el o I o o ot it OF e ooy ct ot et Ei i it
b, thy Albarnper mill dplecd AT il ety Snt o char grpraproty

et ETP o ST 0 ST i TR V50 i 300 o it Bt et Ronte (S0 oskey' i8] 8 34 Bt 0 TS Dttt 23 iy 0 T i R F D ot iy Yot i oot 1 O, i i il il?
R 8 U A D e Py 4 Dt £ SRV G, bt D el O (1 570 0 0k e . B ol Sl e & st ) - 8, Bt o vl 8 5780 0 Vil it it
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Thie management, ddvitony and Jdministrative Tees, it apglicable, ae paid monthly in anedrs bo FIBMCO faf providng or aranging for th peowi Son of advisany,
administrates and thind-paety sendoes induding awdl, ustodial, nasses, poriolio sooountng, rousine begal, ransfer agent and printing wenvioss. The agendy and
dswibution fees, if appiicable, are padd monthly in amesrs to remburse Enandal inesredianies that prosice serdces and distribution redating 1o the units of the
applicable Fund (o Chass thereof, ¢ applicable). In the case of the PIMCO Barmuda Fonsign Low Duration Fund and PIMKCO Bermuda U S Low Dusatson Fund, PIMCO,
it of ing rnanagement fes, will bear the oosts associated wath addaony and admisisrative serdoes, 019 of whilch i3 designated 1o cover adminiswatne egendss. In
exchangs for this fee, PIMCO will Dear the oosts of cerain third-paty sendoes required by the Funds, induding aed, aussodal, wustes, poriolo acoounting, begal
fransder agent and printing sendces. FIMCO, and not Unitholders, weould benefit from any price decrease in the costof sudh thind-party services, induding degeases,
om0 ek in Al M B aASEan, wath feipect 10 Furdd that o8 ki 5 M Sdeereiira e fee. PIMCD -J-_-r\-—l.’l'*,I kit i peohin of ach 8 fee

The: Funis fof Classes thereaf, & applicabie) may bear other expenses related 1o ther operaton that ane nof covered by the management, advisony, sdministrathe,
agendy o dstibution fees, indisding bt not limited to: ) tames and governmental fees; (1) brokerage fees and commisdions and ofher poetiolio Tansaction expenses;
(i} st of Ecerowing money, indudng interest expente: (v exraordnasy expentas, induding costs of lisganon o indemmication expentes nd () Jny expendes
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Notes to Financial Statements

abed o 34
il set-up

caltle 1 a tpedfic Class of units, as applicable FIMCO has paid, orwill pay, the organizational expenses asiodated with PRICO Short-Tenm Ser

s

FINCO andioe its affilates well initialy adv

e P - ¥ all coests and espenses, induding leod expenses, moumed in connection with e inifia
of the Fund in lapan (“Cffering Bpenses™) AL of near the commencement of the Fund's operations, the Fund will
¢ 18 e Oritering Expenses advanced and will amortiae such Crffering Expenses over the first fiscal year of ils operations. However,
PIMCO hi arsemnent of the Oflening Experrses 1o the extent Bhal swch expenses exceed 0 05% per annum of the wam of the JFY

Cladses’s Beq Assel Vi Offenng Expende Liatanon™) .l'l\.'lj""r':-i"l_l".. Experiel waned due 1o the Oiffe Experite Lirnlanon may be tedm
andior its affillates for a period not exceeding five years from the commencement of the Fund’s operatons

bl rdl Seek PeimbLETRn T O iy PR '
ed prior 0 the full reimbarsement of a8 Offering
e Fured As of May 31, 7018, the recoverable smognt of O

Furthermire, if both of the JPY and USD Classes of
shall not sk reimbuane Ir
anchor i aPfliates wat §4

FINKCO b

Fand

¥ Sppoanbed ShBC
O Real Fetm Fund, and

3 Secunpes e, o a0

2 IFY and LD Classes of

Wt A S .IIII.]-\.J! urals of tae iR
0 distnbwtors have

0 Burd Tars Betyrn
e Sppenied bor amy

din the rabie ghove, ceman Furds and Classes of Fursds srer i TN B . Ackaidy, MOmindsimatie, aoendy of (il tion fees. PINACIO) Lapan
‘s affliate in Aapain, lrusts oF ofher investment vetedes Mat imest in sudh Fends or S5EE and a paorhon of
i Tee 15 e aBocaned 1o PINKC

O 1 Cormpsersate it Tor ils sendoes

i I furthes Finc

are hapnched

FIMCO his pand the oo A expenses assodated with the oeation of the
Fand may be bome by the redeant Fund

1 costs drecty st by takie 0o the relevant

10, RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS

Ivestmient Adviser i5 3 related party 0o the Funds and is 3 maonin-ownsed subsidany of AflanT Ascet Management AG. Fees pald oo the related party, If ary, are
disdosed in Mole 9, and acoued related parfy fee amounts, i any, ane dsdosed on the Statements of Assets and Liabiliges

Alianz Asset Management AG, 3 related party of the Trust, owned 57 118% of the net assets of the PIMZO Emerging Markets
05 0f the FAIMCO Emenging Markers Bond Fund Fl 2 of May 31

snd Fund [l and 0.129

of the met

&

Ceatain Funds are permitted fo purchase of sell seawities fom of to ceriain related affiliated funds under pediied condiions ouined in proceduret adopted by the
Imvestment Adviser The procediures have been desioned 1o ensure that any purchase or sabe of seaunities by a fund from or to another fund that is or cowld be

ed an affilate by virtee of having a common adviser {or affiliated investment adwisars), is effected at the curent market prce. During e period ended May
21, 2008, the Fands) below Engiged in pundhates and sales of sequrities among dffilianed funds (amounts i Mousand)

Furdd Puchess Saim
FIMDD B midy Faresgn Low Daraeon Fard 1 oD% Hé
FICE Bawmuda U5 Lows Disnmsn Fung
PIMCE Esmargae) ekarkem Band Fund (WG

PIMDT Boro Toes! Retums Fend N
FIMOO Rl et Fund 554 o
FIMDT SheeTerm Soaagy & 458 b

1. GUARANTEES AND INDEMMIFICATION

Under the Trust's organizational documen s, certain parties (nduding the Trustes and MMCO) are indermnified against certain liabikties that may anse out of
performance of their duties 1o the Funds. Addiionally, in the nomial course of business, the Funds enter into confrads that contain avanety of indemnification dases
The Fureds” maximum exposre under these amangements i wknown as this would involve future daime thatmay be made against the Funds that have not yet
ocoumed However, the Funds have not had pror daims or lesses pursuant (o these contract

12. UMITS OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST

The Truest may issue up to S00,000,000,00¢
ten percent of the met assets of each respecive fund. Such concen ration of Unithal ders” interests ooutd have a materiad effect on the Funds in the event these
Unithiobders request to withdraw substantial amounts of capital 3t te same fime: Subsdiptions and redemptions of inits of the Funde are denominated in the Funds’

T CurTency at the ot rate on the ransaction date. Units of each Fund are isared without par value. The Trug
of Charss o Clisses of units of any Fund

o

Ervenil Papard | Muy 57, 20 B30
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Notes to Financial Statements

Frany n of benefida arek i B % i inits and amoun - s *
Fead Euied Yoo Fadid Vi Enlill Year Ended
My 1, 3NE By 71 AR by T, AR By 30, AT
Uats Amemnd Daits Ammunt [T Y Amumd Huits Amuml
Fecwipty for wrie nold n 8 115 R | 513 m & 1B NI 1]
¥ He L] L] N [0 L] L] v 47
UED He Teth K LT L' L LIy 115
Lot ol v edisnmd i {h0335) BN B3 Wil 1,418 N Wa
Y He Meth 1) 1) L' L] {610 51
10 He oA N NI& WA L] ErLasty (2 Rk ]
¥ [dernana) g fom
Furd unit Frerwactions o F on & (s 0w o e amn & mEE
Fraa fuded Vs Fndad Vo Fuilad Yoarfuded
gy 7, 20N By 75, AR ey T, ANE By 71 ANR
Ut Amsant Uaits Amanr Taih LUl Uty Ll
Racwipn for wrim anld a ¥ 150 s M Lo L] o HAR 1
ik Ha Ntk n 3 1,168 § % ] N Hig,
LHY N L] L] A I L Wi e
N0A) N N 5 = 3 £ NI Wil
KK LE ] L] 108 L REY I L Wi L]
R Ha Ntk N 1) I L T Nea
MN [T [ 1] 1.8 L & N il
L] Wi L) AnT LLR ] N L] NN Wa
ZAR] W L 12 i WA R NI e
bid @ frivesia il al
o o (] w ML Nk [T fl 1]
N N Nk KA Nix 3 e NIy s
DA LE ] L] b ] i Bl Wi L]
Lz Ha %] ] k] 1 i) T WA
KR T [ WA 1 5] Ni% W
Comt of uoim elsamad 20 {13ATR] KA N L] Lo ] ]
W A uH fri- 1 1) M4 W
LHY Ha L) L L] Lal NIE Wa
W L] L] & 181 NI e
W R (4 i a1 NN Rin
KR LE Rh %A I} fe] NI We
Ha KA B A N NI Wia
N L] M) ik K& NI& tia
Ha L (U TH M L L 1Y Win
THEETE 1 I 1 S 1% e # ({11 e T =TT TR 1]
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Notes to Financial Statements o
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L Ha ] 150 2
15 He Wik 110
L L] (]
= Ha [ LI
ot of iy rodenmac] L] 1450 [T
141 Ka [ i
=iy Hia ik
He Mok
He ek
Hu2 increany el from
Furd it Fwrwictions 1] ¥ 13 185 ! 3NAE

* & s v miny ol ctend msat, fmediag b e it o Barond

* P we g 30 torwges s’ Bay ST 2008

13. REGULATORY AND LITIGATION MATTERS

Jahon or arbatraion procesdngs an _'! qre mrt aware of sy mahen
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Real Return Fund

FR&GEN
BTN Wi
(] e
MVESTMINTS INS

I B AR
Dewtschs Dank AL
A 50 dun 1A 4 m s L
Ginldman Sachs Greap, e,
1375% die DANSOTON ¥ HE
G Bank NY
2B due 10R0TITY 1 5
Havneni Coip,
S50 due DIIVSOT1S 1 ol
Mordea Kradit Realkreditakieselskab
25000 due 100507047 i-14 i 1
Hyhends Realkrodet A%S
25000 dys 100070407 T 1
A0 don 10880047 - m
Realkreedit lanmark A%
500N die ITERTMT k] 7
Tarentn Dessnion B ank
2 750 dw [UPSANIH H i Vi

i

._'.._'.. = A_SIEE S e
BAT Intemational Fmasca PLC

2730 due DVESA0N0 i I8

TILITIES 1.5

ATET, Ine,

4 100% due INST02S pill HE

Nexitra Energy Capiial Holdings, Inc.

LEHE% due (T1E0H i ]

Powobras Glabal Fimanco BY

S0 due D120M m e

TATEA dua DAY ki H HE
— A

Tatal Caspi nte Botedi & Notin ]

[Cot 518580

Fammie Mae

2 300% o DNESEOTY L n

2 40% du DAVERAOTY ] 16

LA doe IEATIN ] i

257T% due 100E708 5 ]

1 0000 due [5AH04) Lral e

000 due DI04 i L

Fanmie Mae, TEA (af

1500 due DRG0 1180 AL

4 006 due DTG0 180 1HE

Fraddie Mac

L 50E% due 12055017 k1] n

Taotal U5, Governmen Agescios S0

[Coorsi SEIAFN

5. TREASURY QBLIGATIONS 1vauirs

Treavury I |atsen Prowcied hnmnlﬂ.ihl

01254 due DRIESOD1S - =
Q1754 du QR 500 s 7]
07755 o GRASTII {0 5N 5HE
(7255 duw DA SIEY ol Fi:)
0175% doe TSN 1158 LI
01758 due NS0T 1545 150
0125% due V5E0N i 1
[ TR ] ko M
Q3755 doe DNNEIT i% &T3
Q3TN die IS L EE
Q3755 due QINVEETNY 14 ]
05000 due TIVEATIR IR L8 240
S i gy S

FARDP

=] LeI:
=] =]

QS dye DUSGTN H 7 R 2

DEISN due DWISRTE 1,38 L7

AEIEN due RV50THD 18 L'}

(TS e WV STTGD L r

0750 dye 25006 S &1 |

OETEN diye EUREUT L £l

1 D00 due ENVEO0G 3 m

1 (00 e (2N 5 T0IEY 1 0]

1 5% due DTS00 253 15N

1 A75% doe ENE0D4 (D un 158

1 T dye 015010 1.5 181

2000 due DV i b ]

175N dus VLT 1+ 1]

2155 due ST k3 1

23T dow DHNSTNE B LME L]

25000% due DIVLT 1.1 PR

375N dow DRNSOOT 166 i

RIS due DRN5OTE i 0

BTSN due DNSI L M

LS. Tressury Hotas

2 0007 doe VNI LRE 4548

L1 do DTN Bl 3]

2T doe NS 2.0 el ]

Tatal U5 Treasery Obligatinm e

(Gt S me)

JWORIGAGE BACK D SECURTS 0%

Civic Mongage LLC

BT doe DROSONT L0 ]

Couningwide Heme Loan Mengage Pass- Through T

25408 due BSOS & L

€5 Firsa Buston Mongegs Secumies Gaap,

2550 dw IMZSONR 187 =

GEAMP Tiust

2EI5% due (B2SI0E i) EE ]

GSR Marigage |uan Tres

BN doe MOSHIS i [

HEI Asast Smcer i ratios Corporanan Trew

2130% du IROSONTY L] He

hnhﬂlt. INDX Morigage Loan Trusi

2 B don INE50TH 20 L

JPMx gan Morgage Tissi

IBIEN due IBRZSIDN L n

Long Beach Morigage Lean Trasi

14500 due IRTIIE L i3

Wielon Revidossa Funding Corponslion Mesigage Pasi-

Tharough Trust

1T due DANSTHIT L L]

Hurwe Yoik Mongage Trust

BTN don TLATH ) ® 1]

Option Gre Mangags | sen Tous

2BI5% doe 117500 16 1

WaMu Morigege Pass- Thwoagh Cemfiomies Tros

BN dw MTSON &) 15 -]

Wells Farge Mongage-Backed Secerines Trust

BT doe 10TSGTS o s

Tatal Morgage Backed 5 i _‘I,Ili'

(Gt $1.078%

SSET-HACKID SECURITIES 23%

(=TT

QLB dun 10000108 EIR X0 5%

Greeveaar Place C10 BY

0THA dye 107000 1 nr

Hureed CLO MV DAL

QBN due VEODS 1 nr
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TT00% e [OUPSEE ¥ - B
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Tatal Asvet Backed 5 J [
L TR il

SOVEREIGH IRSUES hars,

Argenting Governman ltsmatsnad Bosd

BRTS% dus D1ETLT ] s
RN dew MOG20] ARG 643
Argenting POM Politica Messtan a

I3 0% des DET120H0 1A
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1 2500 due IR0 ALID W
0% e AL i
& i b yal Catal

A 0% i TN HIR L0
Canadi G over st Boad

A 250% due 1091716 Bl CAD =
Cymus Gavernmen Intmmatonal Bend

A THN de OGO EuR 1
& 500 do 11RHLE L
Ealy Buois Palonnal del Tosoia (k)
L0 due RN ST &
2 B due D501 L
Mexico Gmvemmant Internan psal Bend

4 S0 due 1102705 &) Ny 5
Mrwe Lol o Garmanmannd B ol

2500% dus (RAGDTOT Bl ] m
Pe Grvemman Internat saal Bosd
G150 due (B30 2701 FEN L
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0125% die D2T20108 Gap .l
Q1754 dus L0 ]
0175% due DN 0G06E 1
175% due 1122006 1
Total Severmign |xsues

[Cest 522500

5 HI.'IHT TL HIMHL TTHl HEH[‘M A

Butlnum FLE
1 G40 dus IRATTIG H Mo Hi
TIME [ POSTTS vs
ANT Nananal Bank
0. 760% due DRSLT0IE o i 1
i ] 1
¥ LF) 17
Bank of Nova Sootia
1 2000 due (557015 E )
Besk o Tokyo-Witsubishi URJL1d,
[0 3250 dow DG1L/TG10 U 16
Breem Broters Hawiman & Co,
0 P50 dm [501/2078 K 'E 1
0L T50ne) dus 610 ] 1 ]
1. 00% dus DEARGTIE ] L) b
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Real Return Fund [Cont )

IR
] AU
[ =] [
Destsche Bank AG
[0 5300%) dur DH012010 HIR A B
0:230% due D55 i s 1
| 2008 dus DR | H 5 5
Dnfl NORBank ASA
1 200% due DEGNTDIE b i ]
HSEC Bank
035 dus (RSIGT G ri g ) 1
JPMlrgan Chase & Ca,
| 200% due IRSLT01E H i Fi
Hatmanal Aiiitraln Bank L
1 200% dus DESEANIG B i
Sumiinma Miisa B anking Com.
[0 220%) dm D5T12078 & ] 1
0% dus (G810 H L ]
T
1o W
ARE 4 .
140 5
BEN due AT S IR i 5
| (TS doe 10450118 (W i ]
1154% due [3OR001 46 10 k]
11565 due DRGOC018 () ¥ 000 L)
105
Tatal St Term lmiruments 1504
Powi 51 5450
Tatal lwindmants in Setunea™ 152.7% 5 RSN
(ot SEO0HH
Fangncaal Domvstivn
Horeet poamentin | ) L% A
[Cowt or Promiume, net 5 Hili
by Azsed s amed Linbal s, not §5300% )
Ml Axsets 00K 5 3

DULE OF INVESTMEN TS (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS ®, EXCEFT NUMHER OF CONTRAL T5)

" A peio balance may rellest s el smsunis rounding b bss then one Sousend.

“%  The allocation of Total investments by geographiz reglon as of May 31, 2048 ks 130.8% of Net Assets in the Unlted States and other countries comprising
14.2% of Nt Assets In aggregats.

fal Wk sl aounity.

b} Fuircipal armount of sesurity is aduisted for inflasen.

fei  Becurity |s in defaulit

i) Coupon represents a yiekd ts maturity.

o] Coupon mpresents o welghted average yied ts maturity,

IRATWAINGS AND THER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

Farpabile for
e run R paiibne

.*Illi‘hﬂ'h

ﬁlﬂmmumml - S . L] b

L L gt gl Mgy | Wiy 0, SHNN G 3]
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Real Return Fund [Cont )
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i FINANCIAL SERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS: EXCHANGE-TRADED OR CENTRALLY CLEARED
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Real Return Fund [Cont )
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Notes to Financial Stat

1. DCRGANIZATION

Each Fund desqussed in this repaoet {each a "Fund™ and cofiectively, the *Funds™), which 2o indudes each dass of units of that Fund {each a "Class® and colectively,
the "Chasses”), b5 a series trust of FIMCO Bermuda Tt {the "Truse™), an open-ended wnit tnest established under the Laws of Bermuda as & sulti-sedies trust pussuant
1o b st deed exsouted on Auguit & 2001 (a8 amended fom time oo me, the " Trust Deed™). Brown Biothiers Harmsnun Trosl Comgany (Clymand Limited, & trust
company inoorporated in 1985 under the laws of the Cayman Islands, serves as the trustee of the Trust (the *Trustee®) Sor the owners of units of the Funds (the
“Urégholders™ ). As used in this report, all relerences to the “Trustee™ shall mean the persan then serving s trusbee o the Tnst. Padific Investment Management
Company LLC {"PIMCO, " the “Manager” of the “Iimestment Adviser™) & the wponsee of and s cespondible far structuring the Trust

Thie TSy is subject 10 eagulanon and supenicon as provided Tor in the Imvestment Funds Ao 2006 and retased e e pdating 10 standard funds

The terms. of the Trust Deed conder wpon the Trestee, with the consent af the Manager, the pawer, in the future, 1o establish further funds in addition to the Funds
Curensly in operaton a5 of the date of these finangal statements.

The Funds. presented in this report are listed below

Fumdd (fermd 10
PRADD Bovmuda Fonaign (ew Duration Fusd Détered only fo funds with a “Fend of Fonds™ stiuciuee, s defined is the ules of the |
PIDD Bermucda ULS. Low Disration Fund Iwnsiment Trusts Assocation, Japan, o 5o fusds with o similar stnectne o any other
VD0 Emenging Markets Bond Fusd LITF) permsdacion

PR Emerging barieds Bond Fued (e Hedged)
PRADD Emergen Madtets Bond Fusd I

PRALD Emerging barkess Bond Fund 1l |
I PRA0T Ewo Tons Restun Fund 1 DOfesed 1o rétad imebaiors in Jaged by way of public ofienng Hitegh 8 diitnleton m |
PRALD el Retum Fund Japan. and mary o afered o ofed eweslors o the discration of the Manager.

Ellln'Eisl 1] |el:]l|-lm!.:£1.-|l1 J-m.s' -br L= u.l pu:ill: él.nuln-ﬂil.;wi- a un-s.lut-.m.. , I:H i 1
sabes handing oomgany in Jagan, and may b otened to ofhar imastors o tha discretion |

“TOALE) Shat Teem Stratagy

of the Maagi
Cittoeed ondy 8o oite funds in sene as unchpriyineg iewveimap wnhesles for such fusds

PRAD Emaerging blavkets Band Fued (M)
Units of the FIMCO Ewep Total Retum Fused, AMCO Redl Retum Fund, and PIMCO Shart-Term Strategy have been registerad unidér the Fnaccial instrumends and
Exchange Lirw of Japan. Units of each of the remareng Funds have neq been and are el currenly expected ta be regritersd under the Financial Insticengnts znd
Exchange Law of Japan. Accoedingly, sudh Units of these Funds may not be, deectdy o indirecily, affered in Lapan or to any resident in Jagan, except in compliance
with appicable lapanese Laws and regulations

Z. SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Tollowing is 3 summary of significant stcounting polices cordetently followed by the Trust in the prepacaticn of its finzncial statements in conformity with
accounting principles genenally acoepted in the United States of America ("ULS. GARF™), Each Fund is Treated 35 an imesiment company nder the repoiting
reqguirements of U5 GAAP. The preparation of financial statements in accordance wath U5, GAAP requires management ta make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amownits of assets and liabilities and disdcawe of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the fmancial statements and the reporied amounts
of increases and decremses in et assers from operations durieg The reporting period. Actudd risults could differ from those sstimates

{a]} Undarlying Fand The Teustes and the Manager may apply al of 3 portion of the assets of FIMCO Emerging Matkets Bond Fund (RTF), PIMCO Emerging harkets
Bond Fund (Yen-Hedged), PIMCD Emenging Markets Bond Fund |, and PIMCD Emergeng Markels Bond Fand 1 (each referred to hesein as a " Fund o Funds™ or the
'.‘fn:q;u:lr-q Fuesd ™ wehich imad4as in other Fureds) 0o the iespctive credit of the PIMCD Emar ging Markets Bord Funﬁ'[M]-:lt‘-[":lfd 10 hesein a5 &0 _l.jndﬁlﬂﬂl? Fund”™ o
the “Acmuired Fund °). Any assets o applied will be held in such Acquired Fund as if recetved dieectly, Wheere assets are 5o applied, the Aoquired Fund will segoed the
tssue of units to the refevant Acquirieg Fund an the issue price per onit of such units and will repurchase sudh units at the repurchase price per unit of such units at the
time of repurnchane, Accondmgly, the ability of the Acguiring Fund 1o achiewe it imestment objective will depend upon the ability af the applicable Acquined Fund 1o
Behieve B invesimint objectiee, There can be nd dsieance that the invectment obisctive of the Acguired Fund will be schiswed

b] Securities Transsctions and Investman Income 5ecuities marsacnons are recorded as of the trade dare for financial reponting purposes. Securities puechased ol
sold on a when-ssued or delayed-delreny basis may be settled beyond a standard settlement pesiod for the security afier the trade date. Realized gains and fosses
Tram secutities sokd ane recordied on the identihied cost bass, Dividend intome it recorded on the ex-devidend date, except certan dridiends hom foeeign securities
whire he ex-dridend date may have passed, which are reqorded a5 soon a3 & Fund is infrmed of the ex-dhadend date. Interest indome, adjusted for the acomtion of
disoournts and amortization of premiums, & recorded on the accrual basis from settiement date. with the exception of securities with a forward starting effective date,
whee interest income is recorded on the accrual basis. from effectie date. For convertible securities, premiumes attbutable to the conversion feature ane nal
amortined. ESnmated ti abilnies on cetan |IJ|'("=QI1 SeCLileS B0k iedicied on o aoonud ok and e eflected d COMEONENLS ol BTBEN oS oF il Chahde if
unreafized appreciation (depreciation) on investments o the Statements of Operations, a5 appropriate, Tax Babilites reakred as a result of such seourity sales ane
reflected a4 3 component of net realized gain (kass) on investments on the Statements of Operations. Paydown gains and losses on morgage-related and cther avset-
backed sscutites, i any, ane tecoddid a4 components of intiest moome on the Satersents of Dperations

Dbt obdigations may be placed on non-accrual status and related interest imoome may be reduced by ceasing current accruals and weiting off smerest recernable when
the collection af all or 2 portion of imerest has become doubitful basad on consestently applied proceduses. A detit ob¥gation ks removed from nom-accnual! status when
1he Bsuer resumes ineness paymens of when collectability of intenest is probabile

el Figgen | May 1. 2047
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Notes to Financial Stat

{e} Cazh and Forsign Currency The financial stasements of pach Fund are
presenied wsing the curency of the primary economec emvironment in which it
operates (the “luncional cutnency™). The functional currency for the Funds is
the L5, doilar, except for the PIMCO Eurn Tocal Retun Fund whach s the
Eura

The marke vadues of boreign securitees, curmency holdings and other assets
and hiabilities are translated imo each Fund's Suncrional ciamendy baded on the
current emchange rates each business day. Purchases and sales of secunities
and income and expense iters denominated in foreign curencies, if any, ae
teanslated #lo esch Fund's fespective functisnal oty o8 the excharnge
rase in effect om the ransaction date. The Funds do not separanely repon the
effiects of changes in foreign exchange rates from chianges in market prices on
securities held Soch changes ane included in st realined and net changes in
unrealized gain or ks Bom evestments on the S1atements. of Operatons

The Funds may imvest in Soreign curency denominated sequities and may
engage in bdeign currendy transactions either on & spot (cash) basis at thé
130 prevaling in the curmency exchangs markeq as the time or thepugh 2
Torward forelgn cuntency contract (see Financial Derivative Esiruments),
Prealized foreign exchange gairs or losses arsing from sales of spot foreign
curnincies, curmency glind Of keused nealined Between the trade and settiement
dates on Seountes trarsactons and the difeence benween the eoeded
amaunts. of dividends, interest, and foreign withholding taxes and the
hasctiond curency equivatent of the amounts actualy received or paid are
included in rel reab2ed gain of Kss on fﬂt‘?ﬂ]ﬂ LTy UAMEACaNG on 1he
t1atements of Operations. Net unreakzed foreign exchange gains and losses
arsing from chamges in foneign exchange tates on fareign denaminated ausets
and liabilities othes shan investesbets. in securities hild at 1he end of the
reporting period are indisded in net change in unrealized aggeciation or
depreciation on loreign Oarency assets and labiites on the Matements ol
Operations.

Thir Mt Asset Valye [“NAV") and total returns of cenain Funds {oe Classes
thereaf, a5 applicable) @ presented in the cumency for which the NAW is
repirted {the " NAY carency” as detailed in each Fund's Offering
Marmatandum (the *Offering Mesaandum” ), For the puiposes of the
preseniation of the MAY and the total retam in the BMAY currency, the
beginning 2nd ending NAYs are converted wting the pericd beginning and
ending exchange rates, nepectivety, and detnbutions e comaried wiang the
exchange rate at the fime of the distribution. See the following tatde for the
NAY aarency and funcionad currency of each respective Fund

Lt Funcaoral
Furd/Tlasr: 0 0
FIMCI Bermeda Foorige Low Dyntion Fund | Apanssayen | LIS dolla
| PNLT) Bermmceta LS. Low Dueation Fund | Japangsnyen | LS. doll
PEMICE) Emergang Markorts Bond Fund LITTF Japuanieda yen LS. dallar
PMLY) Emenpog Markss Bond Fund (M) | 115 dollar U5 dollm
. JA
| et
PN Ermeripng Madosts Bond Fund (YenHedgedt | Jy yen | LS dollar
[ PAMCD Ererg Mkt Bod s 0 [ Jupansse yon | 1S ol
. J{BALI |
»  JUDRI
] 1 [1§H)
L ]
e JIEN
»  JiTAm

M fresgog Madies i Ford Taparese yen | U5 dok
L] J IR
= JNY)
DR
= JENA
L1 | S _—
| PAMCD Furs Torial R Fund Furn e
PIME feal Futa VS dollw | 115, dotw
P'IHI,"I] Slm T#m Sllr.g_p,- b
= I Japanese yen U5, dolla
« B0 U5, dollpe 115 dollay

{d) Multiclass Operations Exch clss of a Fund offored by the Trust has
rights 1o the assets of the Fund equal to that of other classes of the same
Fund, except for specific assets and gains and losses designated 1o 3 dlass
relating o currency hedging opetationd. Income, non-class Spedis enpendes,
aed nonedass specific realized and unredlized capital gaier and loses ane
allpcated to each class of units based on the relative neq assets of each dass
of the respective Fund. Class spedfic expences currently indude
management, advisofy, administrati and destribution fees, whene applicable

(&) Distribation Palicy The cham on the fofowing 1able shows the
anticipated frequency of distnibutions Tor each Fund. Distributions from each
Fund may be declared and distributed to Unithaldess only upon the
atheelzation of the Manager, which auherizataon may be wishheld ag

the Manager's discretion

De<lared Daily dad Paid Monthly:

ML Eors Total Betum Fond

Daalarnd bed Pasd Manthly:

PIMCT Emesging Markots Boad Fand [ ATF)
FIMLT Emesgng Marksts Bood Fund (Yen-Hadgsd)
FIMCD Empsging Markets Bond Fand 11
PIMCT Bt Rarkets Bond Fond 18
Daclared e Pasd Quanardy,

PIKCT Bermuda Foeesge Low Diaration Fund
FIRICT) Barmuds LS. Levw Duestion Fund
Declarsd wnd #uid Annunlly
FIMCT Rag! Returs Fusd

FIMCT Shart-Torm S

The Mansged doas nof axpect 1o declem distibuband with rospact fo this
But may, in ita discration, daclare sad

Fund |or Classes therwol, if applical

FIMCT Emesging Markets Bood Fand (M)

Dastnbartions, i any, wil gl:nl:rﬂl.‘p b macke Srom the eebevant Fund 5 (o
Class's, if apphcable) net svessment income, In addition, the Manager may
authorize the payment of net reakized capital gaing avadable for detribution
Additional detnbutions may be declaned 4 the Manager deems appeopriste
Distribertions pard with respect 19 any Fund for Cliss theseok, i applicable)
will rechuce the NV of such Fund {or Class thessol, if applicablel At the
decretion of the Unithofdars, cash distribastions from a Fund (or Class thereof,
if applicable) may eitter be reirvested in additionad units of a Fund {or Class
thereod, if appdcable) or paid 1o a Unitholder in cash. Casth paymnents will be
pad in the WAV currency of the Fund. Each Fund {or Class theneod, i
applticable) may declane futher destribubions if considensd necessary in ordet
o maErdain @ reasonable level of distibutions h a Fund (e Clats theseal, o
applcable). Inithe event that there is inadequate net income and net realized
capital gairs to pay & distnbution of & Fund {or Class thereaf, if applicalble)
tisgquingd by the Ofleiing Memorandum, the Manager may pay a datntion

el Fispon | May 113047
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consesting of @ povtion of the capial of swch Fund {or Class thereod, i
applicable). Distrbutiors not collected within six years from their due date
wll Lyt v wall Bccru 10 thie Beradin of the eelevant Fund (ar Class thenesd,
if appliatde)

10} Stmtemamts of Cach Flows U5 GAAP requires entities providing Frandal
statements that repart both fnandal position and results of operations to also
pioride a Statement of Cash Flows Tor each period for which resuis of
operations are provided, but expmpts investment companies meeting cerain
conditions. One of the conditions is that substantiatly afl of the entity”s
SN vt caciid 81 Rar vilie choring the percd and cnaified ad Livel
1 e Level 2 inthe fair value heeranchy in acoordance with the requinements of
L5, GAAP. Anather condition is that the entity had little or no debt, based on
e dreerage delil outitanding during 1he period, in celation 10 Peetage total
assets. Funds with certain degeees of boregwing acihaty, typically through the
use od reverse repurchase agreemenis of sale-buyback transactions, have
been datevmined to be af & lewel reqaring 4 Statement of Cash Fiows, The
Satemnents of Cash Flows, 25 applicable, have been prepaned wang the
indirect method which requres net inCrease (decrease] in net assats tpsuiting
from cpecations to be adjusted to reconcile 1o et cash Fows from operating
Lol

(gl Newe Accounting Prenouscemants 0 Auguit 2014, the Finangal
Accounting Standards Board ("FASE") issued an Accounding Standands
Update {"ATU), ASH 201415, requining management b0 evaluate whether
thére are conditions, or events, considened in the aggregate, thal rase
substantial doubt about the entity's akality 1o continue a5 a going concem
The &S50 is efiective prospectivedy for anrual periods ending afier December
15, 2016, and interim penods thecealer, This AU wis adopted by the
Funds. The implementatson of the ASU dd not have an imgact on any Fund™s
financial statements

In May 1015, the FASE msued an ASU, ASU 201507, which remowed the
1eguirement 10 categorize within the fir value Wgrarchy all invesiments for
which fa¥ valoe is measured using tha nat assat walue per share practical
expedient. The ASL alsa removes the requinemsent 1o make cerlain declosures
Tee il imestments than ane efgible to be meascred at fair value using 1he net
asset value per share practical expedient. The A5U s effective remaspectively
for annusal peripds beganning after December 15, 1016, and intenim periods
within thode dnfual penods. This A5L was sdopted by the Funds. Thi
implementation of the ASU ded not have an impad oA any Fund's financal
statements.

In March 2016, the FASH isswed an ASU, ASU 2016-05, which provides
fuidance reland o thie impaa of dermvatiae CONBIACT Movatans on ORTaRn
relationships wnder Accounting Standands Codification Topc {"ASC*) B15
The A5U Is efiective for annual périods begnning afier December 15, 2017,
and insiim periods withan fiscal -,['a:-’,b(-gn‘li‘l:l afer December 15, 7018 AL
this time, management is evaluating the implications of these changes on the
financiad statements

In August 2016, the FASE tsued an ASU, ASU JO1E-15, which amends ASC
230 ta clanfy padance on the dassication of ceran ¢ath moeipts and cash
payments on the S1atement of Cash Flows. The ASU s effective Tor annual
periods beginning after December 15, 2018, and merim peviods beginning
afvet Decembsee 15, 2019, A1 thi teme, management is evaliating the
implicatons of these changes on the financial statements

In Kowember 2016, the FASE issued an ASU, ASU 201618, which amends
ASC 230 1o provide quidance on the dassification and presentation of
¢hanges i resinaed cadh and esmicted cash BaUnGAIents on The Seatement ol
Cash Flows. The ASU is effective for annual periods beginning afier December
15, 2018, and interim penicds beginning after December 15, 2019 A% this

time, management 15 evatuating the implications of these changes on the
fmantial statements.

I bbaech 2017, the FASE issued 3n A5, ASU J017-08, which provides
guidance related to the amodtizatson penod Tor cerain purchased callable
debit seourities hebd at a premium. The ASU is effective for annual periods
beginning afier December 15, 2019, and interim periods within fiical yean
Begutening afer December 15, 2020, This AL vwas adoptad by the Funds, The
imgfermentation of the ASU ded not have an mpadt on any Fund’s fnancial
slaterrenis

3 INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS

{a) Invesiment Valuation Policies The peice of a Fund's units s based on
the Fund™s NAY, The NAY of a Fund, or each of i cnses, a3 applicable, is
detemmired by deiding the (otal value of peedolia investments and other
asseds attributable i that Fund or class; less any liabilities, by the total
rrumber af uts cunstanding of thal Fund or class, On each Fund's Dealing
Dy {35 deseribed in the current Offezing Memerandum aof the

Trust], Fund units are ordinanly valued as of the dose of regular tading on
the Mew Yark Sock Exchange ("NYSE Close™), Information that becomes
ercrar 10 The Funds or Their Bt afver the vima o ol which BAY has Bsen
calculated on a particular day wil not gererally be ysed w reroactholy adist
the price of a security or the NAY detesminad earker that day, Each Fund
FEives the right to change the time 15 respactie AV i caltulated o

the Fund closes earlier, of & pereeted by the U5, Seqwities and Exchange
Commission (75EC7)

For purposes of calculating WAY, portholo securities and other assets for
which markes quetes ane teadily avatabie e valusd 3 market valoe. Matke
valpe is generafy determined on the basks of offinal dosing prices or the last
reporied saes prices, of if no sales are reported, based on quotes cheained
o estabilished maikier makers of prices [ncluding evaduited prices) supplied
bry the Funds’ approved pricing sendces, Quotation repering systems and
othar thind-party sources {bogether, “Fricing Services”). The Funds wil
riommally usé pricing data for domestic equely securities mceved shortly after
the KYAE Clase and do not normally take ino account trading, clearandes o
settfements. that take place afer the NYSE Close. A foreign (non-U.5.) equity
secuiity traded on a foreign enchangs o on mane than ane exthange is
typically walued g i pricing inkhoimation from the exchange considengd by
the Manager 10 be the primary exchange. A foreign (non-L 5.} equity security
will be valued a5 of the dose of trading on the foreign exchange, or the NYSE
Clene, o the NYSE Close ocurs befae the end of trading on the foreign
exchange. Domests: and formgn (nee-L. 5.) fied income securities, non-
exchange traded derivatives, and equity options are normally valued on the
barsts of quotes obtained from beokers and dealers of Pricing Senvices using
clana reflecting the eacker dosing of the prancipal markess Sor Thook securities
Prices obtained from Pricng Sensces may be based on, among ather things,
Information peovided by market makers or estemates of markes values
obtained from yield dath melating 1o ivestments or securitiey with dmalas
characterestics. Certain led income securities purchased on & delayed-
defivery barsis are matked b market daily until settlement 21 the foraed
settfement date. Exchange-traded opSions, except equity opticns, fuhees and
options on futures (which are discussed beloral, ane valued a2 the seitemen
price deesmined by the relevant exchange. Swap agreements are valued on
the basis of bad quaotes obtained from brokess and dealers or market-based
pices supplied h:.- 7’|||:|r..g Servicet oF otfer pricing sources & Fund's
ineeesomenis it open-end managament invesimens (cenpanies, osher than
exchange-traded funds ("ETFs™), are valued at the MAVs of such investments.
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IF a foredgn {non-L1 5.) equity security’s valee has materially changed afier the
close of the security™s primasy euchange or prindpal market but before the
NYSE Choe, the sbcurity may be vaiued at Wir value based on procedunes
estabished and appeoved by the Manager. Foreign (non-U.5.) equity
securities that do not trade when the NYSE i open are also valued at fan
waluse, Wish respect 10 foréign {noeeLULS. ) equity secuities, the Fund may
dererming the Tair value of irvestments based on information goovided by
Pricing Senvices and other third-party vendors, which may recommend fair
walue oo adjustmants wath relerence to otber secaritieg, indices or asset. In
:mdt-'lnq wehather s valuation is fequingd and in dedermirensg 1air values,
the Fund may, among other thirsgs, comsider sagnilicant events fwhich may be
corsadered ta indude changes in the value of ULS, sequrities o securities
indices) 1hat occur after the close of the rebevant market and bebois the NYSE
Chose. & Fund may utikne modeling tooks provaded by shind- party vendorn 10
detarmine fair walues of foreign [non-1.5.) securities. Foreign exchanges may
permy trading in foreagn {non-LLS ) equity seasfibes. on days when the Trust is
not open Sar business, whach may fesult in a Funds porfolio irmestments
being afiected when Unitholders aze unable to by or sell unis

Seiiar secured floating rate boans For which an active secondary market ewisis
10 4 iehabde ﬁo}qlﬂ will be valped a1 the mean of the st availabis bedtask
piices in the market Tor such boans, &5 provided by a Fricing Senvice. Senior
secured finating rate loans for which an active secondary market does not
exigh 10 4 reliable degree will be valued at Lair value, which is infended fo
appronmase market vahse. In valuing a senior secured fioating rate lean ¢
Tair value, the faciors considered may indude, but are not limited 1o, the
Telloweing: (a) the crediworthingss of the bocrower and any intermediate
participanss, (b the terms of the baan, (c) recent prices in the market for
similar loans, if ary, and {d} recent prices in the market for instrumends of
similar quakty, rate, peviod until next inferest rate resed and matunity,

Imvesiments valoed & cunencees ather than the functional currency

of & Fiand are comvemed 10 the fungronal currency iing euchangs 13
obtained from Fricing Services. As a result, the value of such imvestments and,
in burn, the HAY of the Fund's units may be aflected by changes in the value
of curpncies. in eelation 10 the fonctional currency, Thie value of inveyiments
traded in foreign markets or denominated in curmencies other than

the functional curreniy miay be aflected significantly an a day tha the Trust is
not open Sor business. A 3 resull, 10 the extel that & Fund helds fersgn
{ncan-L 4 ) invesiments, the valee of thase invesiments may change at tmes
when you cannot purchase, redeem o exchange units and the walue of such
imvestments will ke eoflected in the Fund's next caloulated NAV

Imesamaents foe wehich market quotes of market based valugtions ame pot
readily aailable ate valued at far value a5 determined in good Fasth by

the Manager or persans acting at their dinection. The Manager has adopted
fnetacdts ot uiluing setulites 30 cthel BUR1S in Citumitinoes whede
market quotes are mot eeadily avadable, and has delegated to FIMCO the
responsibility for applying the fair valuation methods. In the event that market
quotes of market based valuations are not readily avadable, and the security
of &55et canncs be vakued pursuant 1o a Manager approved valuation
metheod, the value of the secunity or asset will be determined in good Faith by
the Valuation Commities. Market quotes am considered nat readily avalable
i GircumaNances wiire thive i dn #stnce of current or reliable matket-
based data (&g, made information, bedlask information, indcative market
quodations { " Broker Quotes”™], Pricing Senvices” peices), including where
oents occur after the chose of the rebevant market, bug priar to the NYSE
Close, that matenally 2flect the values of the Fund's seourites of ssets. i
addition, market quotes are considered nof readly available when, due fo
extraordinany crcumstances, the exnchanges or markets on which the
seCurities bade o not open for irading fod the entine day and no other
market prces are avallabde The Manager is responsibie for montioeing

sgruficant events that may masesially affect the vatues of the Fund's securities
o @ssets and Jor determining whathes the value of the applicable securities cr
dusets should be resvaluated in light of such sigriicant events

Witen a Fund uses falr valuation oo determine the value of a ponfolko securty
on other asset for purposes of caloulating its NAY, such imvestments will nal
be priced on the basis of quoses from the primary market in which they are
fracded, but rather enay be priced By ancther method that the Manage: or
peesons acting at their deection believe reflects fair value. Fair valuation may
require subjective determinations about the value of a seaurity. While

the Thast™s policy e intended 10 result i 8 calalition of 3 Fund’s NAW thal
faly reflects security values a5 of the time of peicing, the Tnat cannod ensure
that fair walues determined by the Manager os persons acting at thee
dhrection would sccuratily eflect the peice that & Ferd could obtain foc &
securnity if it wene 1o dispose of that security 2 of the teme of pricing (loe
instance, i a forced or distressed sale). The peices med by a Fund may ditfer
trom thee value that veould be realized if the decuiities were sold

{b) Fair Valoe Hisrarchy (5 GAAP describes fae vaiue i the price that

a Fund would receive to sell an asset or pay to transler a iability in an cededy
frarsaction bebween market pasticipants at the measurement date. it
esablishes o dpir valoe hietarchy that prceitines smputs to waluation methods
ard regqueees dischosure of the Tair value heraechy, separately for each major
categoey of 3ssets and babilites, that segregates far value measurements intp
levels {Lewed 1, 7, o 31 The iputs ar methodalogy used for valuing secutithes
are ned necessaily an indication of the nsks asocianed with investing i thase
sequnitees. Leweds 1, 2. and 3 of the fait value hierarchy aze defined as follows:

= Leved | —Cuated prices in actve markiats or emchanges for identical assats
sl Iabinies

» Leved 2—Significant other obsenvable inputs, which may include, but are
ot limited o, quoted prices fov similar assats or kabilites in markets that are
active, queted prices o identical of wmiar aisets of liabites in markets that
B0 NOY AT, Inpuns other than quoted prices that are obsenable for the
assets of liabilities {such as interest rates, yield curees, wolatdites, prepayment
speadt, loss Sevenitied, cradit risks and delault rabes) or ather market

corrobod abed srputs

» Leved 3—Significant urobservable inputs based on the best information
andilabile in the ciftomstances, to the exbent cirenabie inputs are not
availatile, which may include assumptians made by the Manager of persons
acting 31 thear chreection that are used in derermining the fz value of
Investmenis.

Assets of llabilities categorited a5 Lével 2 o2 3 a5 of period end have been
trarslened bebaben Liels J and 3 sinde the pot period due io Changes in
the method utikzed in valung the investments. Transfers fiom Level 3 to Level
2 are & result of the avadability of curent and refiable market-hased data
prossded by thind-puty priing sersices or cther wal waton techniques which
wtilize signifcant observable inputs

In agoeedamce wath the reguaements of U S GARR, the amounts of ransfers
beteveen Levels 1 and 2 and tramsfers in and out of Level 3, i material, are
dichosid inthe Nates i Schedule of Investments Sor each respective Fund

For Tair valisations using significant unobserdable inpans, 115, GAAR tequines a
reconciiation of the begirning to ending batanoes for reponed fair vaiiees that
presents changes attributable to realiped gain {loss). unreakred appreciation
{depreciation). purchases aod sales, accnubd discounts (premasms), and
trarsfers i and out of the Level 3 category during the period. The end of
peviod value is used for the bansiers between Leveds of the Funds” assets and
liabdlities. Addntionally, U5, GAAP requires quantitiine inhermation regading
the signifcant unobsercabls inguts sed in the determnation of Lak value of
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assets or Kabilives categovized as Level 3 in the fair value hisranchy. In
actordance with the requisements of U.5. GAAP, a fair valme hieraechey, and if
material, a Level 3 neconciliation and detaity of ugnificant unciuenalie
inpurs, have been induded in the Nores 1o Schedule of evestments for each
respective Fund

{c} Valuation Techniques and the: Fair Value Hierarchy

Lewvel 1 and Level 2 trading asseis and irading liabilities, at lair value The
valisation methods for "technigues ™} and signilicant inputs woed in

geter mining ehie T3ir walyes of p-;fli*;ll?;l SRCE TS o ohher Stets a0d liatelnies
categorized as Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair vaiue Feerarchy are a5 fofiows:

Fixed income securities intluding corporate, convertible and municipal bonds
and mabes, IS, govemment agencees, U5, treasury obligations, soveeign
wssues, bank lpans, convertible prefered seowities and non-LLL5. bonds e
normally vafised on the basis of quotes obtained from beokers and dealers o
Pricinng Services that wee hicker-desler quotitions, nepored trades or
walisation estenates fom their imernal priceg models. The Pricing Serdges’
imernal models e eputs that are obsenable such as lssus detals, interest
rates, yield curves, prepayment speeds, credit sk sispreads, default rates and
quesed praces hor similar assers. Securitits that e sevar vaiuation
techniques and smputs a5 described abowe ane Categorized a5 Lavel 2 of the
fair walue hieraschy

Fixed income securities purchased on 3 delayed-delivery basis of & a
nepichase commasment in a sale-buyback Tansaction ane matked 10 marke
daily unil settiement a1 the forward settlement date and are categorzed as
Level 2 of the fair value hissarchy

Men:ga:}r--r;-l.\u\fj o aset-badked secunties ane yiually Riesd i separati
tranches, or classes, of secatites within each deal These securities are also
normally vabioed by Pricing Seraces that use beoker-dealer quotations,
reported rades or valuation estamates Brom their intemal pridng models. The
piicineg mocels for thesse securices usually consider ranche-lesel annbutes,
current market data, estimaied cash fows and market-based yleld spreads for
each tranche. and incorporate deal collabéral perormante, a5 seilable
Matgage-related and assel-baced SeCuriies thal uie simill vabution
techmiques and inputs as desoribed above ane categovized as Leved 2 of the
fair value I'.:ql.;'r_l'rr

Commes stocks, ETFS, enchange-traded notes and financial derrate
instrumends, such as fusures contracts, right and warrants, of options on
Titures that are waded on a national securites exchange, ane stated at the
Last reported 3 of settlement price an the day of vaiuation. Ta the extent
s Secunties ard aotvely Traded and valuation adjustments are not applied,
they ame categorized as Level 1 of the fair value herarchy

Imstments vafued {denominated) in curfencies other than the functional
CURTEACY of & Fund ace correemed 1o the funcional Caimény wiing E'n;h.'lm}-:
rates {cuirendy spot and farward ratesh obtainad from Priceg Senvices. A &
resfy, the NAY of a Fund's units may be afiected by changes in the value of
currencies in nelation 1o the functional cornency, The value of securities taded
in Teeesgn markets oo dencemnated in currencies ather than the functianal
qurrency may be affected significantly om a day thag the Trust is not open
business. Valuation adjsstments may be applied to certain securites that ame
solely tradied an o hateign exchangs to accourt for the markel mowement
between the dose of the foreign market and the WYSE Chose. These sequrities
are valued using Pricing Services that conskder the comelation of the trading
patteiees of the Bieign secuiity b the Eitiaday tiadng = the U5, markets i
iRSEMENts, Sequnties using these valuation adiustments ¢ (asegonzed a5
Leved 2 of the fakr value hiesarchy, Prefierred securities and other equities
traded on actve markets o valsed by relesence 1o smilar instruments are
g :a‘:r-f}q;n.'?-;] as Lewel 2 of the fair valye higrgachy

Equity-linked securities are valued by refeencing the last reported sale or
settlement price of the linked referenced equity on the day of valisation
Foresgn exchange adustments ane pplied 10 the (it repeeed piide 1o
comvert the linked equity's radimg currency to the contract’s setting urmency
These investments are categorized as Level 2 ol the fair value hieranchy

Ernpsbmienits i negeitesed open-end ivestmint companies (athe than ETFs)
will be vatued basad wpon the NAVS of such ewestments and are Categorined
a Level 1 of the Bz value hisvarchy, bmvestments in unregestered open-erd
invvestmien! campanies will be calcalated based upan the KANS of such
ISty aod ane considened Livel 1 praadied that the Blavs e
otsenvable, ralodated daily and are the value a1 which bath purchases and
salles will be conducted

Ecquaty exchange-traded apticers and cwer The counter rusial didivative
Instruments, such as Borward foeeign cumency contracts, options comras, o
swap agreements, derive their value from underlying asset prices, indices,
reference rates, and ather inputs of 3 combinaticon of these lacton. Other
fhan vwap agréemants, which ane vatued using & broker-dedler bed quotaton
o on market-based prices provided by Pricing Senvices o other peicing
sources, these contracts are noemally valued on the basks of guotes chitained
from a quotation reporing sysiem, essablished market makers ar Pricing
Serdices (normally determined as of the NYSE Close). Depending an the
peoduct and the terms of the trarsaction, financial dedivative instruments can
b valued by Pricing Services using a series of techniques, inchuding
sanilation pricing models, The pricing madels use inguts that ane obsenved
from actvely quoted markets such as quoted prges, tssusr details, indices,
bidfask spreads, interest rates, implied volatilities, yeld curves, dendends and
exchange tates, Financial derivative irstruments than we senilds valiation
techrigoes and inpauts s described abowe ate categerized as Level 2 of the
fair value hieranchy

Centrally ceased swaps imted or traded on a multifateral or trade facity
platform, such a5 & registered exchange, ae vabued at the daily setdemens
eice detesmined by the respective exchangs (if avadable) For centraly
cleared credit dedault swags, the dearing facility requires its members 1o
peovide actonable price leveli onoss complete Em Sructutes. Thide hevel
ahong wath external third-party prices are used 1o produce daiy settlemen
prices. These secunties are categorized as Level 2 of the kair value herarchy
Cenarally cledeed inbéeest rade Sovaps ane valued wiang o pricing moded that
referendes the underying rates inclukng the cvemaght index swap rate and
London Interbank Offered Rase {"LIBOR" } forward rate 1o produte the daily
settfement prce. These securities are Categorized &5 Leved 2 of the Lar valoe
Pegr iy

Lewel 3 irading assets and irading abilities, ot fair vabue When a fao
valuation method i appfied by the Manager that uses significant
wnabsercable inpots, ivestarsbeils will be priced by & mithod that

the Manager o persons arting at their diection believe reflects fair value and
are gabegonized a5 Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The valuatian
fechnigres and significant inputs used in detemining the Sair waiues of
porfolio aseets and kabelies categorized a4 Level 3 of the far value hagranchy
ace a5 foliows

Py pricing puocedures 52t the base price of a ficed income seoutity and
subsequently adjust the price propanianally ba market value changes of a pee
determined secunty deemed 10 be comparable in deration, generally a L%
Treasury or sovereign note based on country of issuance. The base price may
b 2 becer-cigalior quate, ransaction price, o an inteinal value 35 derived by
anysts of market data. The base price of the security may be reset on a
perindic basts based on the avallabibity of market data and peocedures
approweed by the Valuaton Commitiee. Signilicant changes in the
unobservable inputs o the prcary pricing prodess (the base price) would nédol
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in direct and propontional changes in the fair value of the sequnty. These
secunities are categotired 2 Level 3 of the tas value histanchy,

1 thirg-party evaluated wenddr pricing o not dvaikabie of 6ot diemed 10 be
indicateee of Tair walue, the Manager may elect 10 obtain Broker Quotes
directly from the broker-dealer or passed theough from a thind-party wendar
In the event thaq Fair vadio is based upon 3 tingle souroed Beoker Cuole,
Isese spcunities are categorised as Level 3 of the Tair walwe Rerahy, Broker
Quetes are typecally recesived Trom established market partiopants. Although
independiantly received, the Manager do#s not have the transparency ba view
e ipnde by inputs which support The marke Guatitesh ijl:lf::.j.‘ul
changes in the Brober Quote would have direct and proportional changes in
the fair value of the secuity

Discnorried cash R wval uation uses o iternal analysis based on

the Manager's expectation of fture scome and expendss, capital structure,
exit multiples of a secunty, and ather unclsemvable inputs which may include
cortractiaal and factual loan facons, estimated future payments and credd
raging. Significant changes in the urabsendable inputs of the models would
resuft in diredt and propartional changes in the fair valiee of the security
These securities are categatized a5 Loved 3 of the Exr valoe hievanchy,

Market comparable valuation estirmates b vador by applying o valustion
multsglie 10 3 key perfoamance metric of the company, which may indiude
unbrervable inputs such a5 eamings befoee interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization ["EBITDA”), the Manages assumptions fegardng comparabie
gormpanes and ron-public suements from the ur‘dl_'rlpru_} COMpany.
Sagnificant changes in the unobsenvable inputs would result in derect and
proportional changes in the Fair value of the security. Thase securities ane
tdl:fguu."&d 5 Lewed 3 of thee i value Il-r-'.'u-:ll:,l

“hon-term debt instruments (such a5 comeencial paper) hawing a remaining
mabusity of B0 days or less may be vafteed at amorized cost and cabegorined
it Livel 2 of Lewel 3 of the Lair walue hieranchy depending on the sourde of

1 BartE pige

4, SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

|a) Delayed-Delivery Transactions Cerain Funds may porchase or sel
securities on a delayed-defivery bass. These hansactions imoive a
comeatmient by & Fund to punchase oo sell saquities for 3 prededermined price
o ik, with payment and delnagry Jak ) place Beyond the ustomaty
senlement period. When delayed-delivery Transactions. are utstanding

a Fund will designatie or ieceive 3s collateral bgued Zssets in an amount
sufhicipnt 1o mded the puichase prce oF nespecine u',‘m;}',l;'mg Whisn
purchasing a sequrity on a delayed-delivery basis, a Fund assumes the rights
and risks of ownenship of the seowmity, induding the nisk of price and yield
Nuctuateons, ard takes such fachudtions io #odoun when deteimining its
WaY. A Fund may dspose of of renegotate 2 delayed-delimry ransaction
after It s entered into, which may result in a reabized gain or loss. When

a Fund has sold 2 secunity on a delayed-delivery basis, the Fund does not
participate in fusune gaste and lothes with respect 10 1he security.

6] Indlation-indexed Bands Cartain Funck may imvest in inflanon-indesed
bonds. Inflation-indexed bonds are fixed income securities whaose poncipal
walue is petidically achusted by the rate of inflation. The imeredt rate on
these bonds is genedally foed a1 issuance 31 3 sane lower than typical bonds
Oxer the life of an inflaton-indaxed bond, howewver, interest will be paid
based on a principal vaiue, which b adusted for inflation. Asy incease or
decredr = e principsl amaunt of an inflatorvindeced bond wil be indudid
& Inferest income on the Statements of Dperations, even though investors do
nok recere their principad until maturity. Repayment of the oniginal bond
principal upon matuity (a5 adusted dor inflation] i guacantesd in the case of

U5, TiP%. For bonds that do ot prowide a similar guarantee, the adpsted
principal value of the bond repaid at maturity may be less than the original
principal

(e} Loan Paricipations, Asgig and Origi Certain Funds may
inwverst im direct deb instruments which are interests in amounts owed 10
tenders o lending syndicates by conporae, goveinmental, of other Bormawerns
A Fund's invesiments in loans may b in he form of parmicipations in lpans of
ansignments of a¥ of a portion of foans from third parties or investments in or
cuiginatsong of baans by the Fund. A loan i alten adminisberad by a bank o
ather financial irstintion (he “lendd ™) that 3cts & sgent for o holdess. The
agent adminesiers the terms of the loan, a5 specifed in the lnan agreement
&, Fund may irvest i multiple seies or tranches of a foan, which may have
wanying berms anel carry different ausociabed iisks. Wi b Fund poithanes
agsignments from lenders it aoquines diteot rights against the bormowers of the
loarss. These loans may indude participations in beidge loans, which are koans
faken out by bortowers Tor 8 short pediod (typecally less than one year)
pencding amangement of more permansnt financing through, for example, the
tsuance of bords, frequently high yisid bonds ksued for the purpose of
SOGuisiticeT:

The Types ol loars and related investments in vwhich 1he Funds may irvest
inchude. amoeg athes, senior heaes, subordingted loans {including second
lien loars, B-Motes. and mezzanine koans), whola doans, commercial 1eal
enate aned other commencial loans and structuned Roans. A Fund may
ariginate kaang of acgure diect inderests in loans thepugh primary loan
destibutions andio in peivate tansactions. In the case of subosdinated loans,
thens mary be sigraficant indebbedness ranking ahead of the bormower's
obdigation 10 the holder of such & loan, including in the svent af the
bomowet's Ensohvency. Merzarene loarns are typacally secured by a pledge of
an equity interest in the mortgage bonmwer that owns the real estate rather
fhar an sleredt in & Mongage

Fervestmesnts i hoans may include enfumded loan commitments, whach ane
contraciual obligations for funding. Unfunded loan commitments may inchade
recdving credit facilities, which may obligate a Fund 1o supply additional cash
o thie bormgwer on demind, Undunded lodn commnments epiesent b fusure
oblgation in full, even thowgh a percentage of the committed amount may
ot be utilized by the bomower. When investing in a loan participation,

& Fuored has thee richt 10 récen payeents of pringipal, imeness and By fees 10
which it & entitled only feom the lender seding the loan agreement and ondy
upon receipt of payments by the lender from the bomgwer, A Furd may
receive 3 commitment tee based on the undiewn portion of the underying
lirwe o credlit portaon of 2 Jaan, In CRan Groumstances, & Fund may receme a
penalty fze upon the prepayment of a koan by a borrower. Fees eamed o
pand are reconded a3 a component of interést income or interest expense,

P pactnndly, O e STabEmenS ol Dot aticed

Asaf May 31, 2017, the Funds. had no wnfunded loan commitments
outstanding

{d) Morigage-Related and Other Asset-Backed Secarities Ceiman Funds
mary ivest in maingane-telated and othed eet-tucked sequrites that diregly
or inckrectly tepeesent a pamicipation in, or are secured by and payable from,
Ioarss on real property. Marigage-related securities are created from poots of
residential of commendiad nanigage loand, including mongage loars made by
saangs and loan instingtions, morigage bankers, commergial banks and
others. These securities provide a monthly payment which consists of both
interest and principal. Ieredl may be dietermined by lined or sdurtable rates.
T e of prEDEyMENLS O ullz‘u,'ll:.'-ng nlu'lgagﬂwil aflecr the peice and
volatility of a mongage-relabed security, and may have the efiect of
shortening or extending the effective duration of the secunty relative 10 what
Wik ncipated At the time of purchase, The Emiy payreinl of pricipal and

Mewamal Fiapon | My 11. 2047

233/343

&



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)

Notes to Financial Stat

Ooooooooodooooooodd

interest of cerfain mormgage-telated seourites is guaranteed with the full faith
and credit of the LS. Government. Pocls created and guaranteed by nan-
govesnmentyl rivers, including govesnment-ponioeed Corportong, may be
suppoted by various foems of insurance o guaraniees, but there can be ng
assurance that private insugers ar guaraniors can meet their cbifigations under
the irturande policies of guarantes srangements. Macy of the froks of
Ivesaing |n moemgage-related sequrities secuned by commencial morgage
laans reflect the efiects of kocal and other evonomic condktions on real estate
madkets, the ability of tenants 1o make faase payments, and the ability of a
propeity to anrect aod rethin tendes. Thisie secunties may be ks lqud and
may exhibit geaber prace volazilgy shan other types of mongage-related o
other asset-backed securities. Other assat-backed securities are created from
may typs 0 susets, sncluding auto loand, credit cand riceivables, home
equity knans, and student kaans

|e] Collseralized Mongage Dbligatbens |"CMNOs") are debt ollgations of a
legal entity that are collateralized by whioke morigage lods or private
rigrigags bonds snd divided so clagses. CMOS e stnadienesd intd multiphe
classes, often 1efamed to as “tranches”, with each dass bearing a different
stated maturity and entithed 1o a ditherent 4chedule Tor payments of principal
and injerest, including prepayments, ChOs may be bess liquid and miy exhibit
greates price volatiling than otker types of mortgage-relased o asset-hacked
securiies.

11 Saripped Mortgage-Backed Securities {"5MES"] ane dedvative muli
class momgage seoannes. SMES e usualy structuned wath beo classes that
recerve different peopoetaons of the interest and peincpal desinbutions on a
pool of morbgage assets. An SMBS will have one class that will recere all of
thae it (e interest-onty of “ID° class), while the cther cliss vall fegeive
the entire peincipal (the principal-only oo *P0° dass) Payments recenved for
10% ase inclded in interest income on the Statements of Operations. Because
o principal will be recerid at the maturity of an B0, adustments ane made
1o the oost af the sequrity on 3 manthly bask until maturisy, Thess
adjustments ae induded in interest income o the Statements of Operations
Paymends recereed for P05 ace treated as seductions 12 the cost and par value
of the sacuities

1g) Callmeralized Daba Obligatioas (" C00s") include Collareraleed Bond
Obdigatians ["CBOs™), Collateralized Loan ObSigations (" CLOs") and other
similguly structured securities, CBOs and CLOS &e types of asset-backed
sacurities. A CBO 5 a trust whach is backed by a deersified pool of high risk
bebow investment grade fed income seaatities. A CL0S a trust typéically
collateralized by a pool of loans, which may include, amang others, domestic
andl Roneipn e pbcuted logen, senior unsecutid loaen, and subodinae
corparate loans, inchyding hoans that may be rated below investment grade or
equivatent unrated foars. The nisks of an irvestment im 3 (D0 depend largety
on thi type of the collsensl weouritss and the dass of the CDD inwhich

2 Fund invests. In addition 1o the nommal 1isks associated with fived income
securities discussad etsewhere in this repart and the Fundk’ Offering
Mematandam (2.9, prepiyment nisk, cradit visk, houdity rek, markef sk,
structurd! sk, legal ik and inteéeest rate ek [whach may bé exacerbated '}
the imterest rate payabée on a structured financing changes based on
multiples of changes in interest rates or inversely to changes in interest
raesh), CBOs, CLO%, and other CDO% carry additional riks including, but not
Bemuitesd o, (i) thee porssibility that distributions from collateral securities will nat
be adequate to make interest or other payments, (i) the quaity of the
collateral may dedhine in value or defaul, () & Fund may irvest in CBIOS,
CLOs, or ather COOs thar are subordingte to other clisses, aned () the
complex structure of the seourity may not e fully undersiood at the time of
imveskment and may produce disputes with the Bsuer of unexpecied
ifreIment nsuies

{h) Payment la-Kind Secusities Ceialn Funds may invest in paygment n-kind
securities {"PIES "), Fiks may give the tsswer the option at each interest
pagrnent date of making indenes) paymints in esther cash of additional debt
securities, Those addaional debt senumities wsually have the sane terms,
inchuding maturity dates and interest rates, and associated risks as the
crigingl bonds, The dady matket quatations of the arginal bonds mary include
the aconsed ineret (referred 1o as @ “dirty peice ™) and requine 3 peo raa
adstment from the unsealzed apprediation or depredation on investments.
fo inteest receivabde on the Satements of Assets and Liabifities.

(1) Restricted Securifies Ciimaen Fundy may inves? in secunties that ane
subject 10 liagal of comractual restricrions on resale. These seowities may be
sod privatedy, but are required 1o be registered or exempted from such
figistiation belore being sold 1o the puliic, Privabe placement securities an
gererally considensd 1o be restricted. Disposal of restrcied secutinies may
invwolve time-consumeng negqotiations and expenses, and pompt sale at an
acteptable price may be ditficult to achieve. Restriched securties outstanding
3 May 31, 3017 aee dhsckosed in the Noses 1@ Schedule of imestments

({115, Goweresmant Aganties or Govemasent-Spoasared Emerprises
Cirtain Fundh may invest in securities of U5, Ginernment agencies o
govemment-sponsored enterprisas. U S, Government securiies are
obligations of and, in certain cases, guaranteed by, the U5 Government. i3
agEnicies OF insbrumensabties. Some U5 Govemment secuatites, Such x5
Treasury bilis, notes and bonds, and seouitees guaramiesd by the Goemment
Mational Morigage Assocation ["GNMA™ or “Ginnie Mae™), are supported
by the full faith and credit of the LS. Govemment others, such a5 those of
the Fedesal Home Loan Banks, aee supported by the right of the iswuer 1o
boimow from the U5, Department of the Treasury (the U5 Tieasury™); and
others, such as those of the Federal Natonal Mortgage Assooiation ("FNMA™
o “Farree Mae"), ane supported by the discretionary authaonity of the LS
Government 1o purchase the agenty’s pbiigatians. 1.5, Gevemment seourites
miay indude 2810 coopon secusities. Jeno coapon securities do not distribule
interest on & cument basis and tend 1o be subject to.a greater risk than
INRIREE-paying Seurites

Givernment-related guaranbors di.e., not backed by the full faith and creda of
the L5 Government) include FNMA and the Federal Hame Loan Mortgage
Corporation | FHLMC" of “Frididie MacT ) FRMA 5 3 govetnment -4ponsonkd
corporatian, FNMA purchases comventional (e, rot inswed or guasanteed by
any goveimment agendy) residential morgages fom a kst of approved
seilerfsenvicens which include state and federally chastesed savings and loan
FHo0atons, mutudl svings banks, commencial banks and credit unions and
maigage barkers. Pass-through securites Bsued by FMA e quaranteed =
fo timely payment of prncipal and intenest by FNMA, but ase not bacied by
the ol fanh and credin of the L5, Gowerrengn]. FHLMC issues Panicipasian
Cenificates (“PCs"), which ase pass-thicugh sequrites, sach repeesenting an
undimded interest in a poal of residential mortgages. FHLMC guasantees the
timehy pagmient of interest and uitmsie colleczion of pringipal. but PCs ace nat
Backed by the full faith and credit of the U4, Gowverament

Certain Funds may engage in stiafegies where they seel fo extend the
expiration of maturity of a position, such a5 a To Be Armounced {"TBA™)
SeCulity on an underhying o, by coung out the position belore xpicalion
and opening a nesw position with respect 1o the same underlying asset with
a [ater expiration date. TA securities purchased or soid e reflected on the
Seaveminas of Assets and Linbities a5 a0 disel of linbily, respeciinsty

(k) When-lssued Tramsactions Certan Funds may purchase o sell sequies
on a when-issued basis. These transactions are made conditionally because a
security, although authonzed, has not yet been issued in the market A
commitment i made by 3 Fond 6 purchase of il thirte sequrities fat 3
predetermined price or yiekd, with payment and delivery taking place beyond
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the customary settiement period. & Fund may sell when-tssusd securitles
before they are delivered, which may result in a realized gain of loss

5. BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

The following desclrsures tontain infimation on the Funds' ability 1o lend of
borow cash or sequrities 10 the extent permitted under the Offeting
Meamarandum, which may be viewed as borrowing or finandng transactions
by the Funds. The facation of these instruments & described belaw, For a
detailed descniption of cecit and counderparty disks that <an b Fsocaned
wath bourowings and aiter financing transachens, please see Note 7,
Prircipal Risks

{a} Repurchase Agroemsents Cotan Funds may engage in repurchase
agreements. Underthe terms of 3 typical repurchase agreement. a Fund [akes
possesson of an underkying debit chigation (collateral) subject to an
abligatscn of the sefler to repurchase, and a Fund o resell, the obligation at
an agresd-upon peice and time, The marke! valoe of the collaceral must be
equal to or exceed the total amount of the repurchase obligatiors, induding
interest. Repurchase agreements, including accrued inberest, are incuded on
the Saaterments. of Assers and Lishikties, Intesest saened is racooded a5 3
component of interest income on the Satemsents of Operations, |n periads of
increased demand for collateral, @ Fund may pay a fee for receipt of collateral,
which mury reult in interest expense o the Fund

6] R Repurchase Ag Certam Fusds may enler il (everse
repuechase agreements. In 2 reverse répurchase agreement, & Fund delvess 3
security in exchange for cash to 2 financial irstitution, the counbesparty, wath
A simupleinedus Epeemint 10 rpurchass the same of substantially (b tami
security at an agreed wpon price and date. In an open maturity reversa
repurchase agreament, these i no pre-determined repurchase date and the
agreement can be berminabed by the Fund oe counlerpaity a1 any time

A Fund is entithed o receive pringipal and imeness payments, o any, made oo
the security delivered to the counterparty durng the 1erm of the agresment
Cash received in exchange for securities defvered plus accnoed interest
paymeiaits ho be made by 3 Fund 10 couriepaetay g refacied 35 2 Jdahiny
on the Statements of Assets and Labdlitles. bnterest payments made by a Fund
1o ¢ourierpartes e reconded as a companent of rierest axperrse on the
Staternenits of Opeeaticed, In peviods of ingreased demand lor the secursty,

& Fund may recewve 2 Tee for use of the sequnity by the counterpanty, which
may sesult in interest income to-a Fund. A Fund wi segregate ausets
determingd ta be liquid by PIMICO or wall otheradse cover its obligations
under TEvedse repuichase agresments

{e} Sale-Buybacks Certain Funds may enter into financing transactions
refierred to a8 'sale-buybacks’. A sale-buyback transaction consists of 3 sale of
& seouity by & Fund 100 fnancal indtitution, 1he countéspanty, with &
simultaneous agreement 1o repurchase the same or substantially the same
security at an agreed-upon price and date. A Fund is nat entited to receqe
privcipal and intetest paymenss, if any, made on The secwity sofd 1o the
eourlerpaity dating the teem of the ayieement. Thi aghesd-upon prodesds fai
securities 1o be repurchased by a Fund are reflacied as a Bability on the
Statements of Assets and Liabdlities. A Furd will recogripe net income
representad by the pice differerial between the price eosived Tor the
transferred secunity and 1he ageeed-upon repurchase price, This i commanly
refierred 1o a5 the “peice drop”. & price drop coswsists of (i) the foregone interest
and infiationary income adpuitments, il any, a Fund would have atheraise
receiverd had the secuity not been sold and (1) the regoriated financing tenms
bebween a Fund and counterparty. Foregone intesest and inflationary income
adjustments, if any, are recorded 3% components of interest income on the
Sranesnieits of Opeations. Intensgs paymdnt b upon Negotated I'm.]r:.'q
tenms made by 3 Fund 10 counteiparties ase recceded as a component af
interest expense on the Statements of Operations. in periods of increased

demand fow the security, a Fund may regete a fee for use of the seouity by
the counterparty, which may result in interest income ta 3 Fund. A Fund will
S egate dsets determingd 10 be b by PIMCO of will oshenwise covr B
oblgations under sale-buyhack tarsactions

{d) Shart Salns Certain Funds may enter into shont salies trarsactons. Short
5 e ransbctions i which the Fund sells a secunty that il may nos own
A Fumd may make shon sales of secunites 1o () ofset palengial declines i
fong positions in samilar seuities, (8] 1o increase the Raxiblity of the Fund,
() Tor imestment retumm, {iv] a5 part of a risk arbitrage strategy, and [v) &
it ol i8% el poctola Mmanagement stateget Fnolving 1he use of
derivative instiuments. When a Fund engages in a shar sale, it may bosmow
the security sold shor and defiver it 1o the counterparty. The Fund wil
ardinaciy have 1o piy 3 fee of premium b0 bodrow & security and be cbligated
f0 repary the lender of the security any dhvidend or intenest that agrues on the
secutity dering the pericd of the loan. Securitses sold in short sale ransactions
anrd the dviidend of intevest payable on such securities, i vy, are nefliacied as
parpabli Tor shoar sales on the Stagement of Assets and Liabilities. Short sales
expose the Fund to the sisk that it will be regured to cower its shoet position
at a time when the secunty of other auset has appreciated in value, thus
tesultiveg in losses to the Fund A $hon sale i "against the box™ i the Fund
Pk in its portiole o has the right to aoguice the sequnty sold short 1 no
additional cost & Fund will be subject bo additional risks 1o the extent that it
engaQes in shoet sales that dre not “againsd the bax.™ A Fund's loss on a
whon sale could thedreticaly be unlimitéd in Cased where he Fund i unabie,
fior whatever reason, to dose out its short position

6. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The fnliowing disiesures contai infermation on how and why the Funds use
fmancial dermatie snstrumenss and hosy iranoa! deinative ingInumenl
affect the Funds' financial posizion, results of operations and cash fiows. The
lecation and far value amounts of these instruments on the S1atements of
Assets and Liabifives and the net realined gain (loss) and net change in
wniealized apprecaton (depeciation] on the Staements of Qperations, gach
categorized by type of financial dertatme costract and refated nsk exposure,
arg included in a table in the Motes to Schedufe of Investments. The tinancial
derivating instnasents outsanding &6 of pediod end and the amaunts of ret
reakzed gain (iorss) and net change in unrealized appreciation (depenciation)
on financial devivative instruments during the peniod, s disclosed in the
otes 10 Schedule of Wreestments, sent a5 indicators of the volume of
fmancial densatiee actonty foe the Fumds

{a) Forward Foreign Currency Contraets Ceman Funds may enter into
farwand Foreign currency confracts in connection with setiling planned
prarchinses oo Sales. of Securities, 50 heds the Cunendy Sxposure asiccinid
with some or all of a Fund’s securities or a5 a part of an imestment sirategy
A lorwaed foteign currency contract is an agreement bebaeen two parties to
by and 56l 3 curiency at & set price on 3 futune date. The matket value of 2
forward foreign currency contraa Mociuates with changes in Teeiign cumenty
exchange rabes. Fonward foresgn ourmency contracts are marked o marke
daly, and the change in vaies i eooeded by a Fund 38 an ureealized gain oo
Ioas. Roealized gasns o losses aee equal 1o the differersce berasen the value of
the coniradt af the tme o was cpendd and the value a1 the lime it was Cosed
and are recorded upon delivery or receipt of the cuirency. These contracts
rady imvdhve marked fak in enteds of the undeakioed gain of lass reflected on
the Staements of Assets and Liabilivies. In addition, a Fund could be exposed
A risk if the cousierpamies are unable 1o meet the tems of the contracts or i
the value of the curmency thanges. urdavorably 10 the henctional cumency, To
matigane dauch risk, cadh of Securities may be exchanged & oollaterad purguant
#0 the terms. of the undeilying conracts
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Cetain Funds having a hedged dlass may also emer info fprward Toeeign
currency contracts designed to offset the effect of hedging at the Fund level in
oidet 10 | the hidged clits with 3n expodune 1o cultencies athir than the
Tumsctionat curtency. Thene can be no quaranies that these dass specific
Torwand foretgn currency contracts will be successiul

s} Futwres Comtracts Cestaon Funds may enter into utunes contracts. A
Turures contract is an agréemant 1o buy or s&ll 3 secunty of other asetdor a
set price on 3 huture date. A Fursd may use futures contracts 10 manage its
eposure bo the securilies markets of 10 movements in interest rirtes and
Curibncy valult, Thie pramuty ddks daciated wath the use of Tutures contracts
are the imperect comelation between the changs in market value of the
secyrities held by a Fund and the prices of futures comtracts and the possibdity
of & iligoed market. Fututes contracts ane valued based upon their quated
daily sertiement prices. Upon entening into a Tugures conract, a Furd 1
requésed to deposit wath its futures broker an amount of cash, L%
Goreirrment and Agency Dbligations, or select soveresgh debl in accordance
with ghe initial masgin réquitements of the begker or exchangg. Futurgs
coniracts are marked to market daily and based on such movements in the
peice af the conlracts, an appeopriate payable of seceivable for the change in
vl mudry b posied of colecind by the Fund (" Futures Variation Margin™)
{ains of ipsses are regogrized but not corddered reaized until the corracts
expire or close. Fubures contracts involve, f0 vanying degrees, visk of loss in
encids of the Futues Vanation Mangn included within éxchange traded o
centrally cleaned financial dervativg instraments on the Stasements of Asets
and Lizhdties

lc} Options Contracts Certain Funds may wiite or purchase options &
enhance returns of § hedge an Existing posision or futune svastment. Certain
Funds may wiite call and pist cotions on sequwities and financal desvative
instrumenits thery o or in which they may st Writing put options tends
to incnease a Fund's exposue 10 the underhying estrument. Whiging cal
optns tends b decrease & Fund’s exposun 1 e underhing instumen
‘When a Fund writes a call or put, an amowunt equal 10 the peemium received is
reconded &% a liabiigy and subsequently marked to markes to reflect the
curient vl al the aptaon wriflen. Thase hakilities 3e included on ke
%tanements of Assets and Liabilities. Fremiums recerved from waiting options
which expire are treated as realized gains. Premiums recenved from witing
opsans which e extecised of dhoed are ddded 10 the peocseds of affue
against amouris padd on the underbying futures, swap, secunty or curmency
transaction to determine the realired gain or loss. Certain options may be
waitten with premiuee to be determined an a future date, The premiums S
thage optices and bised upon impled wolatdity parameters at ‘.[rHl.‘lh.r HEliY
A Fund as a writer of an option has no control over whether the underdying
imstrument may be sold ["call™) or purchased ["put™) and a5 3 result bears
the market eisk of an unfaeocable rh.‘lrﬂr i fhe petice o the irtrument
underlying the written cpilon. There is the sisk a Fund may not be abie ip
enter into 3 thosing transaction bacause of an WMiquid matket

Certan Funds may also pafchane put and call options. Purchasing call optians
tendk 1o srgneade 3 Fund's exposyre 10 the urihethying Erdtrument, Punchasing
put options bends: to decrease a Fund's exposure o the underlying instnument
A Fund parys a premium which = induded a5 an asset on the Statements of
Agsets and Liabisies and sutrequently marked 1o market 1o rellect the
gurreny value of the opieon. Premiums pad Tor purchasing optioes which
expire aie treated a5 realized fosses. Certain opfions may be purchased with
premiwms b be determined on & future date. The premiums for these ogtions
are bared upon impled wolasling parameters ag specified terms. The tisk
associated with purchasing put and call options is mited to the geemium
pakd. Fremiums paid for punchasing aptions which ae exencised o digsed ane
dded to the amounts pasd or affset against the procesds on the underying

invEstmest trarsaction 1o determing the reakred gain of loss when the
underying fransaction is executed

Interest Rate Swaptions Céstan Funds may wiite of puichise mersd rie
Swapnions whath are opbons 1o enter @ito a pre-defined deap agreemant by
some specified date in the fuature, The writer of the swaption beoomes the
counteparty 10 the swap if the buyer exercises. The interest sate

seaition agieement will specty whether the buyes of the swaption will be a
fmnd-rate receiver of a fised-rate payer upon exsrcse

Credit Dedanlt Swaptions Certain Funds may write oo punchase credit default
SN 16 Fibdge expotule 1o the cred sk of an irvestmint without
mating a commitmend to the underying insrumend. A credit default swaption
s an option to sell or buy oredit protection to a specfic refevence by entering
intt & prevcefined swap agieement by some spocified date in the future

Foreign Cormamcy Options Certain Funds may weile of purchase ‘.:lei(;"l
currenty apticns, Purchasing foeeign oumendy aptices gives a Fund the right,
But ot the obiigation ta buy or sell the spedSic amownt of qumendy af a rate
of exchange that emay be exercised By 3 certain date, Thede aptiors may be
wsed as a short or long hedge against possible vanations in foreign exchange
rates Of 10 Gain exposure £a foemign cammendies

Options on Securities Centain Funds may wiste of purchade cotions on
SECUNERS. AN Opon wses A ip-?ﬂ'.#d LeCurrly &b R uinderying st ument fewr
the option contract. A Fund may wiite or purchase ogtions 1o enhance refums
o b hedige an existing position of future Fvestment

Inflation-Capped Dptions Cemain Funds may wite o puichais inflazion-
capped options 1o enhance refums or Tor hedging opportunities: When a Fund
wriles an nflation-capped option, an amount equal to the premium receved
i recoeded a4 2 fability on the Statements of Assets Jnd Liakslites and
subsaquently marked to market 1o reflect the current value of the option
written. When a Fund purchases an inflation-capped option, the Fund pays a
premium which is reoonded a5 an et on the Statements of Assets and
Liabilties and subsequently marked 10 market 10 reflect the current value of
the cption. The purpase of purchasing infiation-capped options is to pratect
a Fand from infation encsion abowe 3 cevtain fabe an a given notional
expoiise, A Boor can be wped 1o gt downdide protection 1o imiessments in
inflation-linked products

Interest Rate-Cappod Optlens Certan Funds may wite o purchase interest
rate-capped aptions ta enhance fetaing o Sor hedging opporunizies. When
& Fued waites an intenest rate-capped opbion, an amount equal 1o the
premium recerved is recorded as a Babelity and subsequently marked to
maket o reflect the cument value of the cption writhen. When 3 Fund
putchages an injeness rage-capped option, the Fund pins & premium whdch 1§
recorded as an asset and subsequently marked 10 masket to reflect the
current value of the option. The purpase of purchasing interest rate-capped
aptior i b phodect a Fund o Tloan i) R Tk Mg B BB FASE O 3
given notional exposure. & floce can be used (o ghve downside protection 1o
Inveestrmenis in eerest rate linked products

Optéons on Exchange-Traded Futeres Comracts Cortain Funds may wite or
prurchase opiiong on exchange-traded futunes contracts (" Futsies Qptica”) to
Fecdge an enisting position of futwe imvestment, for speculative purposes of to
manage exposure 1o masket movements. A Futures Option b an cption
cantract in which the underhying nstrument is o snghe fulutes conbia

Straddie Options Cenain Funds may enter into difeing forms of sraddle
options. A stracdie is an investment strategy that uses combinations of
aptioes that allow a Fund to profit based on the future price movements of
1he ursdeehing securizy, regardikess of the direcoon of those movements. A
written stradilie imvolves simaftanepusly weiting a call cption and a put option
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on the same security with the same strite price and expiration dae. The
written straddie increases invalue when the underiying security price has little
wolpzilay Bedone the expiration date. A punchased straddie irvolve
simultaneausly puichasing a cal option and a put option on the same saqueity
with the same strike price and expiration claze. The purchased straddle
increanes in vilug whn the undeshing secursty price bas high volatility
regardless of direction, before the expeation dae

{d) Swap Agrosments Certain Funds may imest in swap agreements. yaap
agreaments are bilaterally negotiated agreements beteeen a Furd and a
Coutterpaity 1o exchange of Swp investmee cabh Mows, Faset, Totesgn
currendies of market-linked retums at specified, futuee intervals. Swap
agresments may be privately negatiated in the dver the counter market {TOTC
sweapd”) of may be cleared through a thind party, known i 3 obntral
CounIBpaty of dervatves dearing piganization | "cenirally deaned swaps”)
A Fund may enter into asset, credit default, aoss-cumency, mitenest rate, toeal
retuim, wariance and other foims of dwap agteements 1o manage ity exposund
1o crechy, ourmeedy, mienest rate, commadny, equety and inflation risk. in
cormection with these agreements, seculities of cash may be identiied as
collaberal or mangin i acttedance with the terms of the sespacine swap
agnbemenss ta pravice aseets of vadue and recourse in the event of defmilt o=
banknuptoyfinsabsency

Centrally cleared swages are marked bo market daily based upon valuations as
determined from the underlying contract or in accondance with the
reeements of the central countesparty or derivaties chiaring ceganization
Changes in market value, if 2wy, are reflecied as a component of net change
in unreaired appreciation (depreciation) an the Statements. of Cpedations
Daily changes in valuation of centrally cleaeed swaps | Swap Vamation
kezegn®), if ary, are discosed within centrally deaed Brancial denvative
instrumenis on the Statements of Assets and Liatdities. OTC swap payments
received of paid at the beginning of the measuement penod e inchaded on
the Saaterments of Assers and Liabinies and represeny premaums. pand or
received upon entering into the swap agreement 1o compensate for
differences between the stated 1o of the swap agreement and prevailing
markes conddtions (Creda speeads, curmency exchange rates, insiesl rades. and
other refevant factors). Updront premiums tecetved (pald) are initially reconded
as liabilities {assets) and sulwequently marked 1o markel fo reflect the cument
wlue of the swap. These uplieet premiums S necarded a5 nealud gaer of
bosses on the Sratements of Operations upon temination or maturisy of the
swap. A figudation payment tecefved or made at the bermination of the swap
i reconded & realimed gain or foss on the Statements of Operations. Net
perioahs payrmdets recenned of paid by a Fund s included a5 pan of reafired
gains of |osses on the Statements of Operatons.

For purpcses of applying & Fund's investment polices and restrichons, swap
agheerments gne genitally valued by the Fund 5t Sakit vilue. 16 the tase of &
crecht defauht swap, = applying cerain of the Fund's investment policies and
restrictions, The Fund will value the credit default swap at its notional value or
its full expedure value i, the s af the ntional amoont for the contract
plus ghe markes vakae], bus may witlug the {reda defanh wap a1 marke] valuk
Tor purposes of applying certain of the Fund's cther westment policies and
restrictions. For meample, the Fund may value cedit default swags at full
expersure value for purposes of the Fund's cridie quality guidelines (if any)
bacause such value in gemeral bettes reflects the Fund's acual ecomamic
exposure duting the term of the credit defauf swap agreement. As-a result, 3
Fand may. at times, hawe notional expasure 1o an asset class (belore netting)
that is greater of besoet than the stated limit o resirichon noted m the Fund's
Oflering Memorandum. in this conlext, both the notional amount and the
market valye may be positive of negative depending on whither the Fund

i H\II-!:J o l:w‘-;] prateQlion '.I'||an:JI| thie ekl defauh Wi This manner in
which certain secundies or other instnuments are vahued by the Fund for

putposes of apphydng investment polickes and restrictions may differ froem the
mannes inwhich those investmends ane valued by other types of investors
Erfiering inlo these aqeeements inolves, 10 varying digeess, elements of
Inqeresy, credit, market and documentation risk in excess of the amaunts
recognized on the Statements of Assels and Liabflities. Such risks imvolve the
pasibility that thére will B o liquid market for these agressents, 1hat the
counserpanty 1o the agresments may default on s obbgation 1o perdorm o
dsagree as to the meaning of confractual terms in the agreements and that
there may be unfavarable thanges in interest rates

A Fignel's, manimum ik of ks Fom countedparty crecht ik B the desounted
et value of the cash flows 1o be recerved From the counterpanty dver the
cantract's remaining life, to the extent that amount is positive. The risk may
be mitigated by haring a mirster netting anangement bébaeen 3 Fund and
the counterpanty and by the pesting of collateral toa Fund 100w @ Fund's
exposiEe to the counterparty

Credit Delawlt Swap Agrosments Cemain Funds may use oedit delault
#wdges om corporase, boan, sovereigen, LLS. municipal or LS. Treaduny issues to
provide a measure of prosection against defaults of the Issuevs i e, 1o reduce
risk where a Fund owms o has exposaee to the refererced obfigation) of 1
take an active long or short pasition with respect to the kelihood of &
pamacular issued's default. Credit default swap agreements imvale one pamy
making a stream of payments (referrad 10 as the buyer of pootection) to
arvather party {the seder of protection] in exchange for the right 1o recere 3
specified requrn in the event 1haq the referenced entity, obligation of index, 3
specified in the swap ageeement, undengoes a certain credit event. As 3 sellel
of protection an credit delault swap agreements, & Fund will generaly receive
fiee that buer of protection a fntd race of income theoughaut the sem of the
swap provided that there i no credit event. As the seliar, 3 Fund would
effoctively add beverage to its portfolio because, in addition 1o s botal net
ausets, the Fund would be subpect ta investment expcrune on the naticnal
amaunt of the swap,

i a Fund is a sefer of protection and a credt event ocours, as defined under
the terms of that particular swap agreement, a Fund will either {i) pay to the
Baryer of peonection an amoun ege to the nogional ameunt. of the Swap and
take delvery of the referanced obhigaticn, ather delverable obligations of
underying securities comprising the relerenced index or (i} pay a net
sertement amoust in the form of cash or securities equal to the notional
amaunt of the swap less the recovery value of the referanced obligaticn or
underhying secusities comprising the referenced index. it a Fund &5 a buyer of
proaection and a credit event ocours, a4 defined under the fems of that
patscular s Bgreement, & Fund will sither (1) fogenve from the seller ol
peatection an amownt equal 1o the notional amoont of the swap and deliver
the referenced obligation, alivr delrerable obiigations or underfying
sbcuiitiel domprising the redesenced i e (o) réceme & el dettlement
amgunt in the fomn of cash or securiges equal 1o the rotional amount of the
swap bess the recovery value of the referenced obiigation or underlying
secuiities comprising the neledenced ndex. Recovery values are estimated by
kel makers considerning ehir imdustry wandaed recovery (ates of enity
specific factors and considerations until a credit event oocurs. [ 3 cedit event
bars pocured, the recavery vafue s determined by a fadlitated auction
whangy 3 mirimum number of allrwable bioker bids, 1ogethes with 4
specified vatuation method, ane used 1w caloulace the seqtiement walye. The
ablity to daliver other obligations may result in 3 dheapest-to-deliver option
(the buyer of peatection™ right to chaase the deliverabie obligation waith the
It varas Sollowdng a credhl event)

Credit default swap agreements on credt indices involve one party making a
stream af payments b another party in exchange for the right T0 recehe a
specilied return in the event of & weite-down, geincipal shonfall, intesest
shortfall or defauit of a8 or part of the referenced entities comprising the
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gredht indiex. A credit inde ts @ basket of credir instiuments of exposures
designed to be representative of some part of the credit markef as a whole.
Thees ingdices ae0 made up of refenence credits that dee judged by 3 poll of
dealess 1o be the most liguid enities in the cradit defauly swag market based
on the sector of the index. Components of the indices may include, but are
not limitied to, investmient grade seomities, agh yield securitied, svset-hacked
sacurities, emerging markets, andl of vatous cred ratings within each seior
Credit indices are raded using creds defaul swaps with standardzed terms
including  fixed spread and standard maturity dases. An index credit delault
hap refetences ol the names in the inden, and i theve is 3 delault the crodit
event 15 seftled based an that name’s weaght in the index. The oomposition of
e indices changes penodically, wsualy every six months, and for most
indices, emch name Rurd an equal weight in the index. A Fund may use credi
defauly sweaps on credi indees 1o hedge a portfolio of credit default swaps of
bonds, which i le<s ewpansive than it wowld be to buy many credit default
swaps 1o ackieve a similar effect. Credin default swaps on indices ane
instrumanss for peobecting smmestons awning bonds againgt defsul, and
traders use them to speculate on changes in aedit quality

Implied credit spréads, mapresented in dbsolute teime, utilined in delermining
thee vkl wlue of crecky disfaul Swap agreements on copoeang, ban
sowerign, LS, municipal of B Treasury issues as of period end, I any, are
discosed &n the Habes 1o Schedule of krmestments. They serve as an indcator
of the coment status of payment/periprmance risk and represent the Bielihood
o disk of default for the referenced entity. The imphed crechs spread of 2
particular referenced entity reflects the cost of buying/selling protection and
may include uphiont payments tequined 1o be made to enter inta the
agreemens, Wider Credi Spoeds regresent 3 deperikinasion of the refenenced
entity's credit soundness and a greater hkethood or nek of default or other
credit evend ooturning & defined under the terms of the agreament. For credit
default swap agreements on asiet-backed sacurities and credit indices, the
quoted market prices and resuling values serve a5 1he indicator of the current
stafus of the paymentiperformance risk. Increasing matket values, in sbsolute
terms. whien companed 1o the potienal amaunt of the swap, reprsent a
detersration of the referenced enity's credin soundness and a greanir
Eielihood or eisk of default or other credit event oourring as defined nder
12 18 of the agreement

The mammum pesential ameunt of future paymers (undiscounted) Pt

a Fund as a seller of protectson could be reqgueed to make under a oedit
default swap agreement eguats the notional amount of the agreement
Nedional amicunts of each individual credit delault swap agreement
outstanckng a5 of pencd end for which a Fund is she seller of protection are
disgloaed in the Mobes 1o Schedule of brvestments. These potential amounts
wonild be partially odfeet by any recovery values of the respactive referenced
:Il;lluﬂl‘:l,‘.\'ll._ up|||;|‘|| et PEOMVEd Upon eriliEing inlg the jgpeemisnt, of
net amounts received fiom the seftiement of buy protection credit default
swiap agreements entared into by 3 Fund far the same referenced entity o
it

Cross-Currency Swap Agreements (emain Funds may enbes inig orass-
CUTTENCY SWap SgUEements 10 galn O mitigate expoSUIe B CueTendy risk
Crods-cumenty swap agreements involve b parties enchanging two ditlaent
curiengies with an agieement 1o fenerie the exchange at & baer dae af
spagified exchange tates. The exchange of currencass at the inception dase of
the contract takes place at the cument spot rate. The re-exchange at maturity
may take place at the same exchange rate, a spectied rate, or the then
CURTENG Spat rate. Imeness payments, i applicable, ace made beressen the
parties based on interest rates available i the two currencies at the incepition
of the contract, The terms of ross-cumendy swdp contracts may extend b
Ay paars. Cigss-Cuiméndy Sadps ang usually ra:qallal;qﬂ'.-.-!:h ComimeiCan

ard investment banks, Some Cross-Cuniency Swaps may not provide for
exchangng principal tash flows, but only foe exchanging interest cash ows.

Interest Rate Swap Agrepments Cemain Funds s sufubcl to interest fate
tisk exprsure i the roemal course of pursigng their emestment objectives
The value of the fued rate bonds that a Fured holds may decrease if interest
rabes sise. To bfp hedge against this risk and 1o maintain its ability 1o
gEnerale indome af prevaieg market fages, 3 Fund may Bntes into intevest
rale swagp agreements. Inferest 1ate swap agreements irvohe the exchangs
by & Fund with ancther pary b their respective commitmend to pay of
HigEE iSedeaY O the notional amew of prncipal, Cenasn loemd of interest
rate swag agréements may mclude: (i} inteeest rate caps, under which, in
retuEn for @ premium, one party agrees io make payments to the other 1o the
extent that intensst faties exceed b specibed tate, of "cap”, (i) inteiest 1ate
floors, underwhich, n retum for 2 premium, one party agrees 1o make
payments to the cther to the extent that inbevest rates fall below a specified
rate, of "loor™, () intenedt rate coflars, wnder which & party sells a cap and
pronchases @ Soor of vige versa in an Smempl 1o protect itself againg inerest
rate movements exceeding given maemum of maximum levels, (i) callable
irferest rafe swaps, under which the buyer pays an upliont fee in
consideration for the right 10 earty berminane the Swap transactian in whalt,
a1 reng cost and at a predesrmined date and time priar 10 the maturicy dase,
() spreackocks, which aliow the infesest e swap users to lock in the
farwaed differential for spread) between the interest cabe swag (3% and 3
specified benchmark, o (vi) basis swaps, under whech two panies can
exchange vanable interest rates based on diflerent segments of money
matkets

Volatility Swap Agreemants Cerlain Funds may snter sio forwacd l.'\‘.:ﬁ.’lhl:l:.I
ayeements, also known a8 volatibty swaps. In 3 volashity swap, the
counserparties agiee 1o make payments in connection with changes in the
vilablity (1.2, the magritude of change aver 4 specthied penod of fime) of an
andiriyireg reherpnce instiumen, such a4 a [uErendy, cabe, nden, SeCulify of
other financial instrument. Viedatikty swaps permat the parties to attempt 1o
hedge wolatiity risk andice take positicers on the projected tuture volatility of
an undieriyng el Epee indtrument ol Eammple. & Fund mdy enbet inba.a
volatility swap in oader 1o 1ake the position that the reference instument's
vilatility wall increase cver 3 particular pediod of time, If the refierence
inAtrument’s wolatibty does incriae over the specified time, the Fusd wl
fecete payment from s counterparty based wpon the amount by which the
reference instrument's realized volathity level exceeds a volablity level agreed
upan by the pares. If the refence instrument’s volatiity does not increste
el the i.pult'l‘hﬁd g, the Fund will make @ pasymient 1o the Dounberpany
barsed upon the amount by which the reference inseument's realzed volatibty
fevei falls below the wolatility level agreed upan by the parties. At the maturity
date, & et cadh Now 15 :-r:h.!ﬂ;:d wyhiee hie ||a':,'p‘.l amdunt i equivaiend 1o
the difference between the realeed price vanance of the underhing asset and
the strike price multiptied by the nationad amaunt. As a recefver of the
realped pice variance, the Fund would recetve the payolt amount when the
reakped price wariance of the umdedying assel B greater than the strike price
and would owe the payolf amount when the vanande is less than the strike
As a payer of the reafized price variance, the Fund would owe the payol
amount whin the realised price vavriance of the underhying asset i gester
than the strike prce and would tecerve the payolf 2mount when the variane
5 less than the stnke. Payments on a volatility swap will be greater i they are
baried upon the mathematical square of wolatdity (e, the meaduned wolatlity
muultiplied by Bseil, which i redemed 1o a8 “vaniance”). This type of valatitiy
swap &5 frequently seferred 10 as a variance swap.
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7. PRINCIPAL RISKS

In the noemal couwrse of business, the Funds trade financial instrumenss and
enter into financal trarsactions where risk of pobential boss. pxists due 10 such
thirgs a5 changes in the market (market risk) oo hailure or inabissy of the
other pary 1o & ransaction ha perform [oredit and counterpany risk). See
below for 2 detaded description of select principal tisks.

Fund of Funds To the extent that certam Funds invest substantbially all of their
e pilive BESET in Adguined Fonds, The ks ssoustivd with iveshng in
theesse Furscls will b chosely related to the risks associated with the sequrities
and other imvestments heid by the Acquired Funds. The ability of the Funds to
Bchieve their respocine inviitment cbpectives sy depend upon the ability of
T Apguired Fusds to ackuave their espegivg irresirmee] clgdciives. Thede
can be no assuance that the imestment objective of any Aogpured Fund will
ba achieved. The NAY of an Aoquiring Fund will Buctusta in response to
changes in B rpspecineg MAY of ghe Aggured Fund inowhich 1| invests

In the normal couwrse of business, Acgered Funds trade financal instnements

and enter inka financial transactions where risk of potential loss exists due to

:Mrgn. i P ket {marke mk), oc failure of inadslity of the other Pty to
& transaction 10 perform {oredit and counberparty risk)

Market Rigke A Furd's investments in financial dervative mstrumends and
othet finantial instruments expase the Fund to vacious. risks such a3, but not
bemmied RO, INGERESE fA0E |I)ﬂ'-ql1 [radin-L0. 5. ) cuttgndy, ity and :qmnmd'.;

Tisks

Interest sabe risk is the nsk that fixed moome sacuntees and othes instnuments
hekd by & Fand wall decling in valos Bechuse of on increase in inbeest rans

s nommanal interest rates rise, the walue of cenain fixed income securales held
by & Fumd s likety to decrease. A nominal intenest rate can be descnibed s
the suimi o b real intirest 3% and an expedtid inflatian tite, Intenest fa%e
changes can be sudden and unpepdictabie, and a Fund may lose money i
these changes ae nof anticipated by Fund management. A Fund may nof be
able 1o hedge againit changes in inbevest rates or may choose rat to do so for
<041 o othir rEasand. in g, amy h[-ﬂji}(-:. gy nog work a4 intengied

Duration is a measure wsed 1o determing the sensitivity of a seounty's peice to
changes in intérest rates 1hat incorporates. a security’s yiekd, coupan, final
matutity and call Teatues, amang other charsaeristics. Cofmaexity o an
additional measure of interest rate sensitivity thag measunes the rate of
change of duration in response ta changes in interest rates. Fned income
securities with kanges durations tend to be more sendtive to changes in
interest rates, usually making them more volatile than sequeities with shorter
durations. & wide variety of facors can cause inferest rates i rise (e,
central bank monetary policies, inflation rates, general economic conditions,
16, Ax prevent, the U5 and many parts of the woild, including otrtan
European countries, are a1 o2 near histodically low Intesest rates. The

Funds may be subject to heightened interest rate risk because the Federal
Resérve has ended its quantitative easing peogram and hurs begun, and may
cordinue, B0 i irteredd rates. To the extent tha the Fedecal Reserat
Continues 10 rase mierest rates, thene is a itk that rates across the financial
system may nise. Further, while bond markets have steadily grown over the
past theee decades, dedter ~market making™ ability has not kept pace and in
some cases has decreasad. Ghen the importance of mermediany “marker
making™ in creating a robust and active market, fived income: seurities are
currenthy facing increased volatily and liquidity ridks. AB of these factors,
collecrvely andlor imdrddually, could cause a Fund 1o fose walue, If the Fund
lost enough value, the Fund coubd face increased Unitholdes redemptions
which could force the Fund to hquidate investments at dsadvantageous times
o |pries, therily acvenisly affeey g the Fund, Also, the Fund may be
atversely aflected when a large Unethofder purchases of tedeems large
amauris of units, which ¢an coour at any time and may impact the Fund in

the same manner 35 a high volume of redemprion mguests. Large Uratholder
Trarssactions may impack the Fund's liquidity and net asset value. Sach

T ACTans My also inceease the Fund's tracmadtion (ods of cthenvise
cause the Fund to perform differently than imended. Moreover, the Fund is
subject 1o the risk that other Unitholders may make westment decisions
based on the chaices of 2 large Usitholdar

Tia the @xtent that cernain Funds may st i secutities. and instrumanas that
aee pconomitally tied 1o Russia, the Funds are subject 1o varioos risks such a,
Bt nrt limited to political, economic, legal, market and oumency risks. The
fisks include uncértin polsical and economic policies, shofl-tedm market
volatility, poor agcounting standands, corruption and crime, an inadequate
requlatory system, and unpredciable tamation. Investments in Russia ae
pataculaily subject 16 he rik that fuithed econdmic sanchand may be
imparsed by the United States andior ather countries. Such sancrions, whech
may Impact companies in marny secioes, indoding enengy, finandal services
30 delende, amang athers, may negatively impact a Fund's peroimante
aeilior ability 10 schieve it iveesiment objsctve, Thie Ryugsian secueities
market, a5 coempared o US. markets, has significant prace volatilty, less
lipeckey, & smalker marked capitalization and a smalier numbser of traded
wecunties, Adverse uingncy exchange rates are 3 risk and there may be 3 Lick
of avadabie pumendy hedging instruments. imestments in Russia may be
subject to the sk of nationalizaton or espropriation of assets. O, natural
gas, metas, and timber aocoun Bor a significant portion of Rusiia’s expaits,
Ipaving the counsry vilrerable 1o fwangs in workl pices

Forelgn [non-U 5.) securitses i this report 2#e dassified by the country of
incorparation of a holding. In certain instances, a secwity's country of
incoipanation may be different ficem it counsry af economic expodue

H-a Fund ireests directly in Soresgr {non-LL5.) querencees or in sequrities that
trade in, and receive revenues in, foreign {non-ULS.) cumenties, of in financial
devivative instiuments that proide expasune 1o Soneign SnaneLlL 5. ] unendes,
it will B subject 1o the sk than thase ouemencies will decling in value nelative
i the base oumency of the Fund, o1, in the case of hadging pesitions, that
the Fund™s base cumency will dedline in value relative 1o the cuirency being
Fedged. Curtency rates in Fareign countries may luctuane significastly over
short penads of time fior a number of reasons, induding changas in terest
rates, interventicn {oe the failure 10 intervers] by ULS. or foreign goveimments,
central banks of updanatanal entitsts such &5 the Inpéonationsl Moneiany
Fund, or by the imposaion of currendy controls of ofher poktical developments
in the Ursted States or abroad. As a resudt, 3 Fund’s imvestments in foreign
curreny-denominated securities may reduce the Fund's rebums

The mgricet values of squities, Such & comman shocks and prefpmed sequrities
of equity refated imvestments such as fututes and optons, have historically
risen and faller in periodic oycles and mary decline die 1o general market
conditaons which aie not specdically nelated 1o & panticular company, such o
teal or pesceived adverse econamic conditionrs, changes in the general
outleck: for corporate eamdngs, changes in interest or cunency raies of
achrerse smvestor sentiment generally. They may ako dedling due o Eacton
whach affect & pamicular industry or mdustries, such as fabor dhomages of
[mcreased production (osts and comipetitive conditions within an industry
Different types of equity securities may teact difterenty to these
develapments, Equity securitees and equity related imesiments genaratly hine
greater markeq price wolatiiny than foed income securties

Credit and Countarparty Risks & Fund will be eaposed o credd sk to

partied with whom # tadies a0d wal also bear the rek of sestlement default
A Fumd minimizes concemrations of eedin rsk t::.-u!ulﬂ'lahﬁ:_] [=F 1R e T e ]
with a large number of customess and countenparties on recogrized and
reputalle exchanges, whene spplicable. Over the counter {TOTC") derfative
Uraersactics ang Subjidt 10 the itk that a :-!.lunrﬂp.il‘.:,'m'.ht trandation will
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not fulfil its contractual obligations 10 the other party, as many of the
protections afforded to centrally deared derivative transactions might not be
aeailabie for OTC derivative ransactions. For dervatines Baded on an
exchange or theough a central countesparty, credit resk tesides with the
creditworthiness of the Fund's dieazing broker, or the dearinghowse isalf,
rashet than 16 & Sounserparty in an OTC dervatie transaction. Changes in
tegulation relating to a Fund's use of dervatives and related inssumens
¢oafd potentially limit o impact the Fund's abdy to invest in dezivatives, imit
the Fured's ability to emplay certam sirabeges that use dervatives andlor
d;}:mlr.ﬂ‘ml the valoe of pestormance of decreatnes and the Fund, & Fund
couid kose money i the wssuer o gaarantor of a foed income seurity, or the
counterparty to a financial derivative instruments contract, repurchase
agreemsnd or a loan of poetiolio securnlies, is unable of umwiling 1o make
nimety principal andion interest payments, of 10 othenwase honor its
obligaticrs. Sequrities and financial derivatee instrumeents are subject ta
varying degrees of credi risk, which may be reflected in credit ratings

Samidar no credi risk, @ Fund may be exposed 1o counterpay risk, o 1he risk
tha an irstitution or other enity with which a Fund has unsegtled oo open
transactions will default. FIMCD, & the Manager, minimizes counterparty
tisks 50 the Funds through & sumber of ways, Priar 16 entering imo
Iransactions with a new countenpany, the FIMCO Counterpary Risk
Commitiee conducts an extensiee redd review of such counterparty and misst
apprave the use of such counterparty, Furtheemare, pursuant b the teims of
1o ndierhyimg omract, 10 the exent thas unpesd amouns cwed 1 a Fund
enceed a predetermined threshold, such counterparty shall advarce collateral
1o Fund in the foem of cagh or securities equal in value 1o the wapakd
amount ovwed 0o a Fund. A Fund may imes1 Sixch colaenl in securitess of
other insinements and will TypscaBy pay interest ta the counterparty on the
eollateral received. If the ungpaid amound owed to 2 Fund subsequently
decreadit, 3 Fund wold be required to neturm 10 the counterparty 38 o
portion of the collaperal présiously atvanced. PIMCO's attempis 10 meirimize
counierparty risk may, however, be unsuocesshul

All fransactions in listed secwibes are seftiedipaid for upon delivery wang
appoovid counseiparnes. The risk of default o contdered minimal, 35 dedery
of securities sold is only made once a Fund has receded payment. Payment ts
made on 3 purchase cnce the securties have been delivered by the
oncenerparty. The: trade will Rail if either paery fails to meet #s cbligaion

Master Nefling Arrangements The Funds may be subject 10 varous nening
amangements {"hiaster Agreements”) with select counterparties. Master
Agreemants govem the ferms of certan transactions, and neduce the
courlepanty mk sisocased with relevant ransactions by specitying creds
protection mechanisms and providing standaedization that improves legal
certainty. Each type of Master Agreement gowerns certain types of
transactions. Delfenent trpes of ransactions may b taded out of dillenent
legat enities. o affikianes of a paniouiar onganization, resulting in the need for
multiphe agyeements with 3 single counierparty, As the Master Agreemants.
ae woncific % unigue aperations of different ascet types, they aliow & Fand to
chose cut and net its 1ol exposuse 10 A (ourierparty in the event of a delauy
with respect to afl the Bansactions governed wnder a sngle Master
Agréement with a counterparty. For financial reparting purposes the
Statemnenis of Assets and Liabilities genera®y predent dértvatrve 25sets and
Latitees on & geoss basis, which reflects the full cisks and exposues prior i
netting

Mariter Agréements can ala help limit countetparty fisk by specifpng
cotlateral posting anangements 3 pre-amanged exposure levels. Under mast
Weazsier Agreements, cofiateral is routmely ransferted if the 1otal net exposure
1o certain ransactions (net ol existing oollaterad already in place] govemed
uner e rebvans Master Agresmens wilh 3 COUNMETPAITy & 3 gren Scount
exceeds a specified threshold, which typically ranges from zero 10 $.250,000

depending on the counterparty and the type of Master Agreement. Uniled
States Treasury Bills and 1.5, dolfar ash are generaly the peeferred foms of
collateral, ptheugh other Forms of AAA rated papar o Sventgn Securities
mmary b used depending on the tamms outlined in the applicable Master
fugieement. Secunties and cash pledged as collateral are reflected as

Feses on the Statements of Assens and Lishilties 5 oither 3 component of
Ievvesomens &1 value (iecuines) ar Deposits with counterpanty feash]). Cash
collateral recetved is not typically held in 2 segeegated atoount and as such is
reflecied a5 & liabiiity on the Tatements of Assets and Liabilities as Depoiits
fiom counterpaity, The mackel value of sy seouites receved a5 collatersl
ot eeflected as a compenend of NAY. The Fund's overall exposure to
countesparty risk can change substantialy within a shart penod, & it s
alectid by each ransachon subject 10 the relevant Master Ageeement

Masser Repurchase Agreements and Global Mascer Regurchase Agresmems
(indridisally and coflectively " Master Repe Agreements™) govern reponchase,
femerbe mapurchase, dnd sale-buyback transadtiond between the Funds and
SElRCY counterpaies, Master Repo Agréements maingain pronisions Tor,
amang other things, inftiation, incoeme payments, evenits of default, and
martenance of collateral. The market value of transactions wndes the Marster
Fepo Ageeement, colliteral pledgid or necerved, and the net enpsure by
counzpanty &5 of period end ane disclosed in the Motes to Schedule of
Irvestments

Mazzen Securities Foreaed Tramsaction Agreements (~Master Fonward
Apeements”) govern cenain forward semhing vansacions, such as TBA
sequrities, delayed-delvery or sale-buybadk vansactions by and

beteveen the Funds and select counterparties. The Master Fonward
Aggeements maintain prowisions for, amang other thngs, initation and
confirmaticen, payment and transher, events of defauly, teemination, and
mantenance of collateral, The market value of forwaed settling transactions,
collateral predged of teceived, and the net exposure by Coumterpaity a3 ol
period end ae dischesed in the Noses 1o Schedule of Imcestments

Customer Aroount Agreemants and selated addenda govem deared
devivatives trandactions such as fulstes, options on futenes, and cleated CTC
derwatnneg. Soch b andhons ieguing posting of initial Targen a5 denpmingd
by each relevant deanng agency which is segregated in an acoount at a
futwes commission medchant ("FOM ") registered with the Commodity
Futunis Teading Commission (TCFTCT). Inthe United Sttes, counbéepany risk
15 sagnificantly reduced 2 credfors of an FOM cannot hawe a dale o Fund
atsets in the seqregated accoust. Additionally, portability of exposure in the
event b an FCM default scenario further reduces sk 1o the Funds. Yariation
maign, of changes in marke ! walue, are exchanged daly, but may ol be
rethed between futures and dieared OTC dervatives. The market value ol
accumiiaied unrealized appreciation (depreciation], initial margin pested, and
Ay unsatled variation macgin 33 of penced end doe disclosed in the Nates to
Schedule of Iresiments

Intemational Swaps and Derivatives Assodation, Inc. Master Agreements and
Credit Support Annexes {7504 Master Agreements ™) gévem bilatera OTC
dereatnid bransaoiond entengd @to by the Funds with selict coumBrpacties
S0 Master Agreements maintain provisions for geneval obligations,
representations, agreements, collateral and events of default or termination
Events of termination indude conditions that may entitle counterparties to
elert 1o terminare earky and cause satlement of all cutstanding transactices
under the applicatie B0A Master Agreement. Any electon to terminate sarly
could ke material b0 the finandial dtatements. bn lemited drosmstandes, the
S0 Master A eement may conain addnional peoviiaons that add
countedparty protection beyond coverage of exkting daly exposure if the
countedparty has a deckne in credit quality below a peedelined level, These
armounts, if @y, may be segregated with & thed-pany custodian, The market
value of OTC financial derivatie instruments, collateral recenved or pledged,

Mewamal Fiapon | My 11. 2047
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y &5 OF penind end aie redosed in i

PIMCO Barmvsds Foreign Low Duration Fasd 0736 %
PIMCO Barmuda U.5. Lew Doratson Fund 01736 3
PIMCO Ewvo Total Retum Fund
PEMCO Beal Retsen Foad
PIMCO Short:-Term Strategy

- MY

- uso

{e, FINCO genaraly makes 3 pf

DB e B Fund. The Manager, and nol Uretholders, would be

uding decieases resul of ansats
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The Funds (or Classes thereal, a5 applicable] may bear other expenses related 10 their operataon that ane rot covered by the management, adisory, administiathe,
agency o distribution fees, including but not limited to: (i) tames and governmensal fees; () brokerage fees and commessions and other partiolio ransaction expenses;
L} e ol Bdindray ) Moy, ihhed ) InbineT exXpense [y} oty daid ATy XpEnLEs, imciuding oo ol i."ggll:l' e indemaibhcation o, av (v) arwy e

alocaned or alfocabde 10 a specific Class of units, a5 apphicable, FAMCO has pald, o will pay, the ceganizational experrses assoclated with FIMCD Shor-Teem Smraceqy's
initial sat-up

PIMCO andior its aMfikanes wall intially advance to PINCO Short-Term Strategy all costs and expenses, induding legad expenses, maurred in cannecion vith the mitial
public offaring of the JPY and USD Classes of Unins of the Fund in lapan (“Offenng Expensas™). A1 o neat the commencement of the Fund's operations, the Fund will
reimbuse FIMCO andior iis atfiliates for the Oifering Experses advanced and will amortize such Offering Expensas over the first fiscal year of its operations. However,
PIMCD has agreed to waive rembursement of the Offering Expenses. to the extent that such expenses mceed 0.05% pes anrum of the sum of the IPY and USD
Clatoes's Met At Viakoe (the “Offening Expende Limitation ™), Amy Ofeting Expernies waneed due 1o he Olfesing Expence Limisation may be eaoupid by PIMCO
andior fts afiliates for a penicd not exceeding Thve years froem the commencement of the Fund’s operatons; provided, the amount 1ecouped by PFIMCD andor its
affiliabes shall nog exceed 0.0%5% per annum of the sum of the JPY and USD Classes’ NAY. If eities of the IPFY and USD Classes of Units of the Fund is tesminased prao
15 thee Bull ieimbursement of all Offering Experdes, PIMCO ancior s a¥fikates shall nat deek remburuemend of afry femaining weeimbursed amoonts e that Class
Furthermese, If bath of the JPY and USD Classes of Units of the Fund are eeminated price to the full reimbursemeny of 2l Ofering Expenses, FIMCO andioe iis atfiliates
shall not seek reimbyssement of aery remaming unresmbursed amounits from the Fund. As of May 31, 2017, the recoverable amownt of Offering Expenses to PIMCD
andior it affhiates was 551,088

PINCIO has appoinbed SMEC Nikho Secunties Inc 1o act as agent Coenpany and Dstributor for the detibution and senvicing of ueits of the PIMCO Euro Total Return
Fund, P CO Real Retum Fand, and PIMCO Short-Teem Steateqgy to netald imvestorns in Japan, No distributons have been appointad Bor any of the ather Funds.

A5 noted in the table above, cevtan Funds and Classes of Funds are not subject to management, advisory. administrative, agency o distribution fees. PIMCO Japan
Led, PIMCO's affiliace in Japan, 15 paid a fee fram the Aapanese Imestment Tists of caher imesiment vehicles that invest in such Funds or Classes and a ponign of
sych Tee ks then allocated to PIMCO to compensate it for its sendces

PINMCO) hag paid the orgacizational expenses assotiated with the creation of the Trust. If further Funds ane Ranched, such costs dirsctly attribustable 1o the refevan
Fund may be boene by the relevant Fund

4, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Investment Adviser is a related party to the Funds and is a majority-owned subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management AG. Fees payable 1o the relased party, i any,
ame desclosed in Mate 8, and accrued related party fee amounts, if any, e dischosed on the Statements of Assets and Liabilities.

Al Asset Management AG, & related party of the Trast, cwmed 0.1% of the net dssets of the PIMCD Emenging Mackets Bond Fund 1| and 47, 0°% of the net assets
of the FIMCO Emeeging Markets Bond Fund M 25 of bay 31, 2017

Cestain Funds ane permittad to porchase or self securities fiom or to cemain refated affiliated funds under specified conditions cutlined in procedures adapted by the
Investment Adviser. The procedises have been designed 10 endure that any pusthase or saké of securities by a fund from or 10 another fund that is or could be
corradered an adfiliane by vire of having 4 commaon adviser (or affiliated imesoment advisers), i effected at the cumem maskel price, During the pencd ended May
35, 2017, the Funds below engaged in purchases and safes of secuwites among affiliated funds (amounas in thousands)

Fund Furchasat Sale
P Bmrmorda rarmgn Low Kherstgn e 2 0 % L0
PRV Dot U5 Loswy Dhgaomsn Find 1] (Rl
Esrergms) hlackats Bond Fusd (M 1.4 3,10
PR Eorg Tofal Retun Fund A I
PRI Rl Retuon Fund 15
PO Shan-Tem Simcegy L1

10. GUARANTEES AND INDEMMIFICATION

Linger the Trust's peganizanional documents, oertain padteds (indluckng the Trusbes and PINCO) are ingemnified g oeftan Babdines that may asise oul of
perioimante of their duties to the Funds: Additionally, in the normal course of business, the Funds enter into contracts that contain a variety of indemnification daises
The Funds’ manimum expodure under these amangements is unknown a5 this would involve fubate daims that may be made against the Funds that hase not yet
gocumid, However, the Fonds Bave net had pior claims of 1080 pursudnt 1o thess conirbces

11. LUNITS OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST

The Trust may msue up 1o 500,000,000.000 units of benelicial interest. The Furds may have a significant concenaration of sk, as cenain Unitholders owm more than

tem pevcent of the net assets of each respective Fund. Such condentration af Unitholders' interests could have a matenal eflect on the Funds in the event these

Unitholders caquest to withdraw substantial amounts of capital a2 the same time. Sobscrigtions and redemptions of units of the Funds ase denominated in the Funds’

AN cusrency and Corvemed to the Fur henctons! curmengy AL the pal rate on e Iraniagion dase, Lmts of each Fund are issped without par value, The Trusmee
wih the corsent of the Manager, may in the future create and offer an addibonal Fund or Class or Classes of units of any Fund

el Fispon | May 1. 3047
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Nanges in unns of beneficaal interest were as follows (uris and amounts in thousands* )
Viear fmded Your Ensled Yiar Eniend T Endd
My 30, 317 My 31, 3997 May 30,2917 By 31, 3877
Lisity Laennl () Aeafuin Usity Rwaanl Unsi At
HI\:W‘.HH e pad ] 1 28T ik L] 1. a2 L, 11561 L1 N
gl Nk Hig M'A L L] K 5] 1 [ 1]
50 Hij L LB A R A Ba 135
Loy il onts ko] 11740 TELITEN A IELERT} i P 1 I LY N
il Wi 'R L L] L] K (iR LLEET
o]l Wik LY Nl K Kk Hik 155, 19 (L ]
i icdecTemss | resofting fram
T e IR B4 nEsn I T L] 8 e wEIml b AT
¥em Endedd Toar Emded Woai Eaded Fieui Embod
My 11 JNT ey 31, 3947 May 1, MiT [kary 39, 13
Lmits Rametemat man. Az Umitn et Lty Auinatit
Recmipts |a anim mid L] L 1433 3] K Wik Wk o 150
| iR Hid LU P 0 L] 4517 Erl 1 SE HIE MA
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| FERNY L Hia A i L] LI NA
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2018
66,116 7,342,843
27,795 3,086,913
38,321 4,255,930
2,237,360
17.13 1,902
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2018
302,158,349 335 5,771
850,000 150,000 250,000
1,250,000
850,000 150,000 45,704.94

2014 937,352,354

2015 324,930,646

2016 338,413,044

2017 308,558,334

2018 302,158,349

Managing Member

limited liability company

agreement

2018

Mike Amey

Joshua Anderson

Andrew Balls

Jamil Baz

Ryan P. Blute

Philippe Bodereau

Andrew Bosomworth

David L. Braun

Geraldine Brigliadori Walsh

Elizabeth Cantrill

Rick Chan

Richard H. Clarida
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(Michael A. Cudzil)

Joshua Davis

Craig A. Dawson

Ed Devlin

Chris Dialynas

Jennifer E. Durham

Mohsen Fahmi

Joachim Fels

David Fisher

David C. Flattum

Alessandro Gandolfi

Russell Gannaway

Michael A. Gomez

Stuart T. Graham

(Sachin Gupta)

(Gregory W. Hall)

Brent R. Harris

Jonathan L. Horne

Daniel H. Hyman

Daniel J. lvascyn

Andrew R. Jessop

J
Nicholas J. Johnson

(Alec Kersman)

Mark R. Kiesel

J
(John J. Kirkowski)

Kimberley G. Korinke

Ryan Korinke

Richard R. LeBrun

Matthieu Louanges

(Laurent Luccioni)

Dirk Manelski

Sudi N. Mariappa
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(Rene Martel)

Scott A. Mather

Ravi K. Mattu

Robert Mead

Julie Meggers

Mohit Mittal

Eric J. Mogelof

Alfred T. Murata

John W. Murrary

(Roger 0. Nieves)

Thomas J. Otterbein

Lorenzo Pagani

Stephen A. Rodosky

(Emmanuel Roman)

Jerome M. Schneider

Marc P. Seidner

(Robin C. Shanahan)

(Cathleen M. Stahl)

Christian Stracke

Peter G. Strelow

Sung Hee Suh

Eric M. Sutherland

Josh Thimons

(Eve Tournier)

Qi Wang

Candice S. Whitten

Frank Witt

Mihir P. Worah

Robert 0. Young
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1971
1940

BMA

BMA BMA

BMA

BMA

60

BMA
BMA
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2018 338

663,686,035,558

118 400,082,716,271
20 11,734,874,092
12 16,512,297,384
69 163,397,737,100
9 8,865,062,486
40 11,100,999,529
36 20,675,979,007
14 18,556,481,950
1 314,693,558
5 2,146,178,168
14 10,299,016,013
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2016 12 31 2017 12 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2018 31
111.06
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2017 12 31
2016 12 31

2016 12

2017 12 31
2016 12 31

2017

2(c)
2(d).5
2(e)
2(e)
8
2(F)
2(h).6
261,275,747
213,173,311
2(i).7
2(b)
10
8
9
8
2(9)
9
850,000
150,000
2017 12 31
31 45,705
122,972
114,192 9(b)
2(m)
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2016 12 31

2017 2016
450,700,560 50,054,804 369,212,638 41,004,756
17,499,478 1,943,492 15,079,940 1,674,778
594,774,505 66,055,657 528,155,825 58,656,986
265,415,118 29,477,003 248,092,787 27,553,185
15,679,760 1,741,394 10,599,926 1,177,228
32,353,593 3,593,190 29,806,504 3,310,310
31,706,344 3,521,307 30,734,619 3,413,387
22,123,467 2,457,032 15,603,998 1,732,980
54,450,745 6,047,300 51,770,261 5,749,605
1,484,703,570 164,891,178 1,299,056,498 144,273,215
169,666,751 18,843,189 192,255,385 21,351,883
101,758 11,301 103,150 11,456
19,752,989 2,193,767 21,293,880 2,364,898
189,521,498 21,048,258 213,652,415 23,728,237
1,674,225,068 185,939,436 1,512,708,913 168,001,452
524,430,033 58,243,199 366,719,665 40,727,886
204,000,000 22,656,240 153,000,000 16,992,180
133,064,250 14,778,116 284,765,682 31,626,077
22,191,262 2,464,562 25,837,663 2,869,531
67,149,872 7,457,665 47,547,207 5,280,593
7,958,614 883,884 11,878,828 1,319,263
958,794,031 106,483,665 889,749,045 98,815,529
87,515,282 9,719,447 59,230,194 6,578,105
44,907,555 4,987,433 42,772,551 4,750,320
999,204 110,972
132,422,837 14,706,880 103,001,949 11,439,396
1,091,216,868 121,190,545 992,750,994 110,254,925
(721,216, 276) (80,098,280)  (806,802,240) (89,603,457)
1,290,399, 100 143,311,724 1,274,221,216 141,515,008
28,660,677 3,183,055 25,239,087 2,803,053
30,984,305 3,441,117 62,079,071 6,894,502
(45,819,606) (5,088,725) (34,779,215) (3,862,580)
583,008,200 64,748,891 519,957,919 57,746,526
1,674,225,068 185,939,436 _ 1,512,708,913 168,001,452
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2017 2016 12 31

2017 2016
2(e) 3,069,733,735 340,924,629 2,790,071,359 309,865,325
2(e) 894,875,087 99,384,827 859,624,054 95,469,847
2(e) 1,010,295,001 112,203,363 934,688,547 103,806,510
2(F) 382,875,278 42,522,128 374,658,245 41,609,545
2(9) 19,056,121 2,116,373 14,708,490 1,633,525
5,376,835,222 597,151,320 4,973,750,695 552,384, 752
9 1,786,117,811 198,366,244 1,675,416,388 186,071,744
627,117,284 69,647,646 612,360,818 68,008,792
393,884,056 43,744,763 372,052,254 41,320,123
212,401,017 23,589,257 165,303,182 18,358,571
7,11 146,505,365 16,270,886 141,629,385 15,729,359
54,417,256 6,043,580 52,472,320 5,827,576
97,973,736 10,880,963 87,930,301 9,765,539
2(h) 30,368,244 3,372,697 26,523,967 2,945,752
29,364,266 3,261,195 30,292,576 3,364,293
3,378,149,035 375,177,232 3,163,981,191 351,391,751
1,998,686,187 221,974,088 1,809,769,504 200,993,001
50,067,120 5,560,454 18,572,694 2,062,683
2(b) 125,543 13,943 122,272 13,580
2,048,878,850 227,548,485 1,828,464,470 203,069,264
10 90,675,758 10,070,450 77,843,033 8,645,247
1,958,203,092 217,478,035 1,750,621,437 194,424,017
2(m) (11,040,391) (1,226,146) (6,948,781) (771,732)
1,947,162,701 216,251,890 1,743,672,656 193,652,285
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2015 12 31 850,000 (857,784,455) (95,265,542) 150,000 1,251,469,554 138,988,209 45,705 24,676,009 2,740,518 114,898 120,154,574 13,344,367  (27,830,434) (3,090,848) 510,685,248 56,716,704
1,293,440,025 143,649,449 382,653,582 42,497,507 74,527,830 8,277,061 1,750,621,437 194,424,017
(1,307,413,371)  (145,201,329) (376,025,720)  (41,761,416) (73,964,752)  (8,214,525) (1,757,403,843)  (195,177,271)
AAM LLC
(16,123,800) (1,790,709) 16,123,800 1,790,709
PINCO
23,003,858 2,554,808 23,003,858 2,554,808
81,079,361 9,004,674 (81,079,361)  (9,004,674)
(6,948,781)  (771,732) (6,948,781) (771,732)
2016 12 31 850,000 (806,802, 240) (89,603,457) 150,000 1,274,221,216 141,515,008 45,705 25,239,087 2,803,053 114,192 62,079,071 6,804,502 (34,779,215) (3,862,580) 519,957,919 57,746,526
1,444,786,673 160,458,008 429,708,581 47,723,435 83,707,838 9,296,592 1,958,203,092 217,478,035
(1,407,711,685)  (156,340,460) (413,530,697)  (45,926,719) (80,286,248)  (8,916,591) (1,901,528,630)  (211,183,770)
PINCO
17,416,210 1,934,244 17,416,210 1,934,244
48,510,976 5,387,629 (48,510,976)  (5,387,629)
(11,040,391)  (1,226,146) (11,040,391) (1,226,146)
2017 12 31 850,000 (721,216,276) (80,098,280) 150,000 1,290,399,100 143,311,724 45,705 28,660,677 3,183,055 122,972 30,984,305 3,441,117 (45,819,606) (5,088,725) 583,008,200 64,748,891
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2017 2016 12 31

2017 2016
1,958,203,092 217,478,035 1,750,621,437 194,424,017
16,714,824 1,856,348 21,564,878 2,394,995
46,606,978 5,176,171 54,027,855 6,000,334
30,368,244 3,372,697 26,523,967 2,945,752
(586) (65) (305) 34
(125,543) (13,943) (122,272) (13,580)
2,758,547 306,364 95,993 10,661
5,473,069 607,839
(2,292,016) (254,551) (3,633,037) (403,485)
(87,635,240) (9,732,770) (70,446, 458) (7.823,784)
(2,374,634) (263,727) (1,022,861) (113,599)
(84,912,737) (9,430,409) (8,870,623) (985,171)
(44,952,843) (4,992,463) (42,418,050) (4,710,949)
143,906,563 15,982,263 70,036,703 7,778,276
(6,430,815) (714,206) 6,777,983 752,763
1,969,833,834 218,769,746 1,808,608, 279 200,864,035
(26,776,891) (2,973,842) (33,342,821) (3,703,054)
(36,000) (3,998)
8,219 913
(26,776,891) (2,973,842) (33,370,602) (3,706,139)
2,260,000,000 250,995,600 1,662,000,000 184,581,720
(2,209,000,000)  (245,331,540)  (1,729,000,000)  (192,022,740)
(1,901,528,630)  (211,183,770)  (1,757,403,843)  (195,177,271)
(1,850,528,630)  (205,519,710)  (1,824,403,843)  (202,618,291)
(11,040,391) (1,226,146) (6,948,781) (771,732)
81,487,922 9,050,049 (56,114,947) (6,232,126)
369,212,638 41,004,756 425,327,585 47,236,882
450,700,560 50,054,804 369,212,638 41,004,756
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2017 2016 12 31
AAM LP
PIMCO
AAM LP 850,000 150,000
AAM LLC
AAM Holding 250,000
PIMCO
2017 12 31 45,705
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM Holding
PIMCO PIMCO Pl
LLC
Pl LLC PIMCO
PIMCO
Pl LLC
FINRA
2017 2016 12 31 PIMCO

0.00165 0.00126
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PIMCO

FINMA

1ASB IFRS
IFRS

2018 22

PIMCO

PIMCO
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FDIC
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AAM
143.2 157.2
2017 12 31
395 2016 12 31
FDIC
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PIMCO

PIMCO
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PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO
30

2017 2016 12 31

IFRS
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2017
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1ASB
2009 11 1ASB IFRS
I1AS 39
2018
2014 28 1ASB FASB
IFRS 15 1ASB
2018
12
2016 13 IASB IFRS 16
IAS 17
IAS 17
IFRS 16

2019

IFRS
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PIMCO
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2016 12 31 17.5 15.1
17.2 14.8 2017 2016
2017 2016 273
2017
PIMCO
PIMCO 0.10 1.00
Pl LLC
PIMCO
PIMCO
0.75
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

104,401,244 107,620,632 1,014,536 213,036,412
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32,580,532 510,902 - 33,001,434
155,394 - - 155,394
43,357,099) 10,670,756) - 54,027,855)
2016 12 31 93,780,071 97,460,778 1,014,536 192,255,385
24,467,417 2,309,474 - 26,776,891
(2,653,000) 105,547) - 2,758,547)
38,382,925) 8,224,053) - 46,606,978)
2017 12 31 77,211,563 91,440,652 1,014,536 169,666,751
2017 2016 12 31 46.6 54.0
PIMCO
AAM LP
2017 2016
49.3 55.0
AAM
LP PIMCO
PIMCO
2017 2016 12 31 13.6 12.5
LIBOR 0.5 90
AAM LP PIMCO 2017 2016 PIMCO
AAM LP
2017 2016 12 31 PIMCO
204.0 153.0
PIMCO 2017 2016 2.5
1.0
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2017 12 31 626.5
2016 558.9
2017 2016 12 31
40.2 37.5
PIMCO
2017 2016 12 31
9.3 11.5
PDG
PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
2017
PDG PDG 11.9 2016 18.8
PDG 2017 PDG 25.0 2016 28.7
2017 12 31 11.9 2016 7.3
PDG 8.6 2016 13.4 PDG
AAM LP 2020 11 600.0
LIBOR 20 2017 12 31 1.629

AAM LP PIMCO
2017 2016 12 31
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PIMCO 15
150,000
AAM LP
AAM LP
PIMCO
PIMCO
AAM LP PIMCO
AAM LP
2016 AAM LLC PIMCO 473 15.8
2017 2016
2015 12 31 473 473 15,091
473) 473) 15,001

2016 12 31
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AAM LLC
AAM Holding
PIMCO PIMCO
AAM LP
PIMCO
250,000

12 31

45,705

OPAD
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2017 12 31 2016 12 31
123,867 123,867
26,133 26,133
150,000 150,000
PIMCO
EDCP
PIMCO
2017 2016
122,972 114,192
PIMCO
2017 2016
11,804 11,319
3.84 3.84
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2017
2017
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2017

2016

2016
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12
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25.2 24.8
13.7 14.9
1.9 1.3
2017
( )
114,898 114,898 21,773
49,161 49,161 11,319
39,769 39,769)
39,769) 39,769) 19,990
10,098) 10,098) 21,345
114,192 114,192 17,932
49,195 49,195 11,804
33,344 33,344)
33,344) 33,344) 21,810
7,071) 7,071) 16,928
122,972 122,972 14,486
11,319 24,012
11,932 2017
2016 39,769
2017
2017 12 31 45,274
431 AAM LLC
2017 2016 12 31
16.7 21.6

2017 12 31 2022
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12 31
20.6
PIMCO
2017 2016 12 31
12 10
LTIP
2017
2016 12 31 LTIP 48.6
26.8 LTIP
2017 2016 12 31 LTIP 87.7
39.6
SPA SPA 2014
2017
2017
2016 12 31 SPA 21.2
62.8
2017 12 31 SPA 2016 12 31 SPA 95.4
AAM LP PIMCO
401
100
21
PIMCO
2017 2016 12 31
13.2 13.8
5.4 10.8
2017 2016

12 31 21.5 22.3
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2017 2016 12 31
7.5 8.0

1974 201 301

1.3
2016
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2016 12 31

12 31
2017 2016

2,030,711 (5,204)

1,127,343 722,925

85,232,952 79,109,967

88,391,006 79,827,688

(999,204) 639,853

(3,283,956) (2,624,508)

(2,284,752) (1,984,655)

90,675,758 77,843,033

34.0 33.4
2017
14.4 16.8 2017 12
999

31,709,312
32,212,192
31,733,990
30,587,590
29,987,483
49,580,590

205,811,157

(1,890,468)

203,920,689
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Pl LLC 14
13
PIMCO
PIMCO
2014 12
1940 36
14
P1 LLC
15 1934 15
2017 2016 12 31 Pl LLC 50.3
46.7 4.5 3.9
45.8 42.8 2017 2016 12
31 Pl LLC 1.35 1.26
15

2017 2016 12 31
1.3 1.5
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2017 2016
184,813,595 256,665,264
191,510 108,653
2018 22
15,529 49,466

276/343



EDINETO O OO
O0000000000000000000000000000000000(E15034)
OoO0oooooooooooooooo
PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
Y ears ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Assets
Note 2017 2016
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2(c) $ 450,700,560 369,212,638
Investments carried at fair value through income 2(d),5 17,499,478 15,079,940
Investment advisory and administrative fees receivable:
Pooled funds 2(e) 594,774,505 528,155,825
Private accounts 2(e) 265,415,118 248,092,787
Receivables from affiliates 8 15,679,760 10,599,926
Prepaid expenses 32,353,593 29,806,504
Distribution and servicing fees receivable 2(f) 31,706,344 30,734,619
Deferred sales charges 2(h), 6 22,123,467 15,603,998
Other current assets 54,450,745 51,770,261
Total current assets 1,484,703,570 1,299,056,498
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $261,275,747 and
$213,173,311 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively 2(i), 7 169,666,751 192,255,385
Investments in associates 2(b) 101,758 103,150
Other noncurrent assets 10 19,752,989 21,293,880
Total noncurrent assets 189,521,498 213,652,415
Total assets $ 1,674,225,068 1,512,708,913
Liabilities and Capita
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 524,430,033 366,719,665
Short-term borrowings from affiliates 8 204,000,000 153,000,000
Accrued compensation 9 133,064,250 284,765,682
Payables to &ffiliates 8 22,191,262 25,837,663
Commissions payable 2(9) 67,149,872 47,547,207
Other liabilities 7,958,614 11,878,828
Total current liabilities 958,794,031 889,749,045
Noncurrent liabilities:
Other accrued compensation 9 87,515,282 59,230,194
Future lease obligations 44,907,555 42,772,551
Other liabilities - 999,204
Total noncurrent ligbilities 132,422,837 103,001,949
Totdl liabilities 1,091,216,868 992,750,994
Capital:
Class A members (issued and outstanding 850,000 units) (721,216,276) (806,802,240)
Class B members (issued and outstanding 150,000 units) 1,290,399,100 1,274,221,216
Class M members (45,705 unitsissued and outstanding as of December 31,
2017, and as of December 31, 2016) 28,660,677 25,239,087
Class M unit option holders (122,972 options issued as of December 31, 2017,
and 114,192 options issued as of December 31, 2016) 9(b) 30,984,305 62,079,071
Cumulative foreign currency trandation adjustments 2(m) (45,819,606) (34,779,215)
Total capital 583,008,200 519,957,919
Total liabilities and capital $ 1,674,225,068 1,512,708,913

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
Y ears ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Revenues: Note 2017 2016
Investment advisory fees:
Pooled funds 2(e) $ 3,069,733,735 2,790,071,359
Private accounts 2(e) 894,875,087 859,624,054
Administrative fees - pooled funds 2(e) 1,010,295,001 934,688,547
Distribution and servicing fees 2(f) 382,875,278 374,658,245
Other 2(9) 19,056,121 14,708,490
Total revenues 5,376,835,222 4,973,750,695
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 9 1,786,117,811 1,675,416,388
General and administrative 627,117,284 612,360,818
Commissions 393,884,056 372,052,254
Professional fees 212,401,017 165,303,182
Occupancy and equipment 7,11 146,505,365 141,629,385
Subadvisory and subadministrative services 54,417,256 52,472,320
Marketing and promational 97,973,736 87,930,301
Deferred charges amortization 2(h) 30,368,244 26,523,967
Other 29,364,266 30,292,576
Total expenses 3,378,149,035 3,163,981,191
Operating income 1,998,686,187 1,809,769,504
Other income 50,067,120 18,572,694
Equity in income of associates 2(b) 125,543 122,272
Income before income taxes 2,048,878,850 1,828,464,470
Income tax expense 10 90,675,758 77,843,033
Net income 1,958,203,092 1,750,621,437

Other comprehensive loss:
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustment 2(m) (11,040,391) (6,948,781)
Comprehensive income $ 1,947,162,701 1,743,672,656

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital
Y ears ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Cumulative
Class A members Class B members ClassM members Class M unit option holders trandation Total
Units Amounts Units Amounts Units Amounts Options Amounts adjustment capital

Balances at December 31, 2015 850,000 $ (857,784,455) 150,000 $  1,251,469,554 45,705 24,676,009 114,898 $ 120,154,574 $  (27,830434) $ 510,685,248
Net income 1,293,440,025 382,653,582 74,527,830 - - 1,750,621,437
Distributions (1,307,413,371) (376,025,720) (73,964,752) (1,757,403,843)
Allocation of basis upon purchase of

B unitsby AAM LLC (16,123,800) 16,123,800 - - - -
PIMCO Class M unit equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 23,003,858 - 23,003,858

Reallocation of basis 81,079,361 - - (81,079,361) - -
Other comprehensive |loss - - - - (6,948,781) (6,948,781)
Balances at December 31, 2016 850,000 (806,802,240) 150,000 1,274,221,216 45,705 25,239,087 114,192 62,079,071 (34,779,215) 519,957,919
Net income 1,444,786,673 429,708,581 83,707,838 - - 1,958,203,092
Distributions (1,407,711,685) (413,530,697) (80,286,248) (1,901,528,630)
PIMCO Class M unit equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 17,416,210 - 17,416,210

Reallocation of basis 48,510,976 - - (48,510,976) - -
Other comprehensive loss - - - - (11,040,391) (11,040,391)
Balances at December 31, 2017 850,000 $ (721,216,276) 150,000 $  1,290,399,100 45,705 g 28,660,677 122,972 g 30,984,305 ¢  (45819,606) $ 583,008,200

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC

AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Y ears ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity compensation
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of deferred sales charges
Unrealized and realized gain on investments carried at fair value through income
Equity in income of associates
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of investments carried at fair value through income
Purchases of investments carried at fair value through income
Income taxes paid
Interest paid
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Feesreceivable
Receivables from affiliates, deferred sales charges, prepaid expenses, and other assets
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, commissions payable, and accrued compensation
Other liahilities, future lease obligations, and payables to affiliates
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Purchases of investments in associates
Proceeds from redemptions in associates
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings from affiliates
Repayment of short-term borrowings from affiliates
Cash distributions
Net cash used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2017 2016
$ 1,958,203,092 1,750,621,437
16,714,824 21,564,878
46,606,978 54,027,855
30,368,244 26,523,967
(586) (305)
(125,543) (122,272)
2,758,547 95,993
- 5,473,069
(2,292,016) (3,633,037)
(87,635,240) (70,446,458)
(2,374,634) (1,022,861)
(84,912,737) (8,870,623)
(44,952,843) (42,418,050)
143,906,563 70,036,703
(6,430,815) 6,777,983
1,969,833,834 1,808,608,279
(26,776,891) (33,342,821)
- (36,000)
- 8,219
(26,776,891) (33,370,602)
2,260,000,000 1,662,000,000
(2,209,000,000) (1,729,000,000)
(1,901,528,630) (1,757,403,843)
(1,850,528,630) (1,824,403,843)
(11,040,391) (6,948,781)
81,487,922 (56,114,947)
369,212,638 425,327,585
$ 450,700,560 369,212,638
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

(1) Organization and Business

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC (PIMCO or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company
and subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management of AmericaL P. (AAM LP), the Managing Member, is a registered
investment adviser, headquartered in Newport Beach, California. The Company manages a variety of
predominately fixed-income portfolios for a wide range of investors located throughout the world. Investors
include public and private pensions and retirement plans, educational institutions, foundations, endowments,
corporations, financial advisers, individuals, and others through the use of private accounts and pooled funds.

Capitalization

AAM LP owns all 850,000 Class A units of the Company. There are atotal of 150,000 Class B units, which are
owned by Allianz Asset Management of AmericaLLC (AAM LLC) and Allianz Asset Management U.S. Holding
Il LLC (AAM Holding Il). The Company has authorized 250,000 nonvoting Class M units for issuance and
options on Class M units have been granted to certain employees of PIMCO. As of December 31, 2017, 45,705
Class M units have been issued and are outstanding. Class B units have priority over Class A and M Units with
respect to income and distributions.

AAM LP, AAM LLC, and AAM Holding Il are indirectly wholly owned by Allianz SE. Allianz SE is a global
financial services provider predominantly in the insurance and asset management business.

Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries.
All significant intercompany items have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

PIMCO, as the primary investment adviser, has several wholly owned subsidiaries including PIMCO Investments
LLC (PI LLC) aswell asinternational subsidiaries that are included in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:
Pl LLC isabroker/dedler that is the primary distributor and provides shareholder services to institutional and
retail mutual funds (collectively, PIMCO Funds) and exchange traded funds that are managed and advised by

PIMCO. PI LLC isaregistered broker/dealer with the Securities and Exchange Commission and is a member
of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA).

StocksPLUS Management, Inc. (StocksPLUS), awholly owned subsidiary of PIMCO, owned approximately
0.00165% interest and 0.00126% interest in StocksPLUS L.P. as of December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively.

PIMCO Europe Ltd (PIMCO Europe) is a registered investment adviser in the United Kingdom, with a
branchin Italy.

PIMCO Japan Ltd (PIMCO Japan) is aregistered investment adviser in Japan.

PIMCO Australia Pty Limited (PIMCO Australia) is aregistered investment adviser in Australia.
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PIMCO Australia Management Limited is aregistered responsible entity in Australia.
PIMCO AsiaPte Ltd (PIMCO Asia) is aregistered investment adviser in Singapore.
PIMCO AsiaLimited (PIMCO Hong Kong) is aregistered investment adviser in Hong Kong.

PIMCO Global Advisors (Resources) Limited (PIMCO Resources) is a company that provides global payroll
services to PIMCO and its subsidiaries.

PIMCO Globa Holdings LLC isthe holding company for PIMCO Canada Corp.
PIMCO Canada Corp is aregistered investment adviser in Canada.

PIMCO (Schweiz) GmbH provides certain services to PIMCO Europe in Switzerland and is a registered
distributor with Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

PIMCO Latin America Administradora de Carteiras Ltda. is aregistered investment adviser in Brazil.
PIMCO Global Advisors (Ireland) Limited provides management services to certain international funds.

PIMCO Global Advisors (Luxembourg) S.A. administers and manages an investment fund under the laws of
Luxembourg.

Third-party assets managed in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Company and are not
presented in these consolidated financia statements.

(2 Significant Accounting Policies
(@) Basisof Preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), which are in compliance with standards and interpretations approved by either the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or the IFRS Interpretations Committee or their predecessors.
The accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial
statements. These consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars.

The consolidated financia statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as well as a going-concern basis
using the historical cost convention modified for certain financia assets that have been measured at fair value.
After reviewing the Company’s current plans and forecasts, the Managing Member considers that the Company
has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future.

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Managing Member on March 22,
2018.
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(b) Basisof Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of the other entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Management
must make judgments when it assesses these various elements and al related facts and circumstances to
determine whether control exists.

Investments are classified as associates when it is determined that PIMCO does not control these entities;
however, the Company has significant influence. The Company accounts for investments in associates under
the equity method of accounting. An investment in an associate is recorded at its initial cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post acquisition change in PIMCO'’s share of net assets of the investee. The equity income or
loss primarily represents the Company’s proportionate share of the unrealized and realized gains and losses
from changesin fair value of the investments held by these associates.

In evaluating its involvement with, and exposure to, interests in structured entities, as well as the requirement
asto whether or not any identified interest in a structured entity should be consolidated, the Company considers
factors including the nature of the Company’s investment (if any), the nature of the fees earned by the
Company from the structured entities, powers held by other entities associated with the structured entities,
including the power to direct or control operations, and the rights and restrictions of the investors in the
structured entities.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting and similar rights are not the dominant
factor in deciding who controls the entity, for example, when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks
only, and key activities are directed by contractual agreement. Structured entities often have restricted activities
and anarrow and well defined objective.

(c) Cashand Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents may include cash on deposit with financial institutions, nonaffiliated money market
accounts, and cash deposited into a cash pool, through AAM LP, administered by Allianz SE. There was
$143.2 million and $157.2 million invested in nonaffiliated money market accounts at December 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively. As of December 31, 2017, cash equivalents deposited in the cash pool with Allianz SE
totaled $395 thousand, and $355 thousand was deposited in the cash pool at December 31, 2016. Management
considers investments in money market accounts to be cash equivaents for purposes of the consolidated
statements of cash flows. These investments are carried at cost, which approximates fair value. The Company
maintains its remaining cash and cash equivalents in various federally insured banking institutions. The account
balances at each ingtitution generally exceed the Federa Deposit Insurance Corporation’s (FDIC) insurance
coverage, and as aresult, there is a concentration of credit risk related to amounts in excess of FDIC insurance
coverage.

(d) Investments Carried at Fair Value through Income
Investments carried at fair value through income represent financial assets held for trading. Investments held
for trading consist primarily of investments in PIMCO pooled funds with a short-to-moderate term duration
objective. Investments held for trading are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized directly

in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income and exclude the impact of any dividends
earned on such investments. Transactions in these investments are recorded on a trade-date basis.
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(e Investment Advisory and Administrative Fees

Investment advisory and administrative fees are recognized as the services are performed. Such fees are
primarily based on percentages of the fair value of the assets under management. Investment advisory fees
receivable for private accounts consist primarily of accounts billed on a quarterly basis. Private accounts and
pooled funds may also generate a fee based on investment performance. Such fees are recognized at the end of
the respective contract period if the prescribed performance hurdles have been achieved and the fees are no
longer subject to claw back.

The Company may also receive carried interest from certain alternative investment products that exceed
performance hurdles. Carried interest is recorded as performance fee revenue, and reflected in investment
advisory fees - pooled funds in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, upon the
earlier of the termination of the investment fund or when the likelihood of clawback is considered remote.

(f) Distribution and Servicing Fees

Distribution and servicing fees are recognized as the services are performed. Such fees are primarily based on
percentages of the average daily net assets of the PIMCO Funds.

(g) SalesCommissions

Revenue associated with the sale of Class A shares of PIMCO Funds is recorded on a trade-date basis, and is
primarily based on a percentage of the share's public offering price.

(h) Deferred Sales Charges

Sales commissions paid to third party intermediaries in connection with the sale of shares of affiliated mutual
funds sold without a front-end sales charge are capitalized and amortized over the periods in which the
Company estimates that they will be recovered from distribution plan payments or from contingent deferred
sales charges, generally over one year.

(i) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation, and amortization. Office equipment,
furniture, fixtures, and software are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
generaly threeto five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining
terms of the related |leases or the useful lives of such improvements, whichever is shorter.

The assets useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed at each financia period-end and adjusted if
appropriate. An item of property and egquipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the asset, calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is included in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income in the year theitem is sold or retired.
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(i) Income Taxes

PIMCO is not subject to United States (U.S.) federal income tax asit is organized as alimited liability company
and is taxed as a partnership. Ultimately, the members of PIMCO are responsible for taxes on their
proportionate share of PIMCO' s taxable income. PIMCO is subject to state taxes in certain jurisdictions in the
u.s.

Certain consolidated entities are subject to federal, foreign, state, and local income tax, and file separate tax
returns and account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. This method gives recognition to
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis.

(K Distributions

PIMCO is required to distribute its operating income (as defined within the Company’s Second Amended and
Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement) for each calendar quarter no later than 30 days after the end of
such quarter.

() Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company accounts for share-based payment arrangements by determining the value of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of the share-based
award. The cost of employee services is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase to capital,
over the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the share-based payment award. As
the Company’s equity instruments have no publicly traded market price, fair value is determined by the
Company’s management based in part on a comprehensive analysis of trading values of comparable public
entities, discounted cash flows, market transactions of comparable entities, and consideration as to the
Company’s historical and forecasted financial performance.

(m) Foreign Currency Trandation

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries have been translated into U.S. dollars at the current rate of
exchange existing at year-end. Revenues and expenses were trandated primarily at the exchange rate on the
date on which the transactions were recognized. The effects of trandating the results of operations of
subsidiaries with afunctional currency other than the U.S. dollar are included in other comprehensive loss. The
cumulative trandation adjustment of translating the balance sheet of subsidiaries with a functional currency
other than the U.S. dollar is included as a component of capital in the consolidated statements of financial
condition as of December 31, 2017 and 2016.
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(n) Useof Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statementsin conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the
amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liabilities, reported amounts
of revenues and expenses, and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. These
estimates and assumptions are based on management’s best judgment. Management evaluates its estimates and
assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience and other known factors, including the current
economic environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management
adjusts such estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects
cannot be determined with precision, actua results could differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in
those estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the
financial statements in future periods. Management believes that the significant areas where judgment is
necessarily applied are those which relate to the:

Measurement of share-based payment arrangements, which includes estimates of fair value of the
Company’s membership units. These estimates can be particularly sensitive to assumptions in regards to
the Company’ s future earnings; and

Assessment of provisions.

Critical judgments have been made by management in applying accounting policies. Those that have the most
significant effect on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements include the following:

Evauation of the measurement criteria associated with the recognition of revenues associated with
performance fees (as discussed in note 2(€)).

Evaluation of control associated over entities (as discussed in note 2(b)), and the impact to consolidation
of such entities.

(o) Provisons

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The
amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. Future
events that may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision
where there is sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Where some or all of the expenditure is
expected to be reimbursed by insurance or some other party, and it is virtually certain, the reimbursement is
recoghized as a separate asset on the consolidated statements of financial condition, and the amount is recorded
in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.
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(p) Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.
(3 Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

No accounting pronouncements with a material impact to the financial statements were adopted by the Company
during 2017.

(4) Future Changein Accounting Policies

A number of accounting standards, interpretations, and amendments have been issued by the IASB, which are not
yet effective for the Company’s financial statements. Those that are most relevant to the Company’s financial
statements in future years are discussed below.

Financial Instruments

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (IFRS 9), was issued by the IASB in November 2009 and is part of the project to
replace International Accounting Standard (IAS) 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (IAS
39) with a new standard. The project is divided into three phases: classification and measurement of financial
instruments; impairment; and hedge accounting. Effective January 1, 2018 the Company adopted IFRS 9 and it
did not have a material impact to the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Revenue

On May 28, 2014, the IASB and FASB issued their final standard on revenue. The standard, issued as IFRS 15,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (IFRS 15) by the IASB, outlines a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue and associated costs arising from contracts with customers and
supersedes most current revenue recognition guidance. Effective January 1, 2018 the Company adopted IFRS 15,
and will begin expensing commissions previously capitalized and amortized over twelve months. The Company
will also begin presenting certain distribution costs gross within commission expense that were previoudly netted
within investment advisory fees - pooled fund revenue. The adoption of this standard will not impact the amount
or timing of revenue recognition.

Leases

IFRS 16, Leases, was issued by the IASB on January 13, 2016 IFRS 16 results in lessees accounting for most
leases within the scope of the standard in a manner similar to the way in which finance leases are currently
accounted for under 1AS 17, Leases. Lessees will recognize a right of use asset and a corresponding financial
liahility on the statements of financial position. The asset will be amortized over the length of the lease and the
financial liability measured at amortized cost. Lessor accounting remains substantially the same as under IAS 17.
IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.
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The Company has completed an initial assessment of the potential impact on its consolidated financial statements
but has not yet completed its detailed assessment. The actual impact of applying IFRS 16 on the consolidated
financial statements in the period of initial application will depend on future economic conditions, including the
Company’s borrowing rate on January 1, 2019, the composition of the Company’s lease portfolio at that date, and
the Company’ s latest assessment of whether it will exercise any lease renewal options.

So far, the most significant impact identified by the Company isthat it will recognize new assets and liabilities for
its operating leases of office space.

(5) Fair Vaue of Financia Instruments

IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments carried at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial
condition are classified into a three-level hierarchy depending on the valuation techniques used and whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable in the market.

Level 1 - Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities are classified into this category. A financia instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with
any significant input being based on observable market data (observable inputs), are classified into this
category.

Level 3 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with at
least one significant input not being based on observable market data (nonobservable inputs), are classified
into this category.

The Company has evaluated its financial assets carried at fair value through income totaling $17.5 million and
$15.1 million as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and determined that based on the unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets used to determine fair value that $17.2 million and $14.8 million are classified as
Level 1instruments for 2017 and 2016, respectively. For 2017 and 2016, $273 thousand are classified as Level 3
instruments. These financial assets primarily represent the Company’s investment in affiliated funds. There were
no changes to the Company’s valuation policies during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

The carrying value of PIMCO's financial instruments approximates fair value. Investments held for trading are
carried at fair value and are measured using actively traded market prices and other valuation techniques. The fair
value of investment advisory fees receivable, distribution and servicing fees receivable, deferred sales charges,
receivables from affiliates, and payables to affiliates has been deemed to approximate their carrying value through
reference to their short maturity as well as low credit risk. The fair value of short-term borrowings from affiliates
is based upon the Company’s comparison to current market rates available to the Company for comparable debt.
It isthe Company’s intention to hold such instruments until maturity or collection.
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(6) Commissions and Deferred Sales Charges

Trail commissions consist of distribution and servicing payments to participating brokers for the distribution of
shares of PIMCO Funds, providing persona services to shareholders, and maintaining shareholder accounts. Such
trail commissions, in total, can range from 0.10% to 1.00% of the average daily net assets for such PIMCO Funds.

In connection with the distribution of the Class A and Class C shares, Pl LLC advances commissions to third
party intermediaries, which are capitalized as Pl LLC is entitled to recoup its marketing costs through an ongoing
fee stream from the respective PIMCO Funds as well as contingent deferred sales charges. Initial commissions are
generaly paid at arate of up to 1% for Class A shares (on sales of $1 million or more) and for Class C shares.

The contingent deferred sales charges are collected on certain early redemptions of the shares (as defined). The
contingent deferred sales charge rate on Class C shares is 1% if redeemed during the first year following purchase
for applicable PIMCO Funds. Contingent deferred sales charges may also be received on the redemption of Class
A shares at arate of 0.75% to 1% of the net asset value of the redeemed shares, if the initial purchase of such
Class A shares exceeded certain thresholds.

(7) Property and Equipment

The major classifications of property and equipment are as follows:

Office
equipment,
furniture,
fixtures, and Leasehold
software improvements Art Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2015 104,401,244 107,620,632 1,014,536 213,036,412
Additions 32,580,532 510,902 - 33,091,434
Disposals 155,394 - - 155,394
Depreciation and amortization (43,357,099) (10,670,756) - (54,027,855)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2016 93,780,071 97,460,778 1,014,536 192,255,385
Additions 24,467,417 2,309,474 - 26,776,891
Disposals (2,653,000) (105,547) - (2,758,547)
Depreciation and amortization (38,382,925) (8,224,053) - (46,606,978)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2017 77,211,563 91,440,652 1,014,536 169,666,751

The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense of $46.6 million and $54.0 million for the years
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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(8) Related-Party Transactions

PIMCO and its subsidiaries reimburse AAM LP for certain overhead, administrative services, and occupancy
costs that are allocated based on time and usage factors. These expenses generaly consist of rental costs and
salaries and related benefits for finance, information technology, and other general and administrative services.
The amount charged for such services totaled $49.3 million and $55.0 million during 2017 and 2016, respectively,
which is a component of general and administrative in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive
income. The payable to affiliates includes a liability to be paid to AAM LP in connection with these services and
payables to other affiliates in connection with services they have provided to PIMCO and for expenses that have
been paid on behalf of PIMCO over the ordinary course of business, totaling $13.6 million as of December 31,
2017 and $12.5 million as of December 31, 2016.

From time to time, short-term interest-bearing advances are granted between AAM LP and PIMCO for generally
less than 90 days, at a rate of 3-month LIBOR plus 0.5% to cover short-term operating cash needs. During 2017
and 2016, PIMCO borrowed and fully repaid several of these short term cash loans from AAM LP to cover its
operating cash needs. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, PIMCO had outstanding short-term loans totaling
$204.0 million and $153.0 million, respectively, which is shown as short-term borrowings from affiliates in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. During 2017 and 2016, PIMCO incurred $2.5
million and $1.0 million, respectively, in interest expense on loans, which is included in other expenses in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

The Company earns investment advisory fees, administrative fees, and distribution and servicing fees from
affiliated fund complexes, which comprise substantially al of the amounts included in the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income as investment advisory fees - pooled funds, administrative fees - pooled
funds, and distribution and servicing fees, respectively. As of December 31, 2017, the Company had $626.5
million (2016: $558.9 million) in related receivables from &ffiliated fund complexes.

The Company manages private accounts for certain affiliated subsidiaries of Allianz SE. Investment advisory fees
earned on these accounts totaled $40.2 million and $37.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively, which are primarily included in investment advisory fees - private accounts in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

Allianz Life Insurance Company of New York, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, provides
certain services on behalf of the Company to certain variable annuity and/or variable life insurance contracts
invested in PIMCO Funds. The total fees paid for these services by the Company were $9.3 million and $11.5
million for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and are included in general and
administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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For certain advisory contracts with institutional clients, the Company shares the responsibility of fulfilling such
service contracts with PIMCO Deutschland GmbH and its branches (collectively, PDG), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management GmbH, who in turn, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE,
together with all of the PIMCO subsidiaries, are subject to PIMCO’s Globa Transfer Pricing Policy (Transfer
Pricing Policy) for shared management services that are provided by all PIMCO entities. Shared management
services provided include portfolio management, account management and business management and
administration. Revenues earned from third parties for shared management services are alocated in accordance
with the Transfer Pricing Policy. In 2017, the revenue earned from third parties for shared management services
alocated to PDG was $11.9 million (2016: $18.8 million) greater than the revenue alocated from PDG and is
presented as a reduction of investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. In addition, costs for performing other shared services are
allocated to PDG based on headcount and estimated time and usage factors. During 2017, costs alocated to PDG
were $25.0 million (2016: $28.7 million) and are included as a reduction of compensation and benefits and
general and administrative in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
As of December 31, 2017, the Company had an $11.9 million (2016: $7.3 million) receivable from and an $8.6
million (2016: $13.4 million) payable to PDG, which are included within receivables from affiliates and payables
to affiliates, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

AAM LP has a $600.0 million revolving credit facility with Allianz SE, which expires in November 2020. The
facility permits short-term borrowings at a floating rate of interest of LIBOR plus 20bps (rate of 1.629% as of
December 31, 2017). To the extent necessary, AAM LP could draw on this revolving credit facility on behalf of
its subsidiaries, including PIMCO. There were no amounts outstanding under this agreement at December 31,
2017 and 2016.

The related-party transactions noted above were generally at terms equivalent to those that prevailed in arm’s
length transactions.

Managing Directors and certain other executive officers are considered to be key members of management.
Management believes that these individuals provide significant contributions to the Company. In return for their
service, they receive remuneration, which management believes to be in line with its select group of peers. In
addition to an annual base salary, key management participates in each of the benefit plans that are further
discussed in note 9, which represents the majority of the compensation and benefits of the Company.
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(9) Benefit Plans
(@ ClassB Unit Purchase Plan

The Company has a Class B Unit Purchase Plan (the Plan) whereby certain employees had purchased PIMCO
Class B ownership units subject to vesting. There are atotal of 150,000 units issued and outstanding under the
Plan representing just under a 15% ownership interest in PIMCO. Units issued under the Plan vested over two
to six years and are subject to repurchase upon death or disability of the participant. AAM LP, or certain
affiliates, have the right to repurchase (call), and the participants have the right to cause AAM LP to repurchase
(put), a portion of the vested Class B units each year. This call or put right is only exercisable six months after
theinitial vesting of each grant of units. The repurchase price will be based upon the then fair value of the Class
B units being repurchased. PIMCO does not have the right to repurchase (call) and the participants do not have
the right to cause PIMCO to repurchase (put) these vested units. As these rights and obligations rest with AAM
LP, or certain affiliates, PIMCO accounts for the Plan as an equity-settled plan, and recognizes a corresponding
increase in capital as a contribution from AAM LP. In 2016, AAM LLC repurchased the remaining 473
PIMCO Class B units held by employees for $15.8 million

There was no activity in 2017 related to B units. Activity during 2016 related to the B units owned by
employeesisasfollows:

Weighted
average
grant date
Vested Nonvested Total fair vaue
December 31, 2015 473 - 473 $ 15,091

Cadlled/Put (473) - (473) 15,091
Forfeited - - - -

December 31, 2016 - - - -

B unit holders as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Number of units owned
as of December 31

2017 2016
AAMLLC 123,867 123,867
AAM Holding Il 26,133 26,133
Employees - -
Total 150,000 150,000

(Continued)
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(b) ClassM Unit Equity Participation Plan

PIMCO has established a Class M Unit Equity Participation Plan (the M Unit Plan) for certain individuals
providing services to PIMCO and certain of its affiliates. Participants in the M Unit Plan are granted options to
acquire M units, which vest in one-third increments on the third, fourth, and fifth anniversary of the option
grant date. M unit options are converted to M units based on the appreciation of fair value of the M unit over
the related vesting period. At the exercise date, vested options will be automatically exercised in a cashless
transaction unless the participant has elected to defer their M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan. As
disclosed in note 9(g), participants can defer their M units into the AAM LP Executive Deferred Compensation
Plan (the EDCP). If, at the time of vesting, the PIMCO Class M unit estimated fair value is less than the
exercise price of the option award, no Class M units will be issued. Class M units are nonvoting units of
PIMCO and entitle the holder to receive quarterly distributions in accordance with the Company’s Second
Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement. Those participants electing to defer the receipt
of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan continue to receive quarterly distributions.

A maximum of 250,000 M units are authorized for issuance under the M Unit Plan. As of December 31, 2017
and 2016, 122,972 and 114,192 options, respectively, were outstanding for M units and 45,705 M units have
been issued from the exercise of options.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model. The model requires management to develop estimates regarding certain input variables. A third party
valuation was completed to assist management in determining the fair value of a Class M unit. The dividend
yield was estimated based upon the historical Operating Profit Available for Distribution (OPAD) distributed
to PIMCO M unit holders. Expected volatilities are based on the average historical and implied volatility of a
select group of peers. The expected life was calculated based upon treating the three vesting tranches (one-third
in years 3, 4, and 5) as separate options.

The following table provides the assumptions used in calculating the fair value of the M unit options granted
during 2017 and 2016:

2017 2016
Weighted average grant date fair value $ 11,804 11,319
Assumptions:
Expected term (years) 3.84 3.84
Expected volatility 25.2% 24.8%
Expected dividends 13.7% 14.9%
Risk-free rate of return 1.9% 1.3%

(Continued)
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A summary of the activity in 2017 and 2016 related to the number and weighted average exercise price of the
M unit options outstanding and exercisable is as follows:

Weighted
average
Number of options exercise
Vested Nonvested Totd price

Outstanding at

December 31, 2015 - 114,898 114,898 $ 21,773
Changes during the year:

Granted - 49,161 49,161 11,319

Vested 39,769 (39,769) - -

Exercised (39,769) - (39,769) 19,990

Forfeited - (10,098) (10,098) 21,345
Outstanding at

December 31, 2016 - 114,192 114,192 $ 17,932
Changes during the year:

Granted - 49,195 49,195 11,804

Vested 33,344 (33,344) - -

Exercised (33,344) - (33,344) 21,810

Forfeited - (7,071) (7,071) 16,928
Outstanding at

December 31, 2017 - 122,972 122,972 ¢ 14,486
Exercisable as of

December 31, 2017 - - - R

The M unit options outstanding as of December 31, 2017 have an exercise price between $11,319 and $24,012
and aweighted average remaining contractual life of 3.10 years.

The weighted average fair value per unit at the date the options were exercised was $11,932 for 2017 and
$11,318 for 2016.

M unit options totaling 33,344 vested during 2017 and 39,769 options vested during 2016. The M unit
estimated fair values as of the vesting dates were less than the exercise price of each of these option awards.
Therefore, as aresult of the automatic cashless exercise feature, no M units were issued in 2017 or 2016 and the
entire Black-Scholes amount was reallocated from the Class M unit option capital account to the Class A
member capital account in the accompanying consolidated statements of changes in capital. No other M unit
activity occurred during the year. As of December 31, 2017, 45,274 M units are owned by current employees
and former employees and 431 M units are owned by AAM LLC.

(Continued)
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The fair value of M unit option awards is amortized to compensation expense on a graded vesting attribution
method over the related vesting period of each separate tranche. The total humber of M unit option awards
expected to vest is adjusted for estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized under the M Unit Plan
for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was $16.7 million and $21.6 million, respectively, and is
included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income. As of December 31, 2017, the total estimated compensation cost related to nonvested
M unit option awards, net of estimated forfeitures, expected to be recognized in future periods through
December 31, 2022 is $20.6 million.

(¢) Profit Sharing and Incentive Plans

PIMCO and its subsidiaries have various profit sharing and incentive plans that compensate participants on the
basis of profitability and discretionary bonuses. Compensation under these programs was $1.2 billion and $1.0
billion for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and is included in compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(d Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Company has a Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for certain key employees. Awards are primarily based
upon achieving specified operating earnings targets and vest over three years. This plan is accounted for as a
liability award and expensed as compensation over the related vesting period. The Company had recognized
expense under the LTIP of $48.6 million and $26.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively. LTIP compensation expense is included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The total accrued LTIP liability was $87.7
million and $39.6 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and is included within current accrued
compensation and noncurrent other accrued compensation in the accompanying consolidated statements of
financia condition.

(e Special Performance Award

The Special Performance Award (SPA) was an enhancement to compensation. The SPA consists of deferred

cash awards granted during the 4th quarter of 2014, which were earned and payable at various dates through
mid-2017. The purpose of the program was to secure performance and to retain talent. Total expense recorded
by the Company related to the SPA during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was $21.2 million and
$62.8 million, respectively, and is included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. The SPA liability was fully paid as of December 31, 2017.
The SPA liability was $95.4 million as of December 31, 2016 and is included in current accrued compensation
in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

(Continued)

295/343



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

() Savingsand Investment Plans

AAM LP is the sponsor of a defined contribution employee savings and retirement plan covering PIMCO
employees. The plan qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code and allows eligible
employees to contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation, as defined, and is subject to a maximum
dollar amount determined from time to time by the Interna Revenue Code. Employees are generally eligible
following the later of attainment of age 21 or on the first day of the month following the start date. After the
completion of one year of credited service, the Company matches an amount equal to the first 5% of annual
compensation, subject to the Internal Revenue Code limits, contributed by the employees. PIMCO
contributions fully vest to employees over five years of credited service. The amount expensed by the
Company related to this plan during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was $13.2 million and $13.8
million, respectively, and is included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income.

Under the plan, the Company may also make discretionary contributions ranging from 5.4% to 10.8% of a
covered individual’'s base compensation. The amount expensed by the Company related to these discretionary
contributions during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was $21.5 million and $22.3 million,
respectively, and is included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

Various foreign entities have other benefit plans for certain employees. The amount expensed related to these
plans during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 were $7.5 million and $8.0 million, respectively,
and is included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

(g) Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

AAM LP has a nonqualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which a portion of the compensation
otherwise payable to certain eligible employees of the Company will be mandatorily deferred and pursuant to
which such eligible employees may €elect to defer additional amounts of compensation. The plan is maintained
primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation for a select group of management or highly
compensated employees, within the meaning of Sections 201(2), 301(a)(3), and 401(a)(1) of the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. Amounts deferred under the plan are invested in
marketable securities and M units or other investment partnerships as directed by the employees and are held in
trust at AAM LP.

(Continued)

296/343



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

(h) Employee Sock Purchase Plan

Allianz SE has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan that is designed to provide eligible employees with an
opportunity to purchase American Depository Shares of Allianz SE annually at a discounted price on a
predetermined date. An aggregate of 250,000 American Depository Shares are reserved for this plan. Allianz
SE determines the gross purchase price of the shares, and a committee appointed by the Company determines
the discount price. Employees are not allowed to sell or transfer the shares for an one-year period following the
purchase date. The difference between the market price and the discount price, or the discount, was paid by the
Company and amounted to $1.3 million in 2017 and $1.2 million in 2016.

(10) Income Tax
The provisions for income tax expense (benefits) are as follows:

Year ended December 31

2017 2016
Current:

Federal $ 2,030,711 (5,204)
State 1,127,343 722,925
Foreign 85,232,952 79,109,967
Total current 88,391,006 79,827,688

Deferred:
Federal (999,204) 639,853
Foreign 3,283,956 (2,624,508)
Total deferred 2,284,752 (1,984,655)
Total provision $ 90,675,758 77,843,033

The differences between the reported amount of income tax expense and the amount that would result from
applying the federal corporate statutory tax rates to pretax income arise primarily from the Company’s status as a
partnership for U.S. tax purposes as well as the effects of state and international taxes and nondeductible expense.

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, income taxes payable amounted to $34.0 million and $33.4 million,
respectively, and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition. Additionaly, as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, deferred tax assets amounted
to $14.4 million and $16.8 million, respectively. There are no deferred tax liabilities as of December 31, 2017.
The deferred tax liabilities as of December 31, 2016 amounted to $999 thousand. Deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities are included in other noncurrent assets and other noncurrent liabilities, respectively, in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

(Continued)
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(11) Lease Commitments

PIMCO leases office space under noncancelable operating leases with terms in excess of one year and future
minimum payments are as follows:

Year ending December 31:

2018 $ 31,709,312
2019 32,212,192
2020 31,733,990
2021 30,587,590
2022 29,987,483
Thereafter 49,580,590

Tota $ 205,811,157
L ess sublease rentals (1,890,468)

Tota 203,920,689

Rent expense under these leases was $29.5 million and $28.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. Certain lease agreements provide for rental escalations over the
term of the operating lease. The Company recognizes the rental increases over the terms of the leases on a
straight-line basis.

(12) Financia Risk Management
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

Market Risk
Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. Management continually monitors the
Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s
activities. Management reports its significant activity to the Risk and Controls Committee of Allianz Asset
Management GmbH, a subsidiary of Allianz SE.
(@ Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument

fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers,
bank deposits, and investment securities.

(Continued)
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Investment advisory and other receivables: The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Company’s client base, including the
default risk of the industry and country in which client operates, has less of an influence on credit risk.
However, geographically there is no concentration of credit risk, and no single customer who is individually
material to the Company’s operations.

The creditworthiness of customers is assessed as part of new client acceptance procedures. The Company does
not require collateral in respect of trade or other receivables, but monitors the assets under management for
each customer in relation to their outstanding receivable balance. The Company has an excellent history of
collection on outstanding receivables and establishes an allowance for impairment only when an individual
customer has been identified as at risk for collection.

Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks: The interest bearing deposits with banks are due from major institutions.
The Company reviews the creditworthiness of such banks and does not deal with such ingtitutions if it is not
satisfied with the institution’s financial strength.

Investments: The Company’s investments are within investment vehicles, which it manages subject to detailed
investment guidelines. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure that the individual vehicles operate within
their applicable credit and liquidity risk limitations.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will aways have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both norma and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’ s reputation.

The Company seeks to actively monitor its cash flow requirements. Typically, the Company ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financial
obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted,
such as natural disasters. In addition, the Company has access to AAM LP's line of credit with Allianz SE as
discussed in note 8.

(c) Market Risk

Market risk istherisk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

Currency risk: The Company is exposed to currency risk on revenues, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The mgjority of the Company’s

transactions are in U.S. dollars, but transactions also occur on a more limited basis primarily in Euros, British
Pounds Sterling, and Japanese Y en.
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The Company considers its exposure to currency risk to be limited, and currently does not actively employ any
hedging or other techniques to limit such risk.

Interest rate risk: The Company is subject to interest rate risk only to the extent of its borrowing arrangements
with affiliates, all of which are short term in nature. As management considers this risk to be minimal, no active
hedging or other strategies are employed to limit such risk.

Other market price risk: Market price risk arises from investment securities held within the investment funds
the Company holds and manages, each of which are subject to specific investment guidelines. Material
investments in such funds are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are made in
accordance with client guidelines or the funds governing documents.

In monitoring the Company’s exposure to market risks, management evaluates the Company’s sensitivity to
changes in currency rates, interest rates, and other market risk factors. As of December 31, 2017, there were no
changes in such factors that were deemed reasonably possible that would have resulted in any material
differences to members capital as of December 31, 2017 or the reported comprehensive income for the year
then ended.

(d) Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor, creditor, and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business.

There were no changes in the Company’ s approach to capital management during the year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, with the exception of Pl LLC (see note 14) and certain foreign
subsidiaries, are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(13) Provisions

PIMCO is subject to various pending and threatened legal actions as well as regulatory inquiries, which arise in
the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on PIMCO and its subsidiaries financial position or results of operations. Management
believes that they have provided adequate accruals for these contingent liabilities in the accompanying
consolidated statements of financial condition and in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income. The Company expenses related legal fees asincurred.

In December 2014, alegal action was filed against the Company alleging the Company violated Section 36(b) of
the Investment Company Act of 1940 by receiving excess compensation from the PIMCO Total Return Fund.

The Company believes this claim is without merit and intends to vigorously defend the action. A loss or
settlement of the matter is reasonably possible, but not estimable.
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(14) Net Capital

Pl LLC is subject to the Uniform Net Capita Rule (Rule 15¢3-1) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
which requires the maintenance of minimum net capital and requires that the ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net
capital, both as defined, shall not exceed 15-to-1. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, Pl LLC had net capital of
$50.3 million and $46.7 million, respectively, for regulatory purposes, which was $45.8 million and $42.8
million, respectively, in excess of its required net capital of $4.5 million and $3.9 million, respectively. Pl LLC's
aggregate indebtedness to net capital ratio was 1.35-to-1 and 1.26-to-1 as of December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively.

(15) Interest in Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The Company manages a number of structured products and other funds for the purpose of investing monies on
behalf of the Company’s clients in a range of investment strategies. In most cases investment vehicles managed
by the Company have substantive removal or liquidation rights. Investment vehicles for which substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist have been identified as structured entities. The vehicles are separate
legal entities, and are financed by investments made by the Company’s clients. The Company is paid for the
investment management services it provides to the vehicle directly from the vehicle. The Company earned $1.3
million and $1.5 million in investment advisory fees from structured entities during the years ended December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively, which is included in investment advisory fees - pooled funds in the accompanying
statements of income and comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes both the size of the unconsolidated investment vehicles where substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist and the Company’s interests in those vehicles:

2017 2016
Net assets of unconsolidated structured
entities $ 184,813,595 256,665,264
Investment advisory fees
receivable - pooled funds 191,510 108,653

The Company’s maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated structured entities is limited to the investment
advisory fees receivable.

(16) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring after the date of the consolidated statements of financial condition
through March 22, 2018, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, to determine
whether any subsequent events necessitated adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,
noting the Company has identified the following events to disclose:

PIMCO M unit options totaling 17,147 vested on January 15, 2018. The M unit estimated fair value as of the
vesting date was | ess than the exercise price of each of these option awards. Therefore, as aresult of the automatic
cashless exercise feature, no M units were issued.

On March 14, 2018, PIMCO granted 49,466 M unit options that have an exercise price of $15,529 per unit.
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2018 30
631,905,448 70,179,419
20,343,827 2,259,385
512,270,344 56,892,744
255,765,467 28,405,313
24,087,646 2,675,174
32,388,580 3,597,076
29,057,101 3,227,082
40,132,052 4,457,066
1,545,950, 465 171,693,259
282,506,712 165,564,214 18,387,562
15,102,964 1,677,335
21,648,643 2,404,298
202,315,821 22,469,195
1,748,266,286 194,162,454
452,574,931 50,262,972
461,425,185 51,245,881
124,216,384 13,795,472
19,424,934 2,157,333
8,098,453 899,414
1,065,739,887 118,361,072
127,753,880 14,188,346
43,297,825 4,808,656
20,943 2,326
171,072,648 18,999,328
1,236,812,535 137,360,400
850,000 (762,254,212) (84,655,953)
150,000 1,279,513,259 142,102,743
45,705 25,984,742 2,885,865
149,748 22,379,094 2,485,422
(54,169,132) (6,016,024)
511,453,751 56,802,054

1,748,266,286 194,162,454
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2018 30

1,875,633,084 208,307,810

443,021,441 49,201,961
558,675,888 62,046,544
206,603,431 22,945,377

11,109,438 1,233,814

3,095,043,282

343,735,507

961,895,503 106,828,115
428,625,473 47,603,145
312,048,003 34,656,051
102,324,911 11,364,205
68,595,286 7,618,192
28,992,899 3,219,951
59,188,623 6,573,488
12,061,698 1,339,572

1,973,732,396 219,202,720

1,121,310,886 124,532,787

13,907,312 1,544,546
15,290 1,698
1,135,233,488 126,079,031

58,376,944
1,076,856,544

6,483,343
119,595,688

(8,349,526) (927,298)

1,068,507,018 118,668,389
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2018 30
850,000 (721,216,276) (80,098, 280) 150,000 1,290, 399,100 143,311,724 45,705 28,660,677 3,183,055
(17,852,184) (1,982,664) (3.319,784) (368,695) (959,921) (106,609)
850,000 (739,068,460) (82,080,943) 150,000 1,287,079,316 142,943,029 45,705 27,700,756 3,076,446
793,236,517 88,006,848 237,519,335 26,378,897 46,100,692 5,119,943
(833,469,972) (92,565,175) (245,085, 392) (27,219,184) (47,816,706)  (5,310,523)
17,047,703 1,893,318
850,000 (762,254,212) (84,655,953) 150,000 1,279,513,259 142,102,743 45,705 25,984,742 2,885,865
122,972 30,984,305 3,441,117 (45,819, 606) (5,088,725) 583,008, 200 64,748,891
(22,131,889) (2,457,968)
122,972 30,984,305 3,441,117 (45,819, 606) (5.088,725) 560,876,311 62,290,923
1,076,856,544 119,595,688
(1,126,372,070) (125,094,882)
8,442,492 937,623 8,442,492 937,623
(17,047,703) (1,893,318)
(8,349,526) (927,298) (8,349,526) (927,298)
149,748 22,379,094 2,485,422 (54,169,132) (6,016,024) 511,453,751 56,802,054
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1,076,856,544

119,595,688

8,138,840 903,900
22,196,442 2,465,137
166,318 18,471
(15,290) (1,698)
4,007,210 445,041
(7,003,794) (777,841)
(50,369, 641) (5,594,052)
(1,625,689) (180,549)
94,803,056 10,528,827
4,275,397 474,826
404,180,584 44,888,296
(2,589,588) (287,600)

1,553,020,389

172,478,444

(18,093,905) (2,009,509)
(15,000,000) (1,665,900)
(33,093,905) (3,675,409)

1,323,000,000

146,932,380

(1,527,000,000)
(1,126,372,070)
(1,330,372,070)

(169,588, 620)
(125,094, 882)
(147,751,122)
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2017 12
543
2017 12
1,615.4
BMA
2007 12 | 2008 12 | 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 12 |2014 12 |2015 12 |2016 12 | 2017 12
881 819 697 661 613 529 478 457 429 392
77 76 72 64 47 44 42 40 38 68
253 220 203 172 119
77 83 86 79 68 62 72 65 69 35
391 336 343 229 209
1,679 1,534 1,401 1,205 1,056 635 592 562 536 495
106 71 53 39 39 58 57 52 52 28
162 84 108 101 95 83 60 47 36 44
215 198 201 175 155
483 353 362 315 289 141 117 99 88 72
2,162 1,887 1,763 1,520 1,345
1,303 1,133 1,016 1,205 1,056 776 709 661 624 567 543
2,491.7 1,711.9 1,544.5 1,812.4 1,604.4 1,842.6 1,758.0 1,750.2 1,442.2 1,371.5 1,615.4
( 27 ( 19 (17 (20 (17 ( 20 (19 ( 19 16 (15 17
6,728 ) |124 ) 1,532 ) |1,285 ) 8,185 ) [4,639 ) [5.243 ) 4,377 ) |71 ) |2.319 ) 9,406 )
BMA 2012
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Report of Independent Auditors
To the Trustee of PIMCO Bermuda Trust:

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund, PIMCO
Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund, PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (JTF), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond
Fund (M), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund |1, PIMCO
Emerging Markets Bond Fund , PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund, PIMCO Real Return Fund and PIMCO Short-Term
Strategy (the “Funds"), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of investments, as
of May 31, 2018 and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and for PIMCO Real Return Fund the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the financial highlights for each of the periods indicated therein.
Thesefinancial statements and financial highlights are hereafter collectively referred to as "financial statements'.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
materia misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
mi sstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financia
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of materia
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Fund's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Fund's internal control.

Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of
each Fund as of May 31, 2018, and the results of each of their operations, changes in each of their net assets, and for
PIMCO Real Return Fund the results of its cash flows for the year then ended, and each of their financia highlights for
the periods indicated therein, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
August 8, 2018
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Independent Auditors Report

The Members
Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pacific Investment Management
Company LLC and its subsidiaries the Company , which comprise the consolidated statements of financial
condition as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income, changes in capital, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statementsin
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al materia respects, the
financial position of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2017
and 2016, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

KPMGLLP
March 22, 2018
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Report of Independent Auditors
To the Trustee of PIMCO Bermuda Trust:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund, PIMCO
Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund, PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (JTF), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond
Fund (M), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund |1, PIMCO
Emerging Markets Bond Fund , PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund, PIMCO Real Return Fund, and PIMCO Short-
Term Strategy (the “Funds’), which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the schedule of
investments, as of May 31, 2017 and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, of cash flows
(PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund and PIMCO Real Return Fund), and the financial highlights for the year or period then
ended. These financial statements and financial highlights are hereafter collectively referred to as "financial statements”.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
mi sstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financia
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of materia
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Fund's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Fund's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financia statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of
each Fund as of May 31, 2017, and the results of each of their operations, changes in each of their net assets, cash flows
for PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund and PIMCO Real Return Fund and each of their financial highlights for the year or
period then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, Massachusetts
August 4, 2017
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